T™ILLINGDON

LONDON

North Planning

Committee

Date: TUESDAY, 22 FEBRUARY
2011

Time: 7.00 PM

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 5 -

CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH
STREET, UXBRIDGE UBS8

1UW
Meeting Members of the Public and
Details: Press are welcome to attend

this meeting

This agenda and associated
reports can be made available
in other languages, in braille,
large print or on audio tape on
request. Please contact us for
further information.

This Agenda is available online at:

Public Document Pack

To Councillors on the Committee

Eddie Lavery (Chairman)

Alan Kauffman (Vice-Chairman)
David Allam (Labour Lead)
Jazz Dhillon

Michael Markham

Carol Melvin

David Payne

Published: Monday, 14 February 2011

Contact: Natasha Dogra
Tel: 01895 277488

Fax: 01895 277373
ndogra®@hillingdon.gov.uk

http://lbh-modgov:9071/ieListMeetings.aspx?Cld=123&Year=2009

Lloyd White
Head of Democratic Services
London Borough of Hillingdon,

3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW

www. hillingdon.gov.uk

R

ﬁi"
4

=

(—L“” -

INVESTOR IN PEOPLE



Useful information

4
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at w e
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, \‘3‘* A
with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a ‘;étu j
short walk away. Limited parking is available at V/
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and MZE

how to book a parking space, please contact

R i
Democratic Services Sl N i \Fg
opping % i
Chimes
Cemr Shopping
)

Please enter from the Council’s main reception ‘ P O
where you will be directed to the Committee ‘(“\% ]
Room. An Induction Loop System is available for £ park
use in the various meeting rooms. Please contact . . ..# M, :
us for further information. — Rt

Muzraring
rar park

Please switch off any mobile telephones and
BlackBerries™ before the meeting. Any
recording of the meeting is not allowed, either
using electronic, mobile or visual devices.

If there is a FIRE in the building the alarm will
sound continuously. If there is a BOMB ALERT
the alarm sounds intermittently. Please make your way to the nearest FIRE EXIT.



A useful guide for those attending Planning Committee meetings

Security and Safety information

Fire Alarm - If there is a FIRE in the building the
fire alarm will sound continuously. If there is a
BOMB ALERT the alarm sounds intermittently.
Please make your way to the nearest FIRE EXIT.

Recording of meetings - This is not allowed,
either using electronic, mobile or visual devices.

Mobile telephones - Please switch off any mobile
telephones and BlackBerries before the meeting.

Petitions and Councillors

Petitions - Those who have organised a petition of
20 or more borough residents can speak at a
Planning Committee in support of or against an
application. Petitions must be submitted in
writing to the Council in advance of the meeting.
Where there is a petition opposing a planning
application there is also the right for the
applicant or their agent to address the meeting
for up to 5 minutes.

Ward Councillors - There is a right for local
councillors to speak at Planning Committees about
applications in their Ward.

Committee Members - The planning committee is
made up of the experienced Councillors who meet
in public every three weeks to make decisions on
applications.

How the Committee meeting works

The Planning Committees consider the most
complex and controversial proposals for
development or enforcement action.

Applications for smaller developments such as
householder extensions are generally dealt with
by the Council’s planning officers under delegated
powers.

An agenda is prepared for each meeting, which
comprises reports on each application

Reports with petitions will normally be taken at
the beginning of the meeting.

The procedure will be as follows:-

1. The Chairman will announce the report;

2. The Planning Officer will introduce it; with a
presentation of plans and photographs;

3. If there is a petition(s),the petition organiser
will speak, followed by the agent/applicant

followed by any Ward Councillors;

4. The Committee may ask questions of the
petition organiser or of the agent/applicant;

5. The Committee debate the item and may seek
clarification from officers;

6. The Committee will vote on the
recommendation in the report, or on an
alternative recommendation put forward by a
Member of the Committee, which has been
seconded.

About the Committee’s decision

The Committee must make its decisions by
having regard to legislation, policies laid down
by National Government, by the Greater London
Authority - under ‘The London Plan’ and
Hillingdon’s own planning policies as contained
in the ‘Unitary Development Plan 1998’ and
supporting guidance. The Committee must also
make its decision based on material planning
considerations and case law and material
presented to it at the meeting in the officer’s
report and any representations received.

Guidance on how Members of the Committee
must conduct themselves when dealing with
planning matters and when making their
decisions is contained in the ‘Planning Code of
Conduct’, which is part of the Council’s
Constitution.

When making their decision, the Committee
cannot take into account issues which are not
planning considerations such a the effect of a
development upon the value of surrounding
properties, nor the loss of a view (which in itself
is not sufficient ground for refusal of
permission), nor a subjective opinion relating to
the design of the property. When making a
decision to refuse an application, the Committee
will be asked to provide detailed reasons for
refusal based on material planning
considerations.

If a decision is made to refuse an application,
the applicant has the right of appeal against the
decision. A Planning Inspector appointed by the
Government will then consider the appeal.
There is no third party right of appeal, although
a third party can apply to the High Court for
Judicial Review, which must be done within 3
months of the date of the decision.



Agenda

1 Apologies for Absence

a A W N

Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting
To sign and receive the minutes of the previous meeting

Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent

and that the items marked Part 2 will be considered in private

Reports - Part 1 - Members, Public and Press

ltems are normally marked in the order that they will be considered, though the

To confirm that the items of business marked Part 1 will be considered in public

Chairman may vary this. Reports are split into ‘major’ and ‘minor’ applications. The
name of the local ward area is also given in addition to the address of the premises or

land concerned.

Major Applications without a Petition

Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page
6 | Southbourne Day Cavendish | Reserved matters (details of 13 -30
Centre, 161 Elliot ; appearance and landscaping) in
Avenue, Ruislip compliance with condition 2 of
66033/APP/2010/2523 outline planning permission ref:
66033/APP/2009/ 1060 dated
29/10/2010: Erection of a two
storey building to provide 23 one
and two-bedroom apartments,
together with associated parking,
involving the demolition of existing
day centre building.
Non Major Applications with a Petition
Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page
7 | Land adjoining 12 Eastcote & | Erection of a single storey 31-46
Gladsdale Drive, East detached one-bedroom dwelling
65761/APP/2010/2707 | Ruislip; with associated parking and

amenity space.




8 | 56 The Drive, Ickenham; | Two storey six-bedroom detached | 47 -72
Ickenham dwelling with basement level and
4496/APP/2009/2765 habitable roofspace with detached

garage to front, involving the
demolition of existing dwelling.

9 | 19 Grove Road, Northwood | Part two storey, part single storey 73 -84
Northwood ; rear extension, single storey
27846/APP/2010/2916 side/front extension, front porch,

alterations to existing elevations
and conversion of roofspace for
habitable use with 2 rear, 2 side,
and 3 front rooflights and 3
skylights.

10| Haydon School, Northwood | Details in compliance with 85 - 88
Wiltshire Lane, Hills; condition 4 (fence colour) of
Eastcote, planning permission ref:
9556/APP/2010/2490 9556/APP/2010/1370 dated

06/08/2010: Installation of mesh
fence and automatically locking
gate and new window to existing
elevation.

11| 41 Raisins Hill, Northwood 89 - 98
Eastcote Hills; Part two storey, part single storey
64909/APP/2010/2668 side extension, part two storey,

part single storey rear extension
with 1 rooflight, single storey front
extension and conversion of
roofspace to habitable use with 1
front and 1 rear rooflight, involving
demolition of existing integral
garage and store

12| St John's School, Northwood | Retention of additional classroom | 99 - 144
Potter Street Hill, Hills; and assembly area with library for

Northwood
10795/APP/2011/91

pre-preparatory school, together
with first aid room and staff toilet,
without complying with condition 4
of planning permission ref:
10795/APP/2001/1600 dated
21/11/2001 (which limits pupil
numbers at the school to 350 and
staff to no more than 40) to allow
the retention of the current
numbers of 405 pupils and 65 full-
time equivalent staff
(Retrospective application)




Non Major Applications without a Petition

Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page
13 | Breakspear House, Harefield; | Application for alterations to the 145 -
Breakspear Road previously approved scheme for 166

North, Harefield
7610/APP/2010/2608

the residential units 1-4 of the
enabling development (previously
approved within scheme ref:
7610/APP/2002/1816 dated
28/01/2008 for the conversion of
the existing Breakspear House to
10 flats, the erection of 7 dwellings
and erection of single storey
extension to Lower Lodge,
incorporating conversion of
existing house to 9 flats, erection
of 8 dwellings and erection of a
two storey extension to Lower
Lodge, single storey extension to
Upper Lodge together with surface
level and underground parking)
involving alterations in the internal
residential room layouts and the
design and layout of the rear
gardens.

14

Any ltems Transferred from Part 1

15

Any Other Business in Part 2

Plans for North Planning Committee




Minutes

NORTH PLANNING COMMITTEE

3 February 2011 H[LI DON

LONDON

Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre,
High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW

Committee Members Present:
Councillors Eddie Lavery, Allan Kaufmann, Michael Markham, Carol Melvin, David
Payne, David Allam and Jazz Dhillon.

LBH Officers Present:

Meg Hirani (Team Leader)

Syed Shah (Principal Highways Engineer)

James Rodger (Planning, Environment & Community Services)
Nikki Deol (Legal Advisor)

Nav Johal (Democratic Services)

Also Present:
Councillor Michael White

94. | APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1) Action by

There were no apologises for absence to note.

95. | DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE Action by
THIS MEETING (Agenda ltem 2)

Councillor Carol Melvin declared a personal and prejudicial interest for
item 6 and left the meeting for the duration of this item.

Councillor Allan Kaufmann declared a personal interest for item 8 and
remained in the room.

Councillor Edward Lavery declared a personal interest for item 9 and
remained in the room.

96. | TO SIGN AND RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS Action by
MEETINGS (Agenda ltem 3)

The minutes of the meeting held on 21 December 2010 and 11
January 2011were agreed as an accurate record.

97. | MATTERS THAT HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OR Action by
URGENT (Agenda ltem 4)

98. | TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED PART 1 Action by
WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT THE ITEMS
MARKED PART 2 WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE (Agenda
Item 5)

Page 1



Iltems marked part 1 were considered in public and items parked part 2
were considered in private.

99.

76 EXMOUTH ROAD, RUISLIP 66257/APP/2010/1112 (Agenda Item
5)

Part single storey, part two storey side/rear extension, involving
demolition of existing detached garage to side and single storey
extension to rear.

66257/APP/2010/1112

The application site was located on the south east side of Exmouth
Road and comprised of a two storey end of terrace house with a
detached garage along the side boundary with 76 Exmouth Road and a
part single storey rear extension. The attached house, 74 Exmouth
Road, lies to the south west and had a single storey rear extension. To
the north east lies 78 Exmouth Road, a two storey end of terrace house
with part two storey side and part two storey, part single storey rear
extension and front porch. This property was set behind the front wall,
but extends beyond the rear wall of the application property.

The street scene was residential in character and appearance,
comprising two storey terraced houses and the application site lied
within the developed area, as identified in the adopted Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007).

In accordance with the Council’s constitution a representative of the
petition received in objection to the proposal was invited to address the
meeting.

The officers report included new plans were produced in the
addendum, which showed the proposed development more clearly.

Points raised by the petitioner:

e Mrs Ebers spoke on behalf of the petitioners who signed the
petition objecting to the application.

e The petitioner spoke about previous applications on this site. An
application had been refused as a 2 storey was too large,
another loft extension application had been approved since.

e The petitioner queried whether the loft extension application had
been taken into consideration with this new application.

e The petitioner believed the applicant was careful going around
planning law in order to gain approval for applications.

e The petitioner disputed the officer's comments on the lighting in
the report. She believed that the proposed development would
block out some light.

e She commented on the already very limited parking on Exmouth
Road. That the current driveway on the application site had
enough space for one car.

e That the application if approved would involve demolishing the
garage that was on the site.

e The petitioner spoke about the anti-social behaviour and

Action by

Page 2




problems caused by tenants at the property.
e Mrs Ebers spoke about the overcrowding the the property, the
sub-letting, fights etc that had caused the police to be called out.

The applicant was not present at the meeting.

Ward Councillor Michael White addressed the meeting. The following
points were raised:

e Councillor White stated that this application was not just an
extension but a re-build of the house.

e He believed that the development would be out of sync with the
rest of the houses on the street.

e That it would be detrimental to the street scene.

e That parking would cause a problem. That they could not have
more cars parked on an already overcrowded street. He went on
to say it was debateable whether the garage on the service road
would be used to park a car.

e The Ward Councillor stated that there was a long history of
planning applications on this site.

e He asked the Committee overturned the officer’s
recommendation for this application.

Chairman stated that only planning issues could be considered by the
Committee. Members commented that several issues that were
brought up were issues that they could not take into account when
determining this planning application. These other issues could be
taken up with other departments in the Council.

Members asked officers about the planning history of this application
and the loft extension that was agreed. Officers stated that the loft
conversion was permitted development which complied with legislation
and the Council’s requirements.

Members asked clarification on the size of the development which
officers responded too. The 2-storey development was for half the
width of the house. The distance to the nearest property would be
2.75metres.

Members queried the issues regarding parking with officers. Officers
stated that the existing garage was 2metres wide so was not really a
useable garage for car parking. That removing this garage would not
impact on the parking situation on the street.

It was moved, seconded and was unanimously agreed that the
application be approved.

Resolved —

That the application be approved as set out in the officer’s report.

100.

95-97 HIGH ROAD, ICKENHAM 63771/APP/2010/2174 (Agenda ltem
9)

Page 3

Action by




Change of use from Class B2 (General Industry) to Class A5 (Hot
Food Takeaways) for use as a takeaway, including installation of
new shopfront.

63771/APP/2010/2174

Planning permission was sought for the retention of the use of the
premises as a take away business and the shopfront. It was
considered that the level of shop uses in the parade and in the nearby
Ickenham Local Centre were adequate to maintain the convenience
shopping needs of local residents, and the shopfront was acceptable
and did not detract from the appearance of the street scene.

A fascia sign had also been erected however this is the subject to a
separate application for Advertisement Consent. The new shopfront
comprised a glazed shopfront set within a powder coated aluminium
frame with a 1m wide centrally positioned doorway with internal
ramped access.

Originally the applicants also applied for the retention of the extractor
flue located on the flank wall of 97 High Street. The duct was located
some 9m behind the front elevation of 97 High Street, immediately
before the existing external metal staircase. It comprised galvanised
steel attached to the wall by brackets and measures 1m by 1m tapering
to 0.8m by 0.8m, and extending approximately 1m above the parapet.
However, the applicants had agreed to submit details of a new flue and
remove the existing one.

In accordance with the Council’s constitution a representative of the
petition received in objection to the proposal was invited to address the
meeting.

Points raised by the petitioner:

o The Petitioner present lived next door to the site.

e She stated that although the existing flue would be removed a
subsequent flue would have to be approved.

e The petitioner stated that parking on the lay by would cause
congestion to other residents.

e That rats would congregate in areas where rubbish was piled
up.

o That the proposed application was not in-keep with the area.

Mr Christopher Dance spoke on behalf of the applicant:

e The applicant had worked very closely with the case officer to
address any issues.

¢ He stated that there were no development plans that objected to
this application.

e That there were no objections to the shop front.

e Mr Dance stated that the existing flue would be removed and a
new one would be erected, where permission had been granted.

e He stated that there were no highways objections to the
proposed application.

e That the application was subject to a time bound condition.

Page 4




e Mr Dance stated that officers had fully scrutinised all the issues
and he urged that the Committee followed the advice of the
officers.

Members asked officers clarification on the opening hours of the
premises. Officers confirmed that staff were only permitted on the
premises from 08:00 until 23:30 hours, and this was as per the officer
report.

Members and officers discussed the flue which officers had made clear
to the applicant a new one should be smaller in size. The current flue
was unauthorised and did not have permission. It was confirmed that
this was not in consideration with this application.

It was moved, seconded and was unanimously agreed that the
application be approved

Resolved —

That the application be approved as set out in the officer’s report
with amendments as set out in the addendum.

101.

95A HIGH ROAD, ICKENHAM 63007/ADV/2010/59 (Agenda Item 11)

1x internally illuminated fascia sign to front and 1x internally
illuminated projecting sign.

63007/ADV/2010/59

The application site was located on the north west side of High Road
Ickenham and comprised of a ground floor commercial unit in use as a
hot food take-away, forming part of a terrace of 9 units, with residential
above. To the north east lies 97 High Street and to the south west lies
93 High Street. The street scene comprises a mix of commercial and
residential properties and the application site lies within the developed
area, as identified in the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
(Saved Policies September 2007).

Advertisement consent was sought for the retention of an internally
illuminated box fascia and projecting signs. The fascia sign was located
on the fascia panel, measures 4.7m x 0.7m x 0.2m deep and was
internally illuminated by fluorescent tubes. The projecting sign was
located along the right side of the fascia panel, measures 0.7m x 0.6m
x 0.12m and was also illuminated by fluorescent tubes.

It was moved, seconded and was unanimously agreed that the
application be approved.

Resolved —

That the application be approved as set out in the officer’s report.

Action by

Page 5




102.

FORMER REINDEER PH, MAXWELL ROAD, NORTHWOOD
18958/APP/2010/2210 (Agenda Item 6)

Erection of a part two storey, part three storey, part four storey
building comprising 1, one-bedroom flat, 4, two-bedroom flats and
6, three bedroom flats, with associated car parking, secured cycle
parking, bin store and alterations to vehicular access

18958/APP/2010/2210

Planning permission was sought for the erection of a part two, part 3,
part 4 storey 'U' shaped block of 11 flats comprising 1 x 1 bedroom, 4 x
2 bedroom and 6 x 3 bedroom apartments. The proposal includes
parking for 19 cars at basement and surface level, 11 secure cycle
spaces and bin stores at basement (lower ground) level.

Two letters of objection had been received, objecting to the proposal
on the grounds of lack of parking and increased traffic congestion. In
addition, two petitions bearing 21 and 23 signatures have been
received objecting on the grounds that the bulk, height and lack of child
safe garden area made the scheme an unsuitable development. These
two petitions had been withdrawn prior to the meeting. One letter of
support has also been received.

In response to concerns from the Urban Design and Conservation
Officer, amended plans had been submited modifying the design
detailing of the gable feature on the front elevation, while the pitch of
the roofs has been reduced to 46 degrees. Further consultations were
carried out on the revised plans and one additional letter has been
received, objecting on the grounds of increased traffic congestion and
inadequate parking.

The principle of a residential development and the mix of units were
considered acceptable in this edge of town centre location. The layout,
siting and scale of the development was compatible with surrounding
built form and would respect the established character of the area. The
proposal would not detract from the amenities of adjoining residents
and provides satisfactory accommodation for future occupiers. Parking
provision accords with the Council's standards and the Council's
Highway Engineer raised no objection to the proposed means of
access.

The current scheme addressed the reasons for refusal of a previous
scheme and a Unilateral Obligation had been signed, securing
contributions towards the funding of additional school places, health
care, construction training, libraries, public open space and
management and monitoring. This application was therefore
recommended for approval.

The Chairman confirmed with the Committee that as the petitions for
this application had been withdrawn there was no right to address
Committee on behalf of this application from residents or the applicant.

Members questions officers on the involvement of the applicants with

Action by

Page 6




officers which officers confirmed had been detailed. That the applicants
had also involved residents, had a public consultation and amended
plans to suit. Members were happy with the work that the applicants
had carried out with residents and the changes they had made to the
application.

Members discussed the parking provisions which satisfied the
requirements for the application.

It was moved, seconded and was unanimously agreed that the
application be approved.

RESOLVED -

1. That the application be approved as set out in the officer’s
report and addendum sheet;

2. That in advance of, or at the time of implementation of the
development, the Council enter into a legal agreement with
the applicants under Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980
(as amended) or other appropriate legislation to deliver the
off site highway works;

3. That delegated powers be given to the Head of Planning,
Trading Standards and Environmental Protection to grant
planning permission, subject to the conditions outlined in
the report.

103.

UNIT 3, RUISLIP RETAIL PARK, VICTORIA ROAD, RUISLIP
43510/APP/2010/1979 (Agenda Item 7)

Construction of a 1,810 sq.m mezzanine within Unit 3, Ruislip
Retail Park.

43510/APP/2010/1979

Planning permission was sought for the installation of a mezzanine
sales and storage area, which would add an additional 1,810m2 in floor
space to an existing vacant retail unit, formally occupied by MFI, at the
Ruislip Retail Park, Victoria Road.

The application was supported by a detailed planning and retail impact
statement which concluded that the proposal would not result in a
significant detrimental impact on retailing in the adjoining local centre,
given the type of business likely to operate from this particular unit.
Subject to the existing sales restrictions, and a condition preventing the
sub division of the unit, the additional floorspace would not have a
significant detrimental impact on the vitality or viability of nearby
centres. Accordingly, there were no objections to the principle of the
development.

The increase in showroom area was unlikely to translate into a
significant increase in customers visiting the store or in vehicle trips.
The existing car parking and servicing facilities for the retail park would
be retained for use by the proposed unit and would continue to meet
the needs of the proposed unit and retail park as a whole.

Action by

Page 7




The proposed external amendments were minor and would remain in
keeping with the character and appearance of the surrounding area.
The development would not result in any detrimental impact on the
amenity of nearby residential occupiers, subject to conditions.

The development proposes acceptable accessibility arrangement
which could be secured by way of condition. Subject to conditions, the
proposal was considered to be acceptable and to accord with the
provisions of the development plan. Accordingly, approval was
recommended.

Members questioned why the Green Travel Plan had been applied as a
condition on this application. Officers stated that this was something
the applicants had offered to be put forward as a condition of the
application. Members agreed that this should be included as an
informative rather than a condition on the application.

It was moved, seconded and was unanimously agreed that the
application be approved.

Resolved —

1) That the application be approved as set out in the officer’s
report, addendum sheet and the deletion of condition 9;

2) An Additional informative be added as follows: ‘The
applicant is encouraged to produce and implement a Green
Travel Plan which relates to the whole unit and sets targets
for sustainable travel arrangements and a commitment to
achieving the travel plan objectives’.

104.

8 ST MARTINS APPROACH, RUISLIP 44613/APP/2010/2283
(Agenda Item 10)

Single storey rear extension, involving demolition of existing
garage.

44613/APP/2010/2283

The application site was located on the east side of St Martins
Approach and comprised of a two storey semi-detached house with a
detached garage to the rear along the northern side boundary, forming
a pair of semi-detached garages with that at 10 St Martins Approach.
The attached house, 6 St Martins Approach, lies to the south and had
not been extended. To the north lies 10 St Martins Approach, also a
two storey semi-detached house. The street scene was residential in
character and appearance comprising two storey semi-detached
houses of similar design, with pairs of semi-detached garages to the
rear, and the application site lied within the Moat Drive Area of Special
Local Character, as identified in the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007). The application
site was also covered by an Archaeological Priority Area.

It was proposed to erect a part single storey rear extension involving

Action by

Page 8




the demolition of the existing garage. An application for a larger single
storey rear extension was refused planning permission in June 2010.
The applicant attempted to overcome the previous reasons for refusal
by reducing the width and depth of the rear extension, and by replacing
the dummy-pitch roof previously proposed with a pitched roof. The
single storey rear extension would be in set 2560mm from the side
boundary with 10 St Martins Approach. It would measure 4.38 wide,
4.96m deep and finished with a ridged roof, 2.6m high at eaves level
and 3.65m high to ridge level.

The proposed extension would be attached to the rear elevation of the
original house via a link extension measuring 1.65m wide, 1.2m deep
and finished with a ridged roof 3.4m high at its highest point. The single
storey rear extension would comprise a hall (with side doors), w.c and
kitchen (with front and rear windows and side doors). An additional
parking space measuring 2.0m wide and 3.8m deep was provided in
the front garden of the application property.

The previously refused application proposed a part single storey rear
extension incorporating the existing detached garage. It was shown to
measure 4.6m wide, 6.7m deep and finished with a flat roof with
dummy pitches on all sides, 2.6m high at eaves level and 3.6m high at
its highest point. The proposed extension was shown to be attached to
the rear elevation of the original house via a link extension measuring
1.7m wide, 1.2m deep and finished with a ridged roof 3.4m high at its
highest point.

Members discussed that this application was deeper than they would
usually approve but the existing block was currently deeper than the
proposed so this change would reduce the depth.

It was moved, seconded and was unanimously agreed that the
application be approved.

Resolved —

That the application be approved as set out in the officer’s report.

105.

FORMER MILL WORKS, BURY STREET, RUISLIP
6157/APP/2010/2384 (Agenda ltem 12)

Variation of condition 4 (to enable erection of two garages to Plots
2 and 3) of planning permission ref: 6157/APP/2009/2069 dated
02/03/2010: Erection of 66 dwellings comprising 2, three-storey
apartment blocks providing 30 apartments (1 studio; 5 one-
bedroom; 21 two-bedroom; and 3 three bedroom units) and 32
three-bedroom and 4 four-bedroom houses with associated car
parking, landscaping and access (involving the demolition of
existing buildings.)

6157/APP/2010/2384

This was a S73 application to make minor material amendments to the
approved scheme for 66 residential units at the former Mill Works Site.

Action by

Page 9




The application seeked to vary condition 4 of planning permission ref:
6157/APP/2009/2069, to enable changes to be implemented to the
consented development, involving the inclusion of 2 detached garages
to serve plots 2 and 3, located in the north east corner of the site.

The inclusion of the detached garages was supported, having regard to
the scale and nature of the built development, the opportunity for new
tree planting and the limited impact the proposal will have on the
Ruislip Village Conservation Area. The development would not detract
from the amenities of future or surrounding occupiers.

Subject to conditions originally imposed, in so far that they were still
relevant to the scheme and still capable of being discharged, and a
Deed of Variation to the S106 Agreement, the application was
recommended for approval.

Officers explained to Members that rumours of a pink tiled roof on the
site were inaccurate. The sheeting on the roof had a pinkish colour to
them but this was temporary. A tiled roof would be covering this and
the pinkish coloured would be hidden.

It was moved, seconded and was unanimously agreed that the
application be approved

Resolved —

That the application be approved as set out in the officer’s report.

106.

LAND O/S SORTING OFFICE, JUNCTION OF EAST WAY AND
PARK WAY, RUISLIP (Agenda Item 13a)

Replacement of existing 12.5 metre high monopole mobile phone
mast with a 15 metre high monopole mobile phone mast,
replacement equipment cabinet and ancillary works (Consultation
under Schedule 2, Part 24 of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) Order 1995) (as amended.)

59076/APP/2010/2931

It was proposed to replace the existing 12.5m high monopole mobile
phone mast with a 15m high (including antennas) monopole mobile
phone mast incorporating six antennas. An existing equipment cabinet
would also be replaced with a larger equipment cabinet.

The proposed telecommunications mast by virtue of its size and
location would detract from the street scene as it would be a readily
apparent and incongruous element. The mast would not harmonise
with the existing street scene and as such is contrary to Policies BE13,
BE37 and OE1 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Polices (September 2007).

Members wished to make it clear to operating companies that they
needed to go through the proper processes when making changes to
applications.

Action by

Page 10




It was moved, seconded and was unanimously agreed that the
application be refused.

Resolved -
1) That prior approval of siting and design was required;

2) The details of siting and design were refused for the reasons
stated in the report.

107.

ENFORCEMENT REPORT (Agenda Item 15)
The enforcement report was presented to Members.

It was moved, seconded and approved that enforcement action be
agreed as per the report.

Resolved —

The Enforcement Report was unanimously agreed by the
Committee.

Action by

The meeting, which commenced at 7.00 pm, closed at 8.30 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the
resolutions please contact Nav Johal on 01895 250692. Circulation of these minutes is

to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.

Page 11




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



Agenda ltem 6

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address SOUTHBOURNE DAY CENTRE 161 ELLIOTT AVENUE RUISLIP

Development: Reserved matters (details of appearance and landscaping) in compliance
with condition 2 of outline planning permission ref: 66033/APP/2009/ 1060
dated 29/10/2010: Erection of a two storey building to provide 23 one and
two-bedroom apartments, together with associated parking, involving the
demolition of existing day centre building.

LBH Ref Nos: 66033/APP/2010/2523

Drawing Nos: 117 Rev. P6
118 Rev. P3
119 Rev. P1
120 Rev. P2
121 Rev. P2
122 Rev. P2
125 Rev. P2
126 Rev. P2
127 Rev. P2
200080009/A/P/02
Landscape Maintenance Plan report by CSa Environmental Planning
CSA/1534/100 B
43 Rev. P5
45 Rev. P2
46 Rev. P3
50 Rev. P3
52 Rev. P3
53 Rev. P3
55 Rev. P1
56 Rev. P1
Door Schedule 65 Rev. P3
Window Schedule 66 Rev. P5
70 Rev. P2
71 Rev. P1
72 Rev. P1
7297/02 Tree Protection Plan
"Beamshield Plus" specification by Springvale
93 Rev. P2
"Beamshield Plus" U Value Table by Springvale
94 Rev. P2
95 Rev. P2
96 Rev. P1
Aboricultural Report by lan Keene (Ref. IJK/7297/ik
Code for Sustainable Homes Prediction v 2
Design Calculations by Mewies Engineering Consultants
Energy Report
"Isover Cavity Wall System" specification by Saint-Gobain
"Thermapitch TP10" specification by Kingspan
"Earthwood DriTherm Cavity Slabs" specification by Knauf Insulation
Planning Statement
Confirmation of Postal Addresses by LBH dated 29/3/10

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 13



SLB Q 14303/01 Rev. 0.
73 Rev. P1
74 Rev. P1
Thermal Insulation Ground Floor specification
75 Rev. P1
76 Rev. P1
77 Rev. P1
80 Rev. P2
81 Rev. P2
82 Rev. P2
83 Rev. P2
84 Rev. P2
85 Rev. P2
86 Rev. P2
87 Rev. P2
88 Rev. P2
89 Rev. P2
90 Rev. P2
91 Rev. P2
92 Rev. P2
02 Rev. P3
04 Rev. P5
05 Rev. P2
06 Rev. P1
07 Rev. P1
08 Rev. P1
100 Rev. P1
110 Rev. P5
111 Rev. P6
112 Rev. P6
113 Rev. P3
114 Rev. P1
115 Rev. P4
116 Rev. WIP
51 Rev. P4
03 Rev. P15
31 Rev. P9
34 Rev. P7
35 Rev. P5
36 Rev. P3
41 Rev. P6
42 Rev. P5 (amended 9/12/10)

Date Plans Received:  29/10/2010 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 15/10/2010
Date Application Valid: 08/12/2010 09/12/2010

1. SUMMARY

Reserved matters approval is sought for details of appearance and landscaping,
pursuant to outline planning permission for a residential development comprising 23 one
and two bedroom appartments in one, 2 storey block at the former Southbourne Day

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 14



Centre site.

The design and appearance will be inconsistent with the existing character of the locality,
having an adverse impact on the streetscene. In addition, it is considered that the
proposed development fails to provide acceptable living conditions for future occupiers,
or protect the residential amenity of surrounding residents.

The details for on-site renewable energy generation have not been incorporated into the
design of the scheme. The design of the development as submitted cannot therefore
meet the 20% renewables target without further modifications. The application is
therefore recommended for refusal.

2, RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed development, by reason of its proposed appearance and changes to the
previously approved design and layout, would result in a cramped, unduly intrusive,
visually prominent and inappropriate form of development, out of keeping with the
character and appearance of the surrounding area. The proposal is therefore contrary to
Saved Policies BE13 and BE19 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan and
the Council's Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

2 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The details for on-site renewable energy generation have not been incorporated into the
detailed design of the scheme. The design of the development as submitted cannot meet
the 20% renewables target without further modifications. Accordingly, the proposal would
fail to meet the requirements set out in the London Plan contrary to Policy 4A.7 of the
London Plan (February 2008).

3 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposal, by virtue of its elevational treatment and design would result in an
unacceptable loss of residential amenity to adjoining residents, by reason of loss of
privacy, contrary to Policy BE24 of the adopted Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) and the design principles contained within the Council's adopted
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all
relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies,
including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the
Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First
Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national
guidance.

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 15



AM14 New development and car parking standards.

AM15 Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking
facilities

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

HDAS Residential Layouts

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

OES5 Siting of noise-sensitive developments

PPS1 Delivering Sustainable Development

PPS3 Housing

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1  Site and Locality

The site has an area of 0.27 hectares and is located on the eastern side of Elliott Avenue,
Ruislip, which is accessed from Mansfield Avenue and Chelston Road/Southbourne
Gardens.

The site is on the southern part of a series of residential estate roads and approximately
400 metres distance from Chelston Road/Southbourne Gardens, which leads onto the
Victoria Road roundabout and local shopping area. The site lies close to Bessingby
Playing fields/open space and within 250 metres of Lady Bankes Junior and Infants
school.

The access road leading to the site from Southbourne Gardens and Chelston Road is
flanked by a sheltered housing scheme for the elderly.

A block of flats (Peter Lyall Court), lies to the immediate north east of the site and the
Cedars Medical Centre is located on the opposite side of Elliott Avenue, which is to the
south west of the site.

The site is currently occupied by a single storey day centre. The day centre was built in
the 1990's and has a number of young trees around the boundaries, planted as part of the
approved development. The Centre is currently disused having been vacated by the
previous service user (when it was used as an employment services training centre for
people with learning disabilities).

3.2 Proposed Scheme

Reserved matters approval is sought for details of appearance and landscaping, pursuant
to outline planning permission for a residential development comprising 23 one and two

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 16



bedroom appartments in one, 2 storey block at the former Southbourne Day Centre site.

The current scheme differs from the outline scheme in a number of fundamental areas. It
is proposed as part of the reserved matters submission to uplift the accommodation,
changing the unit mix from 16 x one bedroom and 7 x two bedroom apartments to 8 x one
bedroom and 15 x two bedroom appartments. This will be achieved by creating 8
additional habitable rooms in the roof space, involving 4 dormer windows in each of the
front and rear roof slopes.

The indicative outline scheme had a central entrance location. However, the current
scheme now coomprises two attached blocks, each with its own dedicated entrance. The
footprint of the proposed building remains broadly the same as that approved at outline
stage and the total number of units remains the same.

The block is surrounded to the front and rear by soft landscaping. Tree planting is
proposed along the site frontage and boundaries. Two bin stores are proposed at each
end of the new block, although details of these structures have not been provided. Two
detached Secure cycle storage structures are proposed to the north and rear of the
proposed block

The outline scheme proposed 34 parking spaces, but this has been reduced to 32 on the
reserved matters scheme.

The application is supported by 4 reports that assess or provide information on the
proposal. A summary and some key conclusions from these reports are provided below:

A sustainable assessment energy report

This report has been provided to take into account carbon emissions for the development.
The report seeks to demonstrate how the proposed development meets renewable energy
requirements. The assessment makes use of Standard Assessment Procedure (SAP)
energy and carbon calculations in accordance with the methodology of Part L of the 2006
Building Regulations.

Landscape Maintenance Plan, Arboricultural report and Impact Assessment on Trees are
covered in the Landscape Officers comments.

3.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History

Outline planning permission was granted on 29 October 2010 for the erection of a two
storey block of 23 flats comprising 16 x one bedroom and 7 x two bedroom apartments,
together with associated amenity space and parking. Access, layout and scale were
approved at outline stage. The design was on the basis of a two-storey building with a
central corridor giving access to the individual residential units, supplemented by two side
access positions at each end of the building. Both lifts and stairs were provided for vertical
circulation. 34 parking spaces, including 3 wheelchair accessible spaces and access
zones for disabled residents were also indicated. The main car parking area is located to
the south of the residential block, with vehicular access off Elliott Avenue. 8 of these
spaces, including two for people with disabilities are provided directly off Elliott Avenue at
the front of the building, accessed via dropped kerbs.

4, Planning Policies and Standards

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 17



UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

Part 2 Policies:

AM14
AM15
AM7
AM9

BE20
BE21
BE22
BE23
BE24
BE38

HDAS
OE1

OE5
PPS1
PPS3

5.

6.

New development and car parking standards.
Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking facilities

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Residential Layouts

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Siting of noise-sensitive developments
Delivering Sustainable Development
Housing

Advertisement and Site Notice
Advertisement Expiry Date:- 13th January 2011
Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

Consultations

External Consultees

This application has been advertised under Article 8 of the Town and Country Planning General
Development Procedure Order 1995 as a Major Development. 114 surrounding occupiers were

consulted. 16 letters of objection have been received. The following issues have been raised:

(i) The proposed increase in 2 bedroom flats will lead to an increase in the number of people and

therefore an increase in the number of vehicles associated with the development;

(i) Object to the inclusion of dormer windows as this will change the appearance and lead to

overlooking and visual intrusion;
(iii) Development will be out of character with the existing street scene;

—~ o~~~

iv) Loss of privacy to surrounding gardens;
i) Overcrowding, the density is too high;
iv) Noise pollution;

v) Traffic congestion;

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 18



(vi) Parking problems in the area;

METROPOLITAN POLICE - No objections.

Internal Consultees
EDUCATION & CHILDRENS SERVICES

The original request was £46,331 for nursery, primary, secondary and post-16 school places.

The new request is for £45,984 for primary, secondary and post-16 school places (i.e. lower
because there is no nursery request at the moment. This is because some surplus nursery capacity
has appeared in Cavendish, and births in that ward are steady compared to most other wards).

S106 OFFICER

There is a slight reduction in the education contribution and a slight increase in the health
contribution. The minimal overall difference to the planning obbligations at outline stage is such that
that it is not considered that the application could be refused for this reason.

TREE AND LANDSCAPE OFFICER:

lan Keen's Tree Survey and drawing No. 7297/02 indicates the retention of tree Nos 1-5 along the
frontage. This tree survey supersedes the original tree survey by Hillingdon, as shown on drawing
No. 20080009/A/P/02.These trees are only assessed as C grade trees, whose health and condition
will not be improved by the proposed development. Trees 11-15 (B grade) are also to be retained.
Trees 6-10 (C graded) are specified to be lifted and re-planted. It is questionable whether the effort
to save C grade trees is worthwhile.

CSa's drawing No. CSA/1534/100 provides a comprehensive planting plan which retains none of
the existing trees but includes the planting of 18No. new trees which will be more suitable in terms
of their scale and ornamental value for a residential development. In the short term, the loss of
established trees will be detrimental to the local landscape. However, in view of the site constraints,
the planting of new young trees is likely to be more satisfactory in the longer term than retaining, or
replanting, existing trees (of variable quality). The scheme includes extensive areas of ornamental
hedge and shrub planting appropriate to the development. The plan is supported by schedules and
a specification.

The location of the bin store in the south-west corner of the site, with doors opening onto the public
footway, presents a poor impression as a feature hard on the front boundary. Soft landscaping in
the form of tree and hedge planting is more appropriate in this location.

The successful establishment and maintenance of the landscape and shared external spaces will
depend on the quality of management and maintenance of the site.

Recommendation: No objection to the information submitted.

However, management and maintenance details (including the landscape objectives, maintenance
operations and frequencies) should be submitted to support this proposal.

URBAN DESIGN OFFICER

PROPOSAL: Reserved matters (details of appearance and landscaping) in compliance with
condition 2 of outline planning permission ref 66033/APP/2009/1060

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 19



COMMENTS: The overall design of the building as currently proposed appears very uncomfortable
and unbalanced, and has moved significantly away from the simple symmetry shown in the
illustrative drawings submitted with the original outline application.

Issues are as follows:

- The symmetrical gables positioned below the valley at roof level would create a weak feature on
the street elevation. A central focal feature would be preferred in this instance as previously
submitted, or an elevation that is more strongly divided to break up its length/bulk on the frontage.
The latter would reflect more closely the scale of the surrounding modern terraced houses. As
proposed the simple gables to the rear elevation appear more successful in visual terms than the
more ornate pediment gables to the front and would probably sit more comfortably within the
existing rather modest streetscape of the surrounding area.

- The varied spacing of the windows on the recessed brick sections on both elevations, although
the frontage is worse, would make the elevations appear unbalanced and where the spacing is
greatest, rather heavy looking.

- The large areas of glazing to the secondary elements of the frontage i.e. the bookends would
appear disproportionate when seen against the smaller windows of the main gables. The bookend
features also appear be shown with a hip to the front and a gable to the side. The hipped roofs
would appear as a discordant feature when all the other projecting bays have gables.

- As proposed the dormers would appear overlarge and sit tight to the ridges of the main roof and
to the valleys of the gables, giving a cramped appearance to the roof. Overall, their design would
appear bulky and as an after thought, rather than as features that are integrated with the overall
design of the building.

- Ideally, all the parking, other than that required for disabled users, should be located in the car
park to the side of the building. This would also benefit from an additional planting to soften its
appearance. Few details of the front boundary treatment and planting along this frontage have
been submitted.

CONCLUSION: Not acceptable.
HIGHWAY ENGINEER

No objection subject to a condition being applied for the car parking and cycle parking to be
completed before occupation and retained thereafter.

ACCESS OFFICER

In assessing this application, reference has been made to London Plan Policy 3A.5 (Housing
Choice) and the Council's Supplementary Planning Document "Accessible Hillingdon" adopted
January 2010.

The scheme should be revised and compliance with all 16 Lifetime Home standards (as relevant)
should be shown on plan. In addition, 10% of new housing should be built to wheelchair home
standards and should accord with relevant policies, legislation and adopted guidance.

It should be noted that the proposed development has been significantly redesigned since the
original outline application, and as a result, the level of accessibility has been reduced.

The following access observations are provided:
1. It unclear from the submitted plans whether level access will be achieved into the proposed

blocks of flats. Revised plan should be requested to confirm that level access will be achieved via a
suitably sized door in accordance with Part M to the Building Regulations 2000 (2004 edition).

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 20



2. A minimum of two wheelchair accessible flats should be provided in accordance with the GLA
Wheelchair Housing BPG. The wheelchair accessible flats should be evenly distributed between
the proposed blocks. These units are currently not shown on plan and should be incorporated into
revised plans.

3. The bathrooms/ensuite facilities should be designed in accordance with Lifetime Home
standards. At least 700mm should be provided to one side of the WC, with 1100 mm provided
between the front edge of the toilet pan and a door or wall opposite.

4. To allow bathrooms to be used as wet rooms in future, plans should indicate floor gulley
drainage.

5. They lift should be provided into each of the proposed blocks of flats, however, it is recognized
that the current design may not allow for a lift to be incorporated.

6. The proposed duplex flats should allow space within their design for a future through the ceiling
wheelchair lift.

Conclusion: unacceptable.

However, provided the above observations could be incorporated into revised plans, no objection
would be raised.

Officer comment: These issues are covered by conditions imposed at outline stage.
SUSTAINABILITY OFFICER

The applicant is not seeking to discharge Condition 11 of 66033/APP/2009/1060 (renewable
energy). However the information provided appears to be the same as that submitted with the
outline application.

Comments: The applicant has not submitted enough information even if there was an intention to
discharge condition 11. The current energy strategy suggests the use of solar thermal panels to
reduce the energy demand. However, these are not shown on the plans and therefore it is difficult
to sign off the reserved matters for appearance.

The applicant needs to:

- Recalculate the baseline energy demand using 2010 building regulations and incorporating non-
regulated energy.

- Recalculate the baseline to take account of the uplift in 2 bedroom units

- Revise the energy strategy to take into account the roof space and demonstrate the incorporation
of renewable energy technology within the building fabric

- Revise the energy strategy to demonstrate 20% of the energy demand coming from renewable
energy in line with Condition 11.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The principle of residential development and loss of the community facility has been
established by virtue of the outline planning permission, granted on 29/10/2010. No
objections are therefore raised to the loss of the community use and redevelopment of the

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 21



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.06

7.07

site for residential purposes.
Density of the proposed development

London Plan Policy 3A.3 seeks to maximise the potential of sites, compatible with local
context and design principles in Policy 4B.1 (Design principles for a compact city) and with
public transport capacity. Boroughs are encouraged to adopt the residential density
ranges set out in Table 3A.2 (Density matrix (habitable rooms and dwellings per hectare)
and which are compatible with sustainable residential quality.

The site has a Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) of 1 on a scale of 1 to 6 where
1 represents the lowest level of public accessibility. Table 3A.2 recommends that
developments within suburban residential setting with a PTAL score of 1 and with 2.7 - 3
hr/unit, should be within the ranges of 150-200 hr/ha and 50-75 units/ha.

The proposed density for the site would be 226hr/ha, which is above the London Plan
guidelines, having regard to the site's Public Transport Accessibility Level. It is noted that
the scheme approved at outline stage envisaged a density of 196 hr/ha, which was within
the London Plan guidelines. In terms of the number of units, the proposed density would
be 85 units/ha, which exceeds London Plan guidance. However, this is the same as
approved at outline stage.

Given that the proposed density of the current scheme exceeds the London Plan guidlines
for habitable rooms, it will be important to ensure that good environmental conditions can
be provided for surrounding and future occupiers.

In terms of the mix of units, Saved Policy H4 states that wherever practicable, new
residential developments should have a mix of housing units of different sizes, including
units of one or two bedrooms. Policy H5 states that the Council will encourage the
provision of dwellings suitable for large families. The provision of 1 and 2 bedroom flats
has been established by virtue of the outline permission. However, the uplift of the
scheme to convert 8 of the one bedroom flats (envisaged at outline stage), to two
bedroom flats, would result in unacceptable consequences in terms of the visual amenity
of the area, living conditions for future occupiers of the development and overlooking
issues to neighbouring properties. These issues are dealt with elsewhere in the report.
The proposed density and unit mix cannot therefore be supported for these reasons.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

There are no archaeological or historic issues associated with this site.
Airport safeguarding

there are no airport safeguarding issues related to this development.
Impact on the green belt

There are no green belt issues associated with this site.
Environmental Impact

Not applicable to this development.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The application site is situated in a predominantly suburban, residential area,
characterised by small scale, mainly semi-detached dwelling houses. Although there are
no objections in principle to the re-development of the existing day centre site for
residential purposes, the submitted scheme raised concerns, as it fails to respect the
established built character of the area. In addition, the elevations fail to demonstrate good
quality design.

The Urban Design Officer considered that the overall design of the building as currently

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 22



proposed appears very uncomfortable and unbalanced, and has moved significantly away
from the simple symmetry shown in the illustrative drawings submitted with the original
outline application.

Specific areas of concern include the following:

The illustrative elevations submitted at outline stage were considered to effecively reduce
the perceived scale and massing of the built form, by breaking up the structure in several
different compartments, to create a more varied, more legible and more accessible layout,
and to reduce the visual impact. The illustrative elevations showed a central main
entrance feature, which created a strong focal point and increased the legibility. The more
modest twin gable elements at each end created a design theme along the main
elevation. The varied roof line and the segmented approach around this central gable
element effectively reduced the perceived scale, bulk and massing, and resulted in a more
interesting and more balanced scheme, in tune with the existing built context. It was
considered that the front facade, as well as the roof treatment, responded to the local
distinctiveness of the area, evoking the character of individuality and a stronger sense of
place.

As proposed, the symmetrical gables positioned below the valley at roof level would
create a weak feature on the street elevation. The urban Design and Conservation Officer
considers that a central focal feature would be preferred in this instance, as previously
submitted (at outline stage), or an elevation that is more strongly divided, to break up its
length/bulk on the frontage. The latter would reflect more closely the scale of the
surrounding modern terraced houses.

Other areas of concern regarding the proposed design include the varied spacing of the
windows on the recessed brick sections on both front and rear elevations, (particularly the
front) which would make the elevations appear unbalanced and where the spacing is
greatest, rather heavy looking. In addition, the large areas of glazing to the secondary
elements of the frontage would appear disproportionate when seen against the smaller
windows of the main gables. This fenestration also appears to be shown with a hip to the
front and a gable to the side. The hipped roofs would appear as a discordant feature when
all the other projecting bays have gables.

One of the main differences between the illustrative outline scheme and the detailed
design currently under consideration is the introduction of dormers to both the front and
rear elevations. As proposed the dormers are considered to be overlarge and sit tight to
the ridges of the main roof and to the valleys of the gables, giving a cramped appearance
to the roof. Overall, their design would appear bulky and as an after thought, rather than
as features that are integrated with the overall design of the building.

Overall, it is considered that the proposed development, by reason of its overall scale, site
coverage, design, layout and scale, would result in a cramped, unduly intrusive, visually
prominent and inappropriate form of development, out of keeping with the character and
appearance of the surrounding area, contrary to to Policies BE13 and BE19 of the
adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan and the Council's Supplementary Planning
Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

7.08 Impact on neighbours

Policy BE20 of the Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007 states that
the Local Planning Authority will seek to ensure that buildings are laid out so that
adequate daylight, sunlight and amenities of existing houses are safeguarded.

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 23



Policy BE21 of the Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007 states that
planning permission will not be granted for new development, which by reason of its siting,
bulk and proximity, would result in a significant loss of residential amenity of established
residential areas.

The supporting text to Policies BE20 and BE21 of the UDP Saved Policies September
2007 states 'that while some proposals of substantial width, height and depth, may not
cause loss of amenity by reason of daylight or sunlight, these may nonetheless still be
over-dominant in relation to the adjoining property and/or its private amenity space. This in
turn can result in a depressing outlook detracting from residential amenity'.

Policy BE24 of the UDP Saved Policies September 2007 seeks to ensure that the design
of new buildings protects the privacy of the occupiers and their neighbours. The
supporting text to this policy states that 'the protection of privacy, particularly of habitable
rooms (including kitchens) and external private amenity space is an important feature of
residential amenity'.

The Council's Supplementary Planning Document 'Hillingdon Design and Access
Statement' (HDAS) states that where a two or more storey building abuts a property or its
garden, adequate distance should be maintained to overcome possible over domination.
The distance provided will be dependent on the bulk and size of the building but generally
15m would be the minimum acceptable separation distance. The Council's HDAS also
provides further guidance in respect of privacy, stating in particular that the distance
between habitable room windows should not be less than 21m.

The Council's HDAS at paragraph 4.12 states that 'new residential development should be
designed so as to ensure adequate privacy for its occupants and that of the adjoining
residential property from windows above ground floor, an angle of 45 degrees each side
of the normal is assumed in determining facing, overlooking distances'. This requirement
has been adhered to so as to respect the residential amenity of existing residents.

In terms of the footprint and external layout of the scheme, this broadly conforms with the
siting approved at outline stage. In this case, the separation distance between the flank
walls of the proposed block and No.47 Elliott Avenue, located to the north of the site
would be approximately 9 metres at their closest point and the development would fall
completely outside the 45 degree angle of vision. In terms of the relationship with Peter
Lyell Court to the east, the bulk of the block maintains an average separation distance of
22 metres. With regard to properties to the south, an average distance of 15 metres is
maintained to the southern boundary, while an average of 28 metres is maintained
between the southern elevation of the proposed block and the rear of properties backing
onto the site (169 -177 Elliott Avenue). This represents an improvement over the current
situation in terms of outlook from these properties, given that the existing building (to be
demolished) is located only 5 metres away from the southern boundary. The height and
massing of the external envelope (apart from the inclusion of dormers to the front and rear
elevations), broadly conforms with the illustrative elevations submitted at outline stage. It
is not therefore considered that the proposal would result in an over dominant form of
development which would detract from the amenities of neighbouring occupiers, in
compliance with Policy BE21 of the UDP Saved Policies September 2007.

It is not considered that there would be a material loss of daylight or sunlight to
neighbouring properties, as the proposed building would be sited a sufficient distance
away from adjoining development. The proposal is considered to be consistent with Policy
BE20 of the UDP Saved Policies September 2007 and relevant design guidance in this

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 24



regard.

With respect to privacy, the sumitted plans show first floor bedroom windows in both the
northern and southern flank elevations which would result in direct overlooking into the
adjoining private amenity areas, resulting in a loss of privacy to adjoining occupiers,
contrary to Policy BE24 of the UDP Saved Policies (September 2007). It is recommended
that the application be refused on this basis.

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

All units comply with the Council's HDAS guidelines for minimum internal floor areas and it
is not considered that these units would result in a poor internal living environment in
terms of space for future occupiers, subject to compliance with relevant life time homes
standards criteria. This is subject to a condition on the outline approval.

Policy BE23 of the Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007 requires
the provision of external amenity space which is sufficient to protect the amenity of the
development and surrounding buildings and which is usable in terms of its shape and
siting, for future occupiers. For one bedroom flats a minimum 20m2 per unit should be
provided and for two bedroom flats a minimum of 25m2 per unit should be provided. In
accordance with this standard, a total of 535m2 of amenity space is required.

The application identifies a communal amenity area at the rear of the site comprising
559m2, and private patio areas for the ground floor rear facing flats of 80m2. The total
amenity space provission at 595m2 therefore exceeds of the guidelines in the HDAS, and
complies with Saved Policy BE23 of the UDP. Any future landscaping scheme could also
incorporate low hedge borders around each of the ground floor level patio areas, which
allows the demarcation between private and communal amenity areas.

In terms of the outlook of future occupiers of the end ground floor flat No.15, the rear
facing bedroom windows lead directly onto the undercroft parking area. This would result
in a lack of outlook from, and natural light into these habitable rooms. It is also likely that
future occupants would be subject to excessive noise and fumes from vehicles using this
enclosed car parking area, particularly as these windows are the only source of natural
light and ventilation to these bedrooms. Similarly, the sole rear facing second bedroom for
flat 16 leads directly onto parking bay no. 15 which is hard up against the external wall. It
is considered that the layout would not be conducive to good living conditions for
occupiers of these flat, contrary to Saved Policies BE20, BE21 and OE1 of the UDP,
HDAS Residential Layouts and the provisions of the London Plan.
7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

At outline stage, the Council's Highways Engineer raised no objection to the development
in terms of the impact of the traffic generated on the highway network or the proposed
access arrangements from Elliott Avenue, subject to the provision of sight lines at the site
entrance. This was secured by a condition.

With regard to parking, 34 parking spaces were proposed at outline stage. However, the
Highway engineer was concerned at the width of the groups of three spaces fronting Elliot
Road and recommended that these be reduced to groups of two, in order to reduce the
width of the crossovers. 32 (including 3 disabled) car parking spaces have therefore been
provided for the proposed development, which at a ratio of 1.40 spaces per unit, complies
with Council's Parking Standards.

24 secure covered parking spaces have been provided in two locations to the north and
east of the proposed block, although elevational details of these structures have not been

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 25



provided. Nevertheless, these details are secured by conditions on the outline approval.

Subject to the implementation of relevant outline conditions, it is considered that adequate
vehicular access to the site can be provided, adequate parking has been provided and
highway and pedestrian safety would not be prejudiced, in compliance with Saved Policies
AM7, AM9, AM14 and AM15 of the UDP.

7.11 Urban design, access and security

In terms of the mix of units, Policy H4 states that, wherever practicable, new residential
developments should have a mix of housing units of different sizes, including units of one
or two bedrooms. Policy H5 states that the Council will encourage the provision of
dwellings suitable for large families. The proposed mix of one and two bedroom units
would have been more appropriate in a town centre location. However, the proposal would
result in net gain of 23 units, which would contribute towards meeting the housing need in
the Borough. The lack of larger units is therefore not considered to be a sustainable
reason to refuse this application.

Other issues relating to urban design have been addressed in section 7.07 of this report.
7.12 Disabled access

HDAS was adopted on the 20th December 2005 and requires all new residential units to
be built to lifetime home standards and 10% of units designed to wheelchair accessible
standards. Further guidance is also provided on floor space standards for new residential
development to ensure sound environmental conditions are provided on site. As a guide,
the recommended minimum standard for 1 bedroom flats is 50sq. m and 63sq. m for 2
bedroom flats. Where balconies are provided, the floor space of the balconies can be
deducted from these standards, up to a maximum of 5sq. metres. Additional floorspace
would be required for wheelchair units.

The floor plans indicate that the development generally achieves HDAS recommended
floor space standards and that Lifetime Home Standards could be met for these flats in
terms of size.

Conditions have been imposed at outline stage, requiring the submission of internal layout
details, to ensure compliance with relevant standards.
7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

This is a reserved matters application dealing with appearance and landscaping. As such
affordable housing is not being considered at this stage.
7.14 Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

It was indicated at outline stage to remove 15 trees to facilitate the development and
retain 6 trees. The current comprehensive planting plan submitted with this application
retains none of the existing trees but includes the planting of 18 new trees which the Tree
Officer considers to be more suitable in terms of their scale and ornamental value for a
residential development. In the short term, the loss of established trees will be detrimental
to the local landscape. However, in view of the site constraints, the planting of new young
trees is likely to be more satisfactory in the longer term than retaining, or replanting,
existing trees (of variable quality). The scheme includes extensive areas of ornamental
hedge and shrub planting appropriate to the development. The plan is supported
schedules and a specification.

While the layout drawing illustrates that there is space and potential for the provision of
landscape enhancement within much of the site, the car park at the southern end on the
originally submitted plans was dominated by hard surfacing with densely packed parking.

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 26



The site layout plan has been revised to provide a 1.2 metre landscape strip along the
southern boundary, to provide an opportunity for tree and shrub planting, to reduce the
impact of parked cars, particularly when viewed from properties to the south of the site.

The tree officer considers that the location of the bin store in the south-west corner of the
site, presents a poor impression as a feature hard on the front boundary. Soft landscaping
in the form of tree and hedge planting would be more appropriate in this location. Had the
development been acceptable in other respects it is considered that this aspect of the
proposal could be amended to provide a more appropriate solution. Similarly details of
management and maintenance details (including the landscape objectives, maintenance
operations and frequencies) could be secured by appropriately worded conditions, in the
event of an approval.

Overall, it is considered that the landscaping scheme is satisfactiory and complies with the
requirements of Saved Policy BE38 of the UDP.
7.15 Sustainable waste management

Two refuse collection points are provided at both ends of the new block which are
conveniently located close to the entrances to the site, to allow easy access for refuse
collection.

Although the plans do indicate bin storage provision, the number of bins is not indicated.
The requirement is 1100 litre refuse and recycling bins on a ratio of 1:10 + 1 per waste
stream as a minimum. Although the design details have not been provided, the
requirement for the scheme to provide for appropriate covered and secure refuse and
recycling bin storage facilities could be secured by a condition in the event that this
scheme is approved.

7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

Policy 4A.4 of the London Plan requires submission of an assessment of the energy
demand and carbon dioxide emissions from proposed major developments, which should
demonstrate the expected energy and carbon dioxide emission savings from the energy
efficiency and renewable energy measures incorporated in the development.

Policy 4A.7 of the London Plan advises that boroughs should ensure that developments
will achieve a reduction in carbon dioxide emissions of 20% from on site renewable
energy generation (which can include sources of decentralised renewable energy) unless
it can be demonstrated that such provision is not feasible.

The applicant has submitted a renewable energy assessment as part of the application.
This sets out that solar collection for hot water heating is the preferred technology to
deliver the renewables target for the scheme. A condition requiring the provision of 20% of
the site's heat and/or energy needs from renewable technology was attached to the
outline consent, to ensure the current scheme achieves the required level of energy
efficiency and carbon reduction.

However the detailed elevational drawings do not show the use of these renewable
energy technologies. There is therefore a disconnect between the energy assessment,
the building design and the description of development. The energy assessments appears
to have been a separate technology based exercise that has not been linked to the design
process. It is therefore not possible to approve the proposals, because the designs
conflict with the energy assessment.

It is not considered that conditions could address this issue, because the scheme would

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 27



717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

require a redesign, in order to accommodate the suggested renewable technologies,
comprising solar thermal panels and the PV panels. Given that no details for on-site
renewable energy generation can be incorporated into the scheme as submitted, the
proposal would fail to meet the requirements set out in the London Plan contrary to Policy
4A.7 of the London Plan (February 2008).

Flooding or Drainage Issues

There are no specific flooding or drainage issues associated with this application.
However, a condition is recommended requiring sustainable Urban Drainage (SUDS)
measures for areas of hard surfacing.

Noise or Air Quality Issues

With respect to the noise impact the development may have upon surrounding residents,
traffic to the proposed development would utilise the existing access and it is not
considered that the additional vehicle movements associated with the proposed
development would result in the occupiers of surrounding properties suffering any
significant additional noise and disturbance or visual intrusion, in compliance with Saved
Policy OE1 of the UDP.

Comments on Public Consultations

The primary concerns relating to the principle of the development, parking and the impact
on residential amenity (loss of privacy, and outlook), have been dealt with in great detail in
other sections of the report. Similarly, the effect of the scheme on the character of the
area and intensification of use, have also been addressed.

Planning Obligations

Policy R17 of the Council's Unitary Development Plan states that: "The Local Planning
Authority will, where appropriate, seek to supplement the provision of recreation open
space, facilities to support arts, cultural and entertainment activities, and other community,
social and education facilities through planning obligations in conjunction with other
development proposals'.

The applicant has signed a S106 Agreement securing a full range of planning obligations
required to offset the impact of the development, including contributions towards the
provision of education, healthcare, community and libraries. A contribution can also be
secured in respect of project management and monitoring.

It is considerd that the impact of the obligations arising from this reserved matters
scheme, would have a de minimus impact compared to those agreed planning obligations
at outline stage.

In the event of an approval, there would therefore be no requirement to seek a
supplemental deed to that which was signed on the 27 October 2010, nor should the
application be refused on the grounds of planning obligations.

Expediency of enforcement action

There are no enforcement issues associated with this site.
Other Issues

There are no other issues associated with this development.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 28



In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware of
the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status".

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable.

10. CONCLUSION

No objection is raised to the principle of the use of this redundant Day Centre site for
residential purposes. However, the proposed design would result in a cramped, unduly
intrusive, visually prominent and inappropriate form of development, out of keeping with
the character and appearance of the surrounding area. In addition, the scheme fails to
produce good environmental conditions both for both future occupants and adjoining
properties. The application has not demonstrated that energy conservation measures
have been incorporated into the design. It is therefore recommended that the application
be refused.

11. Reference Documents

(a) Planning Policy Statement 1 (Delivering Sustainable Development)

(b) Planning Policy Statement 3 (Housing)

(c) Planning Policy Guidance Note 13 (Transport)

(d) The London Plan

(e) Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007.
(f) Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement - Residential Layouts

(g) Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement - Residential Extensions
(h) Supplementary Planning Guidance - Educational Facilities

(i) Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Facilities

Contact Officer: Karl Dafe Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 29



Peter Lyell Court

Southborne Gardens

. The Cedars Employment Services

Medical Centre _

Site Address LONDON BOROUGH
Site boundary Southbourne Day Centre, OF HILLINGDON
For identification purposes only. Elliot Avenue, I;‘Iacnning’ E'I:::Virsonn!ent
al: ommuni ervices
This copy has been made by or with RUIS|Ip - . y .
the authority of the Head of Committee Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Services pursuant to section 47 of the Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Copyright, Designs and Patents . . . ﬁ
Act 1988 (the Act). Planning Application Ref: Scale 1:1.250 @@«gﬁ
Unless the Act provides a relevant :, T
oxcantion (o copyright 66033/APP/2010/2523 £ s

Planning Committee Date

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon

100019283 2009 North Page 30 February 2011 (1\P[ LLI G D O N

LONDON




Agenda ltem 7

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address LAND ADJOINING 12 GLADSDALE DRIVE EASTCOTE

Development: Erection of a single storey detached one-bedroom dwelling with associated
parking and amenity space.

LBH Ref Nos: 65761/APP/2010/2707

Drawing Nos: Location Plan to Scale 1:1250
Arboricultural Survey
Design and Access Statement
Drwg. No.1
DC2
DC3
DC4

Date Plans Received:  23/11/2010 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 30/11/2010
1. SUMMARY

The proposal is for a single storey detached house that would be set adjacent to the
existing property, 12 Gladsdale Drive. In design terms, the development would appear as
a stand alone bungalow, however due to its siting and position the proposal would result
in a development which would appear cramped and out of context in relation to the
design and pattern of the existing residential development, resulting in a detrimental
impact on the character of the wider area. The principle of intensifying the residential use
of the site through the loss of the side garden area would also have a detrimental impact
on the character, appearance and local distinctiveness of the area. As such, the proposal
is considered contrary to Policies BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007), the Supplementary Planning
Document HDAS: Residential Layouts, the Supplementary Planning Document
Accessible Hillingdon January 2010, and the London Plan (2008).

2, RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed development, by reason of its siting, design and layout, would fail to
harmonise with the existing local and historic context of the surrounding area. The
principle of intensifying the residential use of the site through the loss/part loss of this
side garden area would have a detrimental impact on the character, appearance and
local distinctiveness of the area. The development therefore fails to harmonise with the
character of the surrounding area, contrary to Policies BE13 and BE19 of the adopted
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007), Policies 3A.3,
4B.1 and 4B.8 of the London Plan, guidance within The London Plan Interim Housing
Supplementary Planning Guidance, April 2010, Planning Policy Statement 3: Housing (as
amended) and the Council's adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS:
Residential Layouts.

2 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 31



The proposal by reason of the size, design and the siting would result in a form of
development which would be cramped and out of character with the existing pattern of
residential development in the area. The proposal therefore represents an over
development of the site to the detriment of the character and visual amenities of the area
contrary to Policies BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved
Polices September 2007), Policy 4B.3 of the London Plan (2008) and the adopted
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all
relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies,
including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the
Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First
Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national

guidance.
AM14 New development and car parking standards.
AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings
BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.
BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.
BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas
OL5 Development proposals adjacent to the Green Belt
R17 Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of
recreation, leisure and community facilities
SPG Residential Layouts
LPP 3A.3 London Plan Policy 3A.3 - Maximising the potential of sites
LPP 4B.1 London Plan Policy 4B.1 - Design principles for a compact city.
LPP 4B.8 Respect local context and communities

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality
The application site is on the north side of Gladsdale Drive and comprises a plot of land,

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 32



originally used as garden land in connection with the residential use of No.12, a semi
detached property located at the western end of Gladsdale Drive. The street is residential
in character and the land is on a slope with the land falling away towards the northwest to
the stream at the rear. The land to the west is within the Green Belt and is also
designated as a Site of Importance for Nature Conservation and a Woodland Tree
Preservation Order is in place. The western boundary of the site forms the boundary
between the developed area and the above mentioned designations as identified in the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (UDP) (Saved Policies September 2007).

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application seeks planning permission to erect a single storey 1-bedroom detached
dwelling adjacent to 12 Gladsdale Drive using a similar front building line to the other
properties in the street. The dwelling would be 5.48m wide and 11.36m deep and would
be finished with a hipped roof that would be 2.5m to the eaves and 3.89m high to the
ridge. Two off street parking spaces would be provided to the front of the property.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

65761/APP/2009/216 Land Forming Part Of 12 Gladsdale Drive Eastcote

Two storey four-bedroom detached dwelling with associated parking.

Decision: 09-03-2009 Withdrawn

65761/APP/2009/599 Land Forming Part Of 12 Gladsdale Drive Eastcote
Two storey three-bedroom detached dwelling with associated parking.

Decision: Appeal: 16-09-2009 Dismissed

Comment on Relevant Planning History

This is the third application submitted for a dwelling on this site. The first
submission(65761/APP/2009/216) was withdrawn following officer advice that the
application would not receive officer support due to its design and the lack of an
arboricultural report.

The second application (65761/APP/2009/599) was appealed under non-determination,
however it was considered by the North Planning committee that the application would
have been refused for the following reasons:

1. The proposed dwelling by reason of its siting and layout would result in a cramped form
of development, which would not be in keeping with the existing surrounding development,
and would, be detrimental to the visual amenity and character of the surrounding street
scene contrary to Policies BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007) and the adopted Supplementary Planning Document
HDAS: Residential Layouts.

2. The proposed development, by reason of its siting and overall size, bulk and height,
would prejudice the openness of, and views to and from the Green Belt. The proposal is
therefore contrary to Policy OL5 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007) and Planning Policy Guidance 2 (Green Belts).

3. The development is estimated to give rise to a significant number of children of

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 33



nursey/primary/post-16 school age, and therefore additional provision would need to be
made in the locality due to the shortfall of places in nurseries/schools/educational facilities
serving the area. Given a legal agreement at this stage has not been offered or secured,
the proposal is considered contrary to Policy R17 of the Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies September 2007.

In the determination of this appeal the inspector considered that:

- Due to the limited plot width, the need to provide off street parking to the front rather
than the side, together with the orientation of the front facade, the proposal would result in
a cramped appearance failing to harmonise with the existing street scene or complement
the character of the wider area.

- In relation to the impact on the adjoining Green Belt, whilst accepting that there would be
no meaningful space to provide landscaping to this boundary, he considered that the
development would not provide a significantly different or inferior context for the Green
Belt than which exists in the area at the moment. In the context of the boundary with the
Green Belt the development would have no adverse effect on the visual amenities of the
Green Belt.

- The proposal would provide adequate floorspace for future occupiers.

Subsequent to the determination of that appeal and the submission of this current
proposal, an application for a certificate of lawful development was submitted for a
proposed garage and games room in the same position as the current proposal
(65761/APP/2009/2562). This Certificate was refused by the Local Authority due to its
excessive size and scale failing to represent a structure required for the incidental
enjoyment of the dwellinghouse. This decision was appealed and the inspector concluded
that the building would not be overly excessive and would still be in the realms of objective
reasonableness and granted a Certificate of Lawful Development.

Whilst it is noted that the proposed outbuilding, which has been granted a certificate of
lawfulness, would use the same footprint and built form as the current application for a
single storey dwelling, it is considered that the material impact of an additional dwelling in
this position would be substantially different, due to the intensification of use of the site
that would result. Particularly with regard to the visual impact on the existing street scene
and off street parking provision, which were raised in the previous inspectors
considerations, namely:

- That the plot width of the site would be less than the norm for the road;

- That the proposal would result in off street parking provision for 2 vehicles on the
frontage, whilst the norm for the street is that of front gardens being retained with drives
leading to garages to the sides which assist in providing space between the properties;

- That the proposed layout, using the same building lines as the adjacent properties would
result in the proposed dwelling being out of character as it would relate oddly to the street
scene as it would not face the street with the front elevation at an angle to the road.

As such, it is considered that the impact of an additional residential unit in this position
with its own separate needs and associated paraphernalia would be materially different to
the impact of an ancillary outbuilding used in association with the main dwelling on the
site.

4, Planning Policies and Standards
Planning Policy Guidance Note 2: (Green Belt)

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 34



Supplementary Planning Guidance: Educational Facilities
Planning Policy Statement 3: Housing (June 2010)
The London Plan: Interim Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (April 2010).

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

Part 2 Policies:

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

OoL5 Development proposals adjacent to the Green Belt

R17 Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation, leisure and
community facilities

SPG Residential Layouts

LPP 3A.3 London Plan Policy 3A.3 - Maximising the potential of sites
LPP 4B.1 London Plan Policy 4B.1 - Design principles for a compact city.
LPP 4B.8 Respect local context and communities

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1  Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- 5th January 2011

6. Consultations
External Consultees

The application has been given statutory press and site publicity. 34 neighbours and interested
parties were consulted including the Eastcote Village Conservation Area Advisory Panel,
Northwood Hills Residents Association, and Eastcote Residents Association. 6 individual responses
and a petition of 43 signatures have been received, that made the following comments:

1. The land has always been part of the Green Belt land, adjacent to No.12;
2. The changes to PPS3 have taken gardens out of the Brownfield category, and therefore there is
no automatic right to build a dwelling on this land;

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 35



3. This is the 5th application in 18 months, it is clear the developer is trying to achieve his goal little
by little of building a large detached property in the garden;

4. It is difficult to understand how one inspector can contradict another and arrive at a completely
opposite conclusion when none of the site circumstances have changed;

5. It is now argued that as the inspectorate has given permission for an outbuilding, a precedent
has been set, this argument is flawed as a 1 bedroom dwelling is not incidental to the main
property;

6. The statement made by the developer that his family would be moving into the house and
required this outbuilding has proved to be utterly false;

7. The previous appeal decision comments on the existing characteristics of the street scene,
regarding spaces between dwellings, garages to sides and front gardens retained. As such this
proposal would be out of character;

8. Dwellings in Gladsdale Drive are all two storey with pitched roofs, a bungalow would be out of
character;

9. The building would be too close to Green Belt land and contrary to Green Belt policy;

10. The footings and installation of services would inevitably damage root systems of the Green
Belt tree screen and ancient hedgerow;

11. Building so close to the tree screen would render the property extremely dark, leading to
pressure to fell adjacent trees on light impairment grounds;

12. The building would project beyond the established end of the road;

13. Contrary to the stated claim, the building would be visible from the public road and from the
public footpath through the Green Belt land to the rear;

14. Your officers should visit the site and see the disgraceful way it has been left for months and
months. The developer does not intend to move in, he just wants to make money.

Environment Agency: We have no objection to the proposal as shown in the application. Suggested
Informative:

Under the terms of the Water Resources Act 1991, and the Thames Region Land Drainage
Byelaws, 198 , our prior written consent is required for any proposed works or structures, in, under,
over or within eight metres of the top of the bank of the Joel Street Farm Ditch, designated a main
river.

Internal Consultees
Conservation and Urban Design Officer:

There has been a recent appeal decision that is pertinent to this proposal in terms of its impact on
the streetscape of Gladsdale Drive. With regard to the development of the site to create a two
storey house, the Inspector noted "I consider that the very limited plot width and the need to
provide off road parking rather than a front garden at the site, together with the orientation of the
front facade of the appeal property, all underline the fact that the proposal would appear cramped
on its site, and to that extent it would in my view fail to harmonise with the existing street scene and
to complement the character of the immediate area." This position is supported by recent
Government policy with regard to the development of gardens.

Whilst the proposed bungalow would appear less intrusive in the street scene, given the character
of the street, ie two storey houses and maisonettes, the frontage parking and the orientation of the
street facade ie not fronting the street, it would nevertheless be an incongruous feature within the
streetscape of the area. The scheme would not have any impact on the Eastcote Village
Conservation Area.

CONCLUSION: Objection as it would create an incongruous element within the street scene.

Tree/Landscape Officer:

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 36



The woodland, which includes a willow and a number of Hornbeam and Ash trees, on the land to
the north of the site is protected by TPO 387. The immature Ash trees at the end of Gladsdale
Drive and close to the eastern boundary of the site do not form part of the protected woodland.

The scheme includes a survey report (from 2009) about the multi-stemmed Willow tree close to the
northern boundary of the site. The report also mentions the woodland. The willow is found to be
defective and prone to split and collapse, because decay in the main stem has spread to the other
limbs one of which has collapsed and will have to be removed in the interests of safety. As
previously, and as acknowledged by the Inspector who dismissed the appeal against the refused
application (ref: 65761/APP/2009/599), Saved policy BE38 of the UDP does not apply to this tree,
because in this condition it is not a feature of merit. In this context, the matter of the removal of this
tree is a private matter for the owners of the land on which it is situated, who had previously
indicated that the tree can be removed.

Subject to the protection afforded by the existing boundary fence, which should be retained, the
scheme will not affect the other (off-site) woodland trees and the (off-site) trees at the end of
Gladsdale Drive. The layout also reserves space for landscaping at the front of the site.

Subject to conditions TL1 (levels), TL5, TL6 and TL7, and a condition requiring the retention of the
existing boundary fence or the provision of alternative fencing to protect the off-site trees/woodland
(reason TL3), the scheme is acceptable in terms of Saved Policy BE38 and Green Belt landscape

policy.
Access Officer:

In assessing this application, reference has been made to London Plan Policy 3A.5 (Housing
Choice) and the Council's Supplementary Planning Document Accessible Hillingdon adopted
January 2010.

The scheme should be revised and compliance with all 16 Lifetime Home standards (as relevant)
should be shown on plan.

1. Level access should be achieved. Entry to the proposed bungalow appears to be stepped, which
would be contrary the above policy requirement. Should it not be possible, due to topographical
constraints, to achieve level access, it would be preferable to gently slope (maximum gradient 1:21)
the pathway leading to the ground floor entrance door. Details in this regard should be requested
prior to any grant of planning permission.

Conclusion: No objection is raised in terms of accessibility provided a suitable planning condition, to
secure Lifetime Homes Standards, is attached to any grant of planning permission.

Waste strategy:

Hillingdon is not a wheeled bin borough. Bins or other containment would have to be provided by
the developer.

The current waste and recycling collection systems are:

- Weekly residual (refuse) waste, using sacks purchased by the occupier

- Weekly dry recycling collection, using specially marked sacks provided by the Council.

- Fortnightly green garden waste collection, three specially marked reusable bags provided by the
Council free of charge.

The waste and recycling should be presented near the curtilage of the property on allocated
collection days.

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 37



7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The site is within the developed area as designated in the Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan Saved Policies (September 2007). Residential development, in principle, is
acceptable within the developed area, subject to compliance with the policies within the
Unitary Development Saved Policies September 2007, The London Plan (2008) and
national policies.

However, there have been a number of key changes in the policy context, since the
adoption of the UDP (Saved Policies September 2007), the adopted SPD guidance and
the previously determined applications on this site. These include the adoption of The
London Plan (consolidated with alterations since 2004), the Letter to Chief Planning
Officers: Development on Garden Land dated 19/01/2010, The London Plan Interim
Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance adopted April 2010, and new Planning Policy
Statement (PPS) 3: Housing adopted June 2010.

In relation to National Policy the Letter to Chief Planning Officers clarifies that "there is no
presumption that previously developed land is necessarily suitable for housing, nor that all
of the curtilage should be developed" and commits to move this clarification to a more
prominent position within the PPS. It further clarifies that "the main focus of the
Government's position therefore is that local authorities are best placed to develop
policies and take decisions on the most suitable locations for housing and they can, if
appropriate, resist development on existing gardens". This guidance was published prior
to submission of this application and should be given appropriate weight in the
assessment of the proposal.

The London Plan Interim Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (April 2010) was
published following the national advice above and represents the Mayor of London's
guidance on how applications for development on garden land should be treated within
the London Region. The thrust of the guidance is that gardens contribute to the objectives
of a significant number of London Plan policies and these matters should be taken into
account when considering the principle of such developments.

The guidance requires that "In implementing London Plan housing policies and especially
Policy 3A.3, the Mayor will, and Boroughs and other partners are advised when
considering development proposals which entail the loss of garden land, to take full
account of the contribution of gardens to achievement of London Plan policies on:

* local context and character including the historic and built environment;

* safe, secure and sustainable environments;

* bio diversity;

* trees;

* green corridors and networks;

* flood risk;

* climate change including the heat island effect, and

* enhancing the distinct character of suburban London,

and carefully balance these policy objectives against the generally limited contribution
such developments can make toward achieving housing targets."

Following on from this, Policy 4B.8 emphasises the importance of local distinctiveness,
and ensuring proposed developments preserve or enhance local social, physical, cultural,
historical, environmental and economic characteristics.

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 38



Revised Planning Policy Statement 3: Housing, was published in April 2010 and, as
advised in the Letter to Chief Planning Officers, discussed above, clearly clarifies that not
all developed land is necessarily suitable for housing, nor that all of the curtilage should
be developed. It also makes it clear that well thought out design and layout which
integrates with and complements existing buildings and the surrounding local context is a
key consideration which needs to be taken into account when assessing proposals for
residential development.

The London Plan Interim Housing supplementary Planning Guidance, and revised
Planning Policy Statement 3 were both published prior to the submission of the
application. As such they also carry significant weight and whilst they do not introduce
additional policy, they do provide clarity on the interpretation of existing policies within the
London Plan. Whilst there is in general no objection to the principle of an intensification of
use on existing residential sites it is considered that in this instance the use of this side
garden area to provide a single storey dwelling unit in this location, with the resulting built
development and the necessary creation of additional areas of hardstanding with
associated pedestrian and vehicular access to the site, would result in a contrived,
cramped and out of character development that would be detrimental to the local and
historical context of the area, which is characterised by two storey semi-detached
properties with garages/driveways to the sides and retained front garden areas. When
balanced against the limited contribution the development would make toward achieving
housing targets in the borough it is considered that the principle of the proposed
residential development would be contrary to Policies 3A.3, 4B.1 and 4B.8 of the London
Plan, guidance within The London Plan Interim Housing Supplementary Planning
Guidance and Planning Policy Statement 3: Housing.
7.02 Density of the proposed development

Policy 3A.3 of the London Plan advises that boroughs should ensure that development
proposals achieve the highest possible intensity of use compatible with local context and
the site's public transport accessibility. The London Plan provides a density matrix to
establish a strategic framework for appropriate densities at different locations.

Table 3A.2 recommends that developments of detached houses on suburban residential
sites with a PTAL score of 1 should be within the ranges of 35-55 u/ha and 150-200 hr/ha.
The proposed density for the site would be approximately 86 habitable rooms per hectare
(hrpha), which is below the suggested London Plan thresholds. However, the proposal is
for a single, very small dwelling where the density of the proposal has limited value in
assessing its acceptability and its compliance with policies within the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007), The London Plan (2008) and
national policies is of greater relavance.
7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The application is adjacent to Eastcote Village Conservation Area, however, in relation to
the impact of a two storey dwelling on the site, the Inspector in the appeal decision
commented as follows:

"22. | agree with the Council that the appeal site is far enough away from the boundary of
the Eastcote Village Conservation Area for the appeal development not to have any
impact on its setting. | therefore do not see that saved UDP Policy BE4 is engaged.

The scheme would, therefore, not have any impact on the Eastcote Village Conservation
Area.
7.04 Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 39



7.05 Impact on the green belt

The application site lies immediately adjacent to the Green Belt which at this point, also
forms a site of Nature Conservation of Grade | Importance. Policy OL5 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) states that the Local
Planning Authority will normally only permit development adjacent to or conspicuous from
the Green Belt if it will not injure the visual amenities of the Green Belt. Clause 3.15 of
PPS2 also advises that the visual amenities of the Green Belt should not be injured by
proposals for development conspicuous from the Green Belt by reason of their siting,
materials or design.

However, in the considerations of the previous appeal for a two storey dwelling set in 1m
from this Green Belt boundary the inspector commented:

"16. The Green Belt land adjoining the appeal site is heavily wooded, effectively
preventing views of any significance either from or to the wider Green Belt. The dwellings
which currently lie adjacent to the Green Belt (12 and 16 Gladsdale Drive) have greater
separation from the Green Belt boundary, which would allow a softer transition than would
be possible at the appeal property, but at number 16 this space is used only for the
access drive to the garaging at the rear. The appeal development would be constructed
on land which is lower than the road, and significantly lower and therefore less
conspicuous than the maisonettes at 16 and 16A Gladsdale Drive.

17. | accept that there could be no meaningful landscaping in the 1 metre of separation
between the built development on the appeal site and the Green Belt boundary, but
effectively there is none at number 16 or adjacent to the turning area at the head of
Gladsdale Drive. In my view the appeal

development would not provide a significantly different or inferior context for the Green
Belt than that which exists in the area at the moment."

The current application seeks permission for a single storey dwelling set in 2m from the
Green Belt boundary and therefore in the context of the boundary with the Green Belt in
this area, the proposal would not have an adverse effect. As such the application is
considered to accord with Policy OLS of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007).

7.06 Environmental Impact

Not applicable to this application.
7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007
highlights the importance of designing new development to harmonise with the existing
street scene whilst Policy BE19 seeks to ensure that new development within residential
areas complements or improves the amenity and character of the area. Section 4.27 of
the SPD: Residential Layouts, states careful consideration should be given to building
lines, and these should relate well to the existing street pattern.

Planning Policy Statement 1 (PPS1) and the London Plan states that the appropriate
density of development depends on a balance between the full and effective use of
available housing land and the quality of the housing layout and design, its compatibility
with the density, form and spacing of surrounding development and the location
configuration and characteristics of the site.

The area generally comprises a mix of 2-storey detached and semi-detached housing on
reasonably large plots of land with landscaped gardens. The proposed single storey

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 40



property, particularly in relation to its siting and design and proximity to the site boundaries
is considered to compromise the existing open character of the area. The proposed
scheme is constrained on its site in comparison to the surrounding properties. As such, it
is considered that the proposed layout of the dwelling is not in keeping with the layout of
the adjoining residential properties. This view was confirmed, in the consideration of the
previous appeal for a two storey proposal on this site, the inspector commented that the
plot width of the site would be less than the norm for the road, the proposal would result in
the off road parking spaces for 2 vehicles on the frontage, whilst the norm for the street is
that of front gardens being retained with drives leading to garages to the sides, providing
good spaces between and due to the proposed layout, using the same building lines as
the adjacent properties, this would result in the proposed dwelling being out of character
as it would relate oddly to the street scene as it would not face the street with the front
elevation at an angle to the road.

Consequently, it is considered that the development would have an adverse impact on the
local distinctiveness of the area in terms of spacing, scale, massing and layout. As such,
the proposal would be contrary to Policies BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

7.08 Impact on neighbours

With regard to the impact of the amenities on the adjoining occupiers, Sections 4.9 of the
SPD: Residential Layouts, in relation to new dwellings, states all residential developments
and amenity space should receive adequate daylight and sunlight, including habitable
rooms and kitchens. The daylight and sunlight available to adjoining properties should be
adequately protected. Due to the single storey nature of the proposal and the distances to
the nearest residential properties it is not considered that a material loss of outlook or light
would result to those properties. Therefore the proposal would comply with policies BE20
and BE21 of the UDP (Saved Policies September 2007).

With regard to loss of privacy, the side facing openings shown on the elevation facing the
host dwelling (No.12) would be to serve a hallway and therefore could be conditioned to
be obscure glazed and non-opening below top vent and with regard to the remaining side
elevation this would look out over the adjoining Green Belt land and therefore would not
result in any loss of privacy to adjoining occupiers. Therefore the proposal would comply
with policy BE24 of the UDP (Saved Policies September 2007).

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

Section 4.7 of the SPD: Residential Layouts, states careful consideration should be given
to the design of the internal layout and that satisfactory indoor living space and amenities
should be provided. The proposed internal floor space for the new dwelling would be
51.4m2. The SPD states the minimum amount of floor space required for a 1-bedroom,
single storey house would be 50m2 and therefore the proposal would comply with this
advice.

With regard to the size of the garden, the SDP: Residential Layouts: Section 4.15 states
that a 1 bed house should have a minimum garden space of 40m2 and the proposal
would comply with this advice with a usable rear garden area of over 140m2 for the new
dwelling. Therefore the proposal would comply with Policy BE23 of the Hilingdon UDP
(Saved Policies, September 2007).

7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The proposal shows the provision of 2 off street parking spaces for the existing dwelling
and a further two spaces for the new dwelling, as such the proposal is considered to
comply with the Council's car parking standards and with policies AM7(ii) and AM14 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007).

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 41



7.11

712

713

7.14

7.15

7.16

747

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Urban design, access and security

As above
Disabled access

The proposal comprises a single storey building and as such level access could be
provided throughout and the Design and Access statement comments that the
development would comply with Part M of Building Regulations. As such, the proposal is
considered to comply with Policy 3A.4 of the London Plan and the Council's HDAS:
Accessible Hillingdon.

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

The Council's Landscape Officer has not raised objection to the proposal in terms of the
impact of the proposal on protected trees and in this respect the proposal is considered
acceptable. The issue of landscaping provision within the site and the impact of this is
discussed in Section 7.05.

As such, the proposal is considered to comply with Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan (Saved Policies, September 2007).

Sustainable waste management

Section 4.40 - 4.41 of the SPD: Residential layouts deals with waste management and
specifies bin stores should be provided for, and wheelie bin stores should not be further
than 9m from the edge of the highway, no details have been provided in respect of this
issue however it is considered should the application be successful these matters could
be dealt with by way of a condition.

Renewable energy / Sustainability

It has been considered that all the proposed habitable rooms, would have an adequate
outlook and source of natural light, and therefore comply with the SPD: New Residential
Layouts: Section 4.9 states and Policy 4A.3 of the London Plan (2008).

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Policy OE7 of the UDP (Saved Policies September 2007) considers areas that could be
liable to flooding. The Environment Agency do not object to the proposal subject to an
informative. As such the proposal is considered to accord with policy OE7 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Polices September 2007).

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Comments on Public Consultations

With regard to points 1 the site is not within the Green Belt and the impact of the proposal
on the Green Belt is considered above. Points 3, 6, and 14 are not material planning
considerations. The other points raised are covered in the main report.

Planning Obligations

Presently S106 contributions for education are only sought for developments if the net
gain of habitable rooms exceeds six. The proposal would result in the provision of 3
additional habitable rooms and therefore no contribution would be sought in this instance.
Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
Other Issues

None

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 42



When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware of
the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status".

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

The proposal, due to its siting and position would result in a development which would
appear cramped and out of context in relation to the design and pattern of the existing
residential development, resulting in a detrimental impact on the character of the wider
area. The principle of intensifying the residential use of the site through the loss of the
side garden area would also have a detrimental impact on the character, appearance and
local distinctiveness of the area. As such, the proposal is considered contrary to Policies
BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies
September 2007), the Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts, the
Supplementary Planning Document Accessible Hillingdon January 2010, and the London
Plan (2008).

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Polices September 2007

HDAS: Residential Layouts

The London Plan (2008)

Planning Policy Guidance Note No 2: Green Belts

Supplementary Planning Guidance: Educational Facilities

Planning Policy Statement 3: Housing (June 2010)

The London Plan: Interim Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (April 2010).

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 43



Contact Officer: Catherine Hems Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 44



7
S .
- ’
———— .
I : PN
' .-
- -, - \
” a. ‘ - \
AR . -~ \
L -~ [N - .
. hES . - \
. N . .-
, N N - \
N N - \
(i 3

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2009

Q
. Y
Site Address LONDON BOROUGH
Land Adjacent to OF HILLINGDON
12 Gladsdale Drive, Planning, Environment
Eastcote & Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
: C oo Scale s
Planning Application Ref: } .
65761/APP/2010/2707 1:1,250 \
Planning Committee Date ‘W ’!t‘
North Page 45 | February 2011 | TFILLINGDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 46



Agenda Iltem 8

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address 56 THE DRIVE ICKENHAM

Development: Two storey six-bedroom detached dwelling with basement level and habitable
roofspace with detached garage to front, involving the demolition of existing
dwelling.

LBH Ref Nos: 4496/APP/2009/2765

Drawing Nos: 1:1250 Location Plan
Design and Access Statement
08/38/3
08/38/02 Rev. E

Date Plans Received:  23/12/2009 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 23/12/2009
Date Application Valid: 01/02/2010 01/02/2010
28/10/2010

1. SUMMARY

This application is a re-submission of a previously approved scheme
(4496/APP/2009/1285) for a replacement house on this plot. The current scheme differs
from the house previously approved in that its depth would be increased from 8.85m to
10.1m, it would have a larger lightwell at the rear to serve the basement, the ridge height
of the crown roof has been increased, there have been minor alterations to the
elevations, a reduction in the size of the dormers and an additional rooflight facing No.58
The Drive.

The originally submitted plans with this application showed the house increasing in depth
by 2m as compared to the previously approved scheme (4496/APP/2009/1285) which
would have been the same depth as the house originally proposed on the previous
application before that application was amended. The current scheme has also now been
amended, reducing the increase in depth of the house to 1.25m. A number of amended
plans have also been received, in an attempt to show the adjoining properties correctly,
the latest plan of which (08/38/02 Rev. E) is considered to be sufficiently accurate and
upon which neighbouring properties have been re-consulted.

The revised scheme is considered acceptable in terms of the character and appearance
of the street scene and the amenities of surrounding occupiers, including the amenities
of potential occupiers of a new house that has been granted permission at the rear of the
site but has yet to be built. Furthermore, the scheme would afford suitable living
accommodation for its future occupiers. It is recommended accordingly.

2, RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 T8 Time Limit - full planning application 3 years

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 47



To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 M1 Details/Samples to be Submitted

No development shall take place until details and/or samples of all materials, colours and
finishes to be used on all external surfaces have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

3 OoM1 Development in accordance with Approved Plans

The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in strict accordance with the
plans hereby approved unless consent to any variation is first obtained in writing from the
Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that the external appearance of the development is satisfactory and complies

with Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

4 OoM2 Levels

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be
shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point. Thereafter the development shall not
be carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in
accordance with policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

5 OM13 Demolition Protocols

The applicant is to prepare a selective programme (or demolition protocol) to
demonstrate that the most valuable or potentially contaminating materials and fittings can
be removed from the site safely and intact for later re-use or processing, which is to be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of demolition work.

REASON

To establish an 'audit trail' for demolition materials based on an established Demolition
Protocol which will encourage more effective resource management in demolition and
new builds, in accordance with London Plan (February 2008) Policies 4A.30 and 4A.31.

6 OM19 Construction Management Plan

Prior to development commencing, the applicant shall submit a demolition and
construction management plan to the Local Planning Authority for its approval. The plan
shall detail:

(i) The phasing of development works
(i) The hours during which development works will occur (please refer to informative 115
for maximum permitted working hours).

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 48



(i) A programme to demonstrate that the most valuable or potentially contaminating
materials and fittings can be removed safely and intact for later re-use or processing.
(iv)Measures to prevent mud and dirt tracking onto footways and adjoining roads
(including wheel washing facilities).

(v) Traffic management and access arrangements (vehicular and pedestrian) and
parking provisions for contractors during the development process (including measures
to reduce the numbers of construction vehicles accessing the site during peak hours).

(vi) Measures to reduce the impact of the development on local air quality and dust
through minimising emissions throughout the demolition and construction process.

(vii) The storage of demolition/construction materials on site.

The approved details shall be implemented and maintained throughout the duration of
the demolition and construction process.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas in accordance with Policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies 2007).

7 M5 Means of Enclosure - details

Before the development is commenced, details of boundary fencing or other means of
enclosure shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The approved means of enclosure shall be erected before the development is occupied
and shall be permanently retained thereafter.

REASON
To safeguard privacy to adjoining properties in accordance with Policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

8 RPD1 No Additional Windows or Doors

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification), no additional windows, doors or other openings shall be
constructed in the walls or roof slopes of the development hereby approved facing 54
and 58 The Drive.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

9 RPD2 Obscured Glazing and Non-Opening Windows (a)

The rooflights facing 58 The Drive shall be glazed with permanently obscured glass and
non-opening below a height of 1.8 metres taken from internal finished floor level for so
long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

10 RPD5 Restrictions on Erection of Extensions and Outbuildings

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification), no extension to any dwellinghouse(s) nor any garage(s), shed(s) or
other outbuilding(s) shall be erected without the grant of further specific permission from

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 49



the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

So that the Local Planning Authority can ensure that any such development would not
result in a significant loss of residential amenity in accordance with policy BE21 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

11 RPD9 Enlargement to Houses - Roof Additions/Alterations

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification), no addition to or enlargement of the roof of any dwellinghouse shall
be constructed.

REASON

To preserve the character and appearance of the development and protect the visual
amenity of the area and to ensure that any additions to the roof are in accordance with
policy BE15 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

12 TL2 Trees to be retained

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the
Local Planning Authority.

If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely damaged during construction,
or is found to be seriously diseased or dying another tree, hedge or shrub shall be
planted at the same place and shall be of a size and species to be agreed in writing by
the Local Planning Authority and shall be planted in the first planting season following the
completion of the development or the occupation of the buildings, whichever is the
earlier.

Where damage is less severe, a schedule of remedial works necessary to ameliorate the
effect of damage by tree surgery, feeding or groundwork shall be agreed in writing with
the Local Planning Authority. New planting should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery
Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and Shrubs'. Remedial work should be carried out
to BS 3998 (1989) 'Recommendations for Tree Work' and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of
Practice for General Landscape Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work
shall be completed in the first planting season following the completion of the
development or the occupation of the buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON

To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and to comply with Section 197 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

13 TL3 Protection of trees during site clearance and development

Prior to the commencement of any site clearance or construction work, detailed drawings
showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root areas/crown spread of
trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be submitted to the Local
Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or development shall be
commenced until these drawings have been approved and the fencing has been erected

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 50



in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum height of 1.5 metres. The fencing
shall be retained in position until development is completed. The area within the
approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the course of the works and
in particular in these areas:

1. There shall be no changes in ground levels;

2. No materials or plant shall be stored;

3. No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.

4. No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.

5. No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that trees and other vegetation to be retained are not damaged during
construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with policy BE38 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

14 TL5 Landscaping Scheme - (full apps where details are reserved)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme providing full details of hard
and soft landscaping works has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority and these works shall be carried out as approved. The scheme shall
include: -

- Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

- Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

- Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities where
appropriate,

- Implementation programme.

The scheme shall also include details of the following: -

- Proposed finishing levels or contours,

- Means of enclosure,

- Car parking layouts,

- Other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas,

- Hard surfacing materials proposed,

- Minor artefacts and structures (such as play equipment, furniture, refuse storage, signs,
or lighting),

- Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground (e.g. drainage,
power cables or communications equipment, indicating lines, manholes or associated
structures),

- Retained historic landscape features and proposals for their restoration where relevant.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality in compliance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007).

15 TL6 Landscaping Scheme - implementation

All hard and soft landscaping shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
landscaping scheme and shall be completed within the first planting and seeding
seasons following the completion of the development or the occupation of the buildings,
whichever is the earlier period.

The new planting and landscape operations should comply with the requirements
specified in BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and Shrubs'

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 51



and in BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape Operations (Excluding
Hard Surfaces)'. Thereafter, the areas of hard and soft landscaping shall be permanently
retained.

Any tree, shrub or area of turfing or seeding shown on the approved landscaping scheme
which within a period of 5 years from the completion of development dies, is removed or
in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes seriously damaged or diseased
shall be replaced in the same place in the next planting season with another such tree,
shrub or area of turfing or seeding of similar size and species unless the Local Planning
Authority first gives written consent to any variation.

REASON

To ensure that the landscaped areas are laid out and retained in accordance with the
approved plans in order to preserve and enhance the visual amenities of the locality in
compliance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

16 H7 Parking Arrangements (Residential)

The parking areas (including where appropriate, the marking out of parking spaces)
including any garages and car ports shown on the approved plans, shall be constructed,
designated and allocated for the sole use of the occupants prior to the occupation of the
development and thereafter be permanently retained and used for no other purpose.

REASON

To ensure that an appropriate level of car parking provision is provided on site in
accordance with Policy AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007) and Chapter 3C of the London Plan. (February 2008).

17 SUS4 Code for Sustainable Homes details

No development shall take place until an initial design stage assessment by an
accredited assessor for the Code for Sustainable Homes and an accompanying interim
certificate stating that each dwelling has been designed to achieve level 3 of the Code
has been submitted to, and approved in writing, by the local planning authority. No
dwelling shall be occupied until it has been issued with a final Code certificate of
compliance.

REASON
To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development identified in policies 4A.1 and
4A.3 of the London Plan (February 2008).

18 SUS5 Sustainable Urban Drainage

No development shall take place on site until details of the incorporation of sustainable
urban drainage have been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The approved details shall thereafter be installed on site and thereafter
permanently retained and maintained.

REASON

To ensure that surface water run off is handled as close to its source as possible in
compliance with policy 4A.14 of the London Plan (February 2008) and to ensure the
development does not increase the risk of flooding contrary to Policy OE8 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and PPS25.

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 52



19 DIS5 Design to Lifetime Homes Standards & Wheelchair Standards

The proposed house hereby approved shall be built in accordance with 'Lifetime Homes'
Standards as set out in the Council's Supplementary Planning Document 'Accessible
Hillingdon'.

REASON

To ensure that sufficient housing stock is provided to meet the needs of disabled and
elderly people in accordance with London Plan (February 2008) Policies 3A.5, 3A.13,
3A.17 and 4B.5.

20 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Prior to the commencement of works on site, a construction method statement for the
basement shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
This is to provide full details of the basement's construction, and the sequence of
development on site, including excavation work, soil removal and storage, and how
drainage issues will be dealt with on site. The scheme shall be implemented in strict
accordance with the construction method statement.

REASON

To safeguard the amenity of surrounding properties and to ensure that surface water
drainage of the site and groundwater is not impeded so that the development does not
increase the risk of flooding in accordance with Policies OE1 and OES8 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and PPS25.

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national

guidance.
PPS1 Delivering Sustainable Development
PPS3 Housing
BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.
BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 53



BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

LPP 4A.3 London Plan Policy 4A.3 - Sustainable design and construction

HDAS Residential Layouts
Accessible Hillingdon

LPP 3A.3 London Plan Policy 3A.3 - Maximising the potential of sites

LPP 3A5 London Plan Policy 3A.5 - Housing Choice

LPP 3A.6 London Plan Policy 3A.6 - Quality of new housing provision

LPP 4A.1 London Plan Policy 4A.1 - Tackling climate change

LPP 4A.7 London Plan Policy 4A.7 - Renewable Energy

LPP 4A.14 London Plan Policy 4A.14 -

LPP 4B.1 London Plan Policy 4B.1 - Design principles for a compact city.

LPP 4B.3 London Plan Policy 4B.3 - Enhancing the quality of the public realm

LPP 4B.5 London Plan Policy 4B.5 - Creating an inclusive environment.

LP SPG London Plan: Interim Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance,
April 2010

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

PPS25 Development & Flood Risk

3 11 Building to Approved Drawing

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

4 13 Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at
least 6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed
plans must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control,
3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

5 15 Party Walls

The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal agreement
from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:

carry out work to an existing party wall;

build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;

in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining building.
Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building owner
and are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls. The Building
Control Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any necessary agreements

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 54



with the adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by the Council should be taken as
removing the necessity for the building owner to comply fully with the Party Wall Act.
Further information and advice is to be found in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 -
explanatory booklet" published by the ODPM, available free of charge from the Planning
& Community Services Reception Desk, Level 3, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

6 16 Property Rights/Rights of Light

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override
property rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission does not
empower you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the specific consent of the
owner. If you require further information or advice, you should consult a solicitor.

7 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with: -

A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the hours of
08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours of 08.00 hours
and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on Sundays, Bank and
Public Holidays.

B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public health
nuisance.

D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02, Civic
Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek prior approval
under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying
out construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

8 134 Building Regulations 'Access to and use of buildings’

Compliance with Building Regulations 'Access to and use of buildings' and Disability
Discrimination Act 1995 for commercial and residential development.

You are advised that the scheme is required to comply with either:-

- The Building Regulations 2000 Approved Document Part M 'Access to and use of
buildings', or with

- BS 8300:2001 Design of buildings and their approaches to meet the needs of disabled
people - Code of practice. AMD 15617 2005, AMD 15982 2005.

These documents (which are for guidance) set minimum standards to allow residents,
workers and visitors, regardless of disability, age or gender, to gain access to and within
buildings, and to use their facilities and sanitary conveniences.

You may also be required make provisions to comply with the Disability Discrimination

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 55



Act 1995. The Act gives disabled people various rights. Under the Act it is unlawful for
employers and persons who provide services to members of the public to discriminate
against disabled people by treating them less favourably for any reason related to their
disability, or by failing to comply with a duty to provide reasonable adjustments. This
duty can require the removal or modification of physical features of buildings provided it
is reasonable.

The duty to make reasonable adjustments can be effected by the Building Regulation
compliance. For compliance with the DDA please refer to the following guidance: -

- The Disability Discrimination Act 1995. Available to download from www.opsi.gov.uk

- Disability Rights Commission (DRC) Access statements. Achieving an inclusive
environment by ensuring continuity throughout the planning, design and management of
building and spaces, 2004. Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

- Code of practice. Rights of access. Goods, facilities, services and premises. Disability
discrimination act 1995, 2002. ISBN 0 11702 860 6. Available to download from
www.drc-gb.org.

- Creating an inclusive environment, 2003 & 2004 - What it means to you. A guide for
service providers, 2003. Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

This is not a comprehensive list of Building Regulations legislation. For further
information you should contact Building Control on 01895 250804/5/6.

9 145 Discharge of Conditions

Your attention is drawn to condition(s) 2, 4, 5, 6, 7, 13, 14, 17, 18 and 20 which must be
discharged prior to the commencement of works. You will be in breach of planning
control should you commence these works prior to the discharge of this/these
condition(s). The Council may consider taking enforcement action to rectify the breach of
condition(s). For further information and advice contact - Planning & Community
Services, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel: 01895 250230).

10 146 Renewable Resources

To promote the development of sustainable building design and construction methods,
you are encouraged to investigate the use of renewable energy resources which do not
produce any extra carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions, including solar, geothermal and fuel
cell systems, and use of high quality insulation.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The site comprises a detached two storey dwelling, with a detached garage on the side
boundary with No. 58, attached to the house by a car port canopy. The dwelling has also
been extended to the rear with a single storey rear extension. There are a number of trees
on and close to site, and although none of them are protected by TPO or conservation
area designation, they do contribute to the overall character of the area.

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 56



Dwellings are located on either side of the application site, while the rear boundary abuts
the garden of No. 2 Highfield Drive. It is noted that part of this garden adjoining the
application site has full planning permission for the erection of a detached house.

The Drive and Highfield Drive are characterised by substantial detached houses of varying
size and design on predominately large plots. The houses within The Drive have a variety
of footprints but conform to a loose building line set well back from the road screened by
hedges and low fences with generous driveways between.

The subject site lies within the 'developed area' as identified in the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan (Saved Policies, September 2007).

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal is for the demolition of the existing house, garage and car port and the
erection of a replacement two storey, six-bedroom house, with attached side garage,
basement accommodation and rooms in the roof and associated parking in the front
garden.

The proposed house would be 11.65m wide (15.2m including the single storey attached
side garage) and 10.1m deep. A 4.05m wide, two storey front gable feature would project
forward by 1m from the main front elevation of the house. A small crown roof is proposed,
5.7m high to eaves and 8.9m high to its ridge with two flat roofed rear dormers, 1.4m wide
and 1.55m high. A basement is also proposed, extending the full width and depth of the
house and garage, served by a 3.8m deep x 7.2m wide rear light well, with external stairs
giving access to the rear garden.

The house would comprise a games room, cinema, wine store, WC and plant room in the
basement, a kitchen/breakfast room, lounge, dining room, study, utility room and garage
on the ground floor, 5 bedrooms (1 with en-suite) and bathroom on the first floor and a
sixth bedroom with en-suite in the roof space. Two off-street car parking spaces are
shown on the drive outside the garage.

The main differences between this scheme and the previously approved scheme (ref.
4496/APP/2009/1285) are as follows:

* The depth of the main house has increased by 1.25m from 8.85m to 10.1m,

* The overall height of the crown roof has increased by 0.3m to 8.9m,

* The single storey side garage has been set back from the rear elevation of the house,

* The depth of the rear lightwell has been increased from 3.3m to 3.8m which would result
in an overall 1.75m further projection into the rear garden.

* An additional side rooflight facing No. 58 The Drive,

* Minor elevational alterations, including brickwork on the ground floor and quoins omitted
from first floor.

3.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History

A scheme for a replacement house (4496/APP/2008/2544) was initially refused on the
15th October 2008 due to: 1) the house being an obtrusive form of development that
would be out of keeping with the general scale and character of other detached dwellings
in the area, 2) overdevelopment of the site with excessive site coverage of buildings and
hard surfaces, 3) overshadowing of and loss of light to the neighbouring property at No.
58 The Drive and would result in an overdominant/visually obtrusive development in

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 57



relation to the neighbouring properties, and 4) the dormer windows would represent a
visually intrusive form of development detrimental to the appearance of the neighbouring
properties and character and appearance of the street scene.

A subsequent revised application (4496/APP/2009/1285) for the erection of a two storey
five bedroom house, with basement accommodation and habitable roofspace and
associated parking spaces at the front, involving the demolition of the existing dwelling
was considered to have overcome all the original reasons for refusal and was approved
on 10th August 2009.

Also of relevance to the consideration of this application are two applications that relate to
adjoining land at No. 2 Highfield Drive, namely:-

19210/APP/2006/1619 - Renewal of outline permission for a detached dwellinghouse -
Approved 28th July 2006.

65653/APP/2009/1146 - Full planning application for a two storey six-bedroom house with
habitable roofspace and associated parking and vehicular crossover, Approved 24th July
2009.

Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.10 To seek to ensure that development does not adversely affect the amenity and
the character of the area.

PT1.16 To seek to ensure enough of new residential units are designed to wheelchair and

mobility standards.

Part 2 Policies:

PPS1
PPS3
BE13
BE19
BE20
BE21
BE22
BE23
BE24
BE38

AM14
AM7

Delivering Sustainable Development

Housing

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

New development and car parking standards.
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011

PART 1

- MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 58



LPP 4A.3 London Plan Policy 4A.3 - Sustainable design and construction

HDAS Residential Layouts
Accessible Hillingdon

LPP 3A.3 London Plan Policy 3A.3 - Maximising the potential of sites

LPP 3A.5 London Plan Policy 3A.5 - Housing Choice

LPP 3A.6 London Plan Policy 3A.6 - Quality of new housing provision

LPP 4A.1 London Plan Policy 4A.1 - Tackling climate change

LPP 4A.7 London Plan Policy 4A.7 - Renewable Energy

LPP 4A.14 London Plan Policy 4A.14 -

LPP 4B.1 London Plan Policy 4B.1 - Design principles for a compact city.
LPP 4B.3 London Plan Policy 4B.3 - Enhancing the quality of the public realm

LPP 4B.5 London Plan Policy 4B.5 - Creating an inclusive environment.

LP SPG London Plan: Interim Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance, April 2010

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

PPS25 Development & Flood Risk

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1  Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees
Original Plans

15 neighbouring properties have been consulted. A petition with 22 signatories has been received,
together with individual responses from 6 properties.

The petition states:

'We, the undersigned, fully support Mr & Mrs Alexander in their objective of ensuring that their
wishes are heard and understood by the London Borough of Hillingdon's North Planning
Committee, when considering the proposal, by voicing concerns, and asking the North Planning
Committee to refuse the application.’

The individual responses raise the following concerns:

(i) Area characterised by detached houses dating from the 1930s of considerable charm on
spacious plots with significant gaps between them. This character is being eroded through
redevelopment of existing houses and infill plots. Proposal contrary to PPS1, paragraph 34 as fails
to improve the character and quality of the area;

(i) Proposed house is brash in appearance and inappropriate in its suburban context, representing
overdevelopment (a 150sq m house is being replaced with a 485sq m property) with a minimum of
garden space. Front elevation is very symmetrical with larger windows as compared to adjoining
properties. Proposed house and garage would occupy 4m more of frontage than existing house,

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 59



leaving only 1.5m gaps to side boundaries. Massing of the house would appear more bulky and
overbearing in street scene with apex of roof replaced with leading edge of the flat 'crown’ roof.
Replacement of detached with an integral garage would further increase cramped appearance of
the site. Scale and massing of the development is out of keeping with area that has no other
properties in this vicinity of a similar proportion or with a crown roof;

(iii) Paragraph 3.3 of the HDAS: 'Residential Layouts' advises that the redevelopment of more than
10% of the properties on a residential street is unlikely to be acceptable. The Drive is around 1km
long, with many of the houses having been replaced, notably at Nos. 1, 3, 35, 39, 41. No. 10 has
permission for redevelopment and Nos. 33, 43 and 56 have applied for redevelopment. Houses
have also been built to the rear of Nos. 7 and 9. Great care needs to be taken when considering
replacement housing schemes to ensure houses preserve area;

(iv) Proposed house would be to south of No. 58 and double the depth of building, with the integral
garage extending 6m further back than the existing detached garage which aligns with the rear wall
at No. 58. Combined with the long roof ridge and dormers, the proposal would have an
unreasonably overbearing impact upon No. 58 and lead to a direct loss of sunlight from
approximately midday onwards. Two photo montages have been submitted:;

(v) Rear dormer windows will overlook adjoining rear gardens, bedrooms and living rooms;

(vi) The statutory distances/sightlines of 21.5m under the UDP are not being observed by the new
application in relation to the approved plans for a new house at No. 2 Highfield Drive
(65653/APP/2009/1146). Proposal will be overwhelming from new house;

(vii) Proposal will block view from neighbouring property;

(viii) The Drive has a number of springs running downhill towards the golf course. The proposed
basement could interfere with water drainage;

(ix) Site plans for this and previous applications are inaccurate, confusing and materially incorrect.
For instance, the outline of the existing dwelling on plans for the current application are incorrect
and vary considerably from plans for the previous application;

(x) No topographic and/or tree survey has been submitted. The proposed house would damage the
roots of a large pine tree on the side boundary;

(xi) Revised plans Rev. A of the 10/08/09 on previous application (2009/1285) were not amended
correctly and not published on the website with appropriate scale drawings;

(xii) Plans on previous application (4496/APP/2009/1285) were amended on advice by officers to
reduce depth of house by 2 metres. The applicant is ignoring this advice and now trying to achieve
a more valuable permission by stealth;

(xiii) Design and Access Statement does not address what has changed on this application or
provide any further information (eg. sunlight study). We believe Council's objection, based on
damage to neighbours amenity should be maintained and current application refused;

(xiv) Applicant ignores condition 5 of previous permission which requires rear dormers to be re-
designed. Flat roof dormers proposed do not satisfy design guidance and are sub-standard;

(xv) Proposal with basement would require considerable soil disturbance. Unduly large basement
would impact upon the amenity of neighbours by adding considerably to the build time, vastly
increasing noise and disturbance with digging equipment and earth would have to be removed by
lorry. Basement close to boundary of No. 58 would undoubtedly cause disturbance and
considerable worry;

(xvi) Although ownership is not a planning matter, most of the trees and shrubs on the boundary
with No. 58 are not owned or under the control of the applicant. The area of shrubs and trees in the
front garden on the boundary with No. 58 on plan 08/38/02c are in a sketchy manner and is
misleading.

Ickenham Residents' Association:
The Association wishes to draw your attention to our previous two letters of objection - copies

enclosed - in connection with applications 2008/2544 (letter dated 20/09/08) and 2009/1285 (letter
06/07/09), which in our opinion still contain valid comments.

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 60



The first thing to note is that, whilst 2009/1285 (a revised application) was approved, the revision
was in relation to the depth of the building - see note A Aug 09 depth reduced on plan no. May 09
08/38/02.

The current application omits that comment and only states note B May 09 08/38/02 'Nov 09 Depth
of House Revised' and C Jan 10 Trees Details Added, and it would appear to us that the previous
revision, reducing the depth, has now been removed and put back to the situation before the last
approved revision.

We are finding it extremely difficult to relate the location of the existing house (shown dotted) on the
plans in relation to the neighbouring buildings, as it appears to us that it has moved back in the
current application (2009/2765) to being in line with the rear building line of no. 54 from that shown
in the previous approved revised application (2009/1285) being well set in from the rear building
line of no. 54.

The outline of an existing building CANNOT possibly move! We would therefore ask to consider
very carefully the accuracy of the drawing submitted.

The original approval (2009/1285) was for a smaller footprint. Now this current application goes
back to the previously REFUSED (2008/2544) over-dominant footprint.

We would also ask you to check that the conditions in the recent approval regarding the
dimensions of the rear dormers windows are adhered to. We have no way of assessing this point
from the drawings.

The description of the current planning application states a detached garage in front, whereas the
Design and Access Statement indicates:

Page 2, PROPOSAL, paragraph 2 detached garage
Page 2, PROPOSAL, paragraph 3 integral garage
Page 4, ACCESS, paragraph 1 integral garage.

The drawing shows an attached garage to the side. Having a door to the main house, this could be
interpreted as integral, we guess. The Association is confused as to what type of garage is really
proposed.

In view of all of the above and the difficulty we have had in interpreting the location of this proposal
in relation to existing neighbouring premises we rely on your planning team's expertise to arrive at
the correct conclusion.

The Association objects to this further application.
The Association of the Residents' of The Drive:

The proposed plans are considered to be overdevelopment of the site. The applicant was
requested back in November 2009 to reduce the size of the property, on the original scheme ref
(4496/APP/2009/1285). This was done and approved. This new application has gone back to the
original scheme which blighted the neighbours properties. Drawing No. 08/38/02 revision ¢ shows
the existing property larger than it actually is. It shows the rear building in line with 54 which it is
not. This can be demonstrated by the approved planning scheme 2009/1285, which clearly shows
the existing property forward of 54 to the rear. The Association of The Drive at a committee
meeting have voted against this proposal.

Ward Councillor:

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 61



The neighbours advise that the site plan submitted shows in particular the position of the rear
existing property relative to the proposed dwelling house boundary in the incorrect position. May |
request that this application be determined by committee. In addition, may | also request that the
case officer visits the site to ensure that the submitted drawings truly reflect the developers
intention, and that | receive feedback.

Amended Plan received on 29/10/10 (Rev. E)

15 neighbouring properties have been consulted. Individual responses from 2 properties has been
received, making the following comments:

(i) The position of the neighbouring properties has changed yet again from the previous
amendments on drawings designated B, C and D. The first application which was approved
(drawing designated A) also had significant discrepancies in the position of the neighbouring
properties, particularly No. 58. It has become very frustrating to judge where the proposed
development starts and ends.

(i) On previous application, a topographic survey was required as a condition of the planning
approval. This is far from ideal as once a decision has been made, if any discrepancies are found,
it would be difficult for the Council to do anything. The Council insisted on a topographical survey at
No. 2 Highfield Drive before permission was granted. Given background, it would seem reasonable
to ask for a topographical survey before a decision is made, also showing previously approved
scheme;

(iii) No. 56 is coming up for auction on the 8/12/10;

(iv) As adjoining resident, have not been notified of latest plans.

Ickenham Residents' Association:

With reference to your email notification on 09/11/10, the Association expected to download the
amended proposals from the LBH website in the usual way from your weekly list of new/amended
applications, but to no avail. On checking today, we established from the application details on the
LBH website that

- one amended proposed floor plan had been recorded on 18/08/10 (no official notification
received),
- one amended proposed floor plan had been received on 29/10/10 (notification 09/11/10).

Looking at the different floor plans submitted, originally proposed and amended, the outline of no.
54 in relation to the proposed dwelling at no. 56 seems to be moving all the time and we repeat our
doubts at the accuracy of these drawings and the importance that your planning team pays special
attention to this.

We would also ask you to carefully scrutinise the footprint of the submitted drawings against the
ones for 2008/2544 refused on 15/10/08.

We again attach our previous letters of objection plus a pdf file with all proposed floor plans
submitted so far.

In view of all the above and the difficulty in interpreting the location of this proposal in relation to
neighbours either side we have to relay on your planning team's expertise to arrive at the correct
conclusion.

The current situation in relation to this vagueness as to the exact siting leaves us no option but to
object, as previously.

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 62



Internal Consultees
Urban Design/Conservation Officer:

Having considered the current scheme, it is very similar to that previously approved. There are,
however, some minor changes that are improvements in design terms ie smaller dormers and a
reduced area of crown roof. There are, therefore, no objections to the current proposal.

Trees and Landscape Officer:
Original Comments:

This site is not covered by a TPO, or inside a Conservation Area. There are no trees/shrubs of
merit on this site, however the applicant is proposing to retain some of the existing vegetation, and
the plans indicate that new vegetation is to be planted. Therefore, subject to conditions TL1, TL2,
TL3, TL5, and TL6, this scheme is considered acceptable in terms of the Saved Policy BE38 of the
UDP.

Revised Comments:

Further to our discussion last week, | re-visited the site to re-inspect the Lawson cypress, which is
in the rear garden of 58 The Drive and borders 56.

The Cypress is in poor condition, is in decline, is a low value tree and is not a constraint in terms of
the Saved Policy BE38.

The applicant has a common law right to cut back the branches/roots to the boundary line and this
will have little impact on the tree's health or visual amenity. If there are concerns for the tree's well-
being, it would be quite straight forward to protect the tree during construction by erecting fencing
around the root protection area (RPA) of the tree. Ground protection could also be used. The tree's
stem is approximately 300 mm in diameter and, therefore, the radius of the RPA will measure about
3.5m from the centre of the stem.

If protection for the tree is required, the measures outlined above should be shown on the plans.

With regards to landscaping, the plans show that some of the existing vegetation is to be retained,
and that new soft landscaping is to be added. The scheme appears to conform to HDAS guidelines
(to ensure that 25% of the front garden remains soft landscaped). Further details of species to be
used, and materials to be used for car parking area, should be provided, which can be dealt with by
condition.

Therefore, subject to conditions TL2, TL3, TL5 (including details of hardstanding driveway to
conform to SUDS) and TL6, this scheme is considered acceptable in terms of the Saved Policy
BE38 of the UDP.

Education Services:

There would be no requirement for an education contribution from the replacement house as the
child yields cancel each other out.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

This is an established residential area where there would be no objection in principle to
the erection of a replacement dwelling, providing at least a similar level of residential

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 63



accommodation were to be provided and subject to other relevant policies in the saved
UDP and design considerations.

Additional guidance on development in rear gardens and the interpretation of related
policies has recently been published and is a material consideration in assessing the
principle of this development.

Key changes in the policy context include the Letter to Chief Planning Officers:
Development on Garden Land dated 19/01/2010, The London Plan Interim Housing
Supplementary Planning Guidance April 2010, and new Planning Policy Statement (PPS)
3: Housing adopted June 2010.

In relation to National Policy, the Letter to Chief Planning Officers clarifies that "there is no
presumption that previously developed land is necessarily suitable for housing, nor that all
of the curtilage should be developed" and commits to move this clarification to a more
prominent position within the PPS. It further clarifies that "the main focus of the
Government's position therefore is that local authorities are best placed to develop
policies and take decisions on the most suitable locations for housing and they can, if
appropriate, resist development on existing gardens". This guidance was published prior
to submission of the application and should be given appropriate weight in the
assessment of the application.

The London Plan Interim Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (April 2010) was
published following the national advice above and represents the Mayor of London's
guidance on how applications for development on garden land should be treated within
the London Region. The thrust of the guidance is that back gardens contribute to the
objectives of a significant number of London Plan policies and these matters should be
taken into account when considering the principle of such developments.

The guidance requires that "In implementing London Plan housing policies and especially
Policy 3A.3, the Mayor will, and Boroughs and other partners are advised when
considering development proposals which entail the loss of garden land, to take full
account of the contribution of gardens to achievement of London Plan policies on:

* local context and character including the historic and built environment;

* safe, secure and sustainable environments;

* bio-diversity;

* trees;

* green corridors and networks;

* flood risk;

* climate change including the heat island effect, and

* enhancing the distinct character of suburban London,

and carefully balance these policy objectives against the generally limited contribution
such developments can make toward achieving housing targets."

Notably, revised Planning Policy Statement 3: Housing, was published in June 2010 and,
as advised in the Letter to Chief Planning Officers, discussed above, clearly clarifies that
not all developed land is necessarily suitable for housing, nor that all of the curtilage
should be developed. It also makes it clear that well thought out design and layout which
integrates with and complements existing buildings and the surrounding local context is a
key consideration which needs to be taken into account when assessing proposals for
residential development.

The key policy considerations are discussed in greater detail within the relevant sections

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 64



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.06

7.07

of this report. However, in this instance, the proposal is for a replacement dwelling that
would not significantly take up more of the garden space on this plot and it is therefore
considered that an objection in principle could not be raised to the proposal based upon
the new guidance.

Density of the proposed development

The London Plan seeks to maximise the efficient use of land, whilst having regard to the
character of the area and the restraints to development imposed by the availability of
public transport. The proposal represents a density of 13.9 units per hectare (u/ha) and
181 habitable rooms per hectare (hr/ha) which is below the unit density range advocated
by Table 3A.2 of the London Plan for suburban areas with a PTAL score of 1a (35 - 55
u/ha and 150 - 200 hr/ha). However, it is considered that given the spacious character of
The Drive, the low unit density of the proposal would not justify a reason for refusal.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to this application.
Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application.
Environmental Impact

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

In terms of the character and appearance of the area, the currently proposed scheme
does not differ significantly from the previously approved scheme (4496/APP/2009/1285),
the main changes being the increase in depth of the main house by 1.25m to 10.1m, the
increase in the overall height of the crown roof by 0.3m, the increase in the depth of the
rear lightwell from 3.3m to 3.8m and the revised elevational alterations, now including
brickwork on the ground floor and quoins being omitted from the first floor.

It was previously considered that the character of this part of The Drive is derived from
large detached houses of varying scale, proportion and design which are set well back on
their substantial plots to provide a spacious open character with informal front garden
areas. This proposal would have a siting similar to that of the existing house so that the
existing front garden area and the general informal front building line would be
maintained. The two storey house would be sited 1.5m from the side boundary with No.
54 and 5.1m from the side boundary with No. 58, with the attached single storey garage
being sited 1.5m from this site boundary, in accordance with policy BE22 of the saved
UDP.

Although the overall scale and width of the proposed new house would be larger than the
existing dwelling, the proposal would not appear unduly out of keeping with its
surroundings. The proposal would introduce a more formal symmetrical design, but this is
not unattractive in its own right and given the varied scale, proportion and design of
properties on The Drive, it would not appear as being unduly out of character with the
area.

The height of the new house would be approximately 900mm higher than the existing
building and 300mm higher than the previously approved crown roof. It was previously
considered that given the detached nature of the house and in the context of the large
plots, the increase in roof height would not appear unduly discordant. This assessment
remains the same, even with a further 300mm increase. Furthermore, it was previously
considered that the flat roof element of the crown roof was not extensive, so that the

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 65



general impression was of a more traditional roof. This scheme has a similar extent of flat
roof, whilst the extent of pitched roof has been increased.

With respect to the rear dormers, the Council's HDAS Design Guide: Residential Layouts
does not deal with these features. However, although not strictly relevant to new build,
paragraph 7.8 of the Council's HDAS (SPD) Residential Extensions states that rear
dormers are acceptable, provided they are set-in 1m from the roof margins on larger
properties. The proposed rear dormers would be set in 800mm from the roof ridge,
700mm from the eaves and 400mm from the sides of the roof. Although they are not fully
compliant with design guidance for extensions, the dormers are sufficiently small scale
and have been designed to appear subordinate within the main roof.

Changes to the elevational detail of the house are not extensive and no objections are
raised.

The proposal, as previously, does involve the creation of a basement floor, but this would
not be seen from the road, with only a rear lightwell suggesting its presence.

The Council's Urban Design Officer does not raise any objections to the proposed
scheme.

The proposal is therefore considered to comply with Policies BE13 and BE19 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan, Saved Policies (September 2007).
7.08 Impact on neighbours

The adjoining property to the south, No. 54 The Drive has been extended with a two
storey side and rear extension which does not contain any side windows facing the
application site. The rear elevation of the proposed house would not project beyond the
extended two storey rear elevation of No. 54. It would however project forward of the
adjoining front elevation of No. 54 by approximately 2.0m, set back 1.5m from the side
boundary. With such a relationship, the proposed house would not breach a 45° line of
sight from the nearest adjoining first floor windows in the front elevation of this property
(the nearest ground floor opening being an integral garage door). As such, there would
be no adverse impact upon this property by reason of dominance or loss of sunlight.

As regards No. 58, the proposed house would project by approximately 6.3m beyond the
nearest part of the rear elevation of No. 58 The Drive, attached to which at this point is an
attached open canopy structure. The proposed two storey house would be set back some
5.1m from the side boundary and No. 58 itself is over 2m from this boundary. In such a
relationship, the proposed two storey house would not breach a 45° line of sight taken
from the nearest ground floor window in the rear elevation of No. 58 which serves a
lounge and it is considered that the house would not appear unduly dominant.
Furthermore, the house would largely be viewed against the backdrop of the extended
side elevation of No. 54 which would project a further 2.2m into the rear garden as
compared to this proposal. The proposed attached garage would be sited closer to the
side boundary of No. 58, but with an eaves height of 2.3m, and set back 1.5m from the
boundary, only its pitched roof would be visible above the boundary fencing (this
compares to the originally refused scheme (4496/APP/2008/2544) which had a first floor
above the garage). No. 58 also has two ground floor side windows which face the
application site, but as these are small secondary windows to the lounge, which is also
dual aspect with large front and rear windows, any impact upon these windows would not
be significant. This scheme does not breach the 45° line of sight taken from the front
lounge window. Also, a sun on the ground diagram demonstrates that the proposal would

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 66



not overshadow the house itself, with only a small increase in the area of side/rear garden
being overshadowed from midday onwards as compared to the overshadowing resulting
from the existing house.

The first floor and rooflight windows facing No. 54 would only face a blank side wall and
the two rooflight windows facing No. 58 serve non-habitable rooms and have been
conditioned to be obscure glazed and non-opening 1.8m above finished floor height so as
to safeguard the privacy of neighbouring properties.

In terms of the proposed new house on an adjoining plot of land at No. 2 Highfield Drive
(Ref. 65653/APP/2009/1146), as full planning permission has now been granted, it is a
material consideration in the determination of this scheme. The house at its nearest point
would be sited approximately 15.5m from the new proposed rear elevation of No. 56 and
the nearest part of its main rear elevation would be sited approximately 18m away. As part
of the planning permission for this house, the first floor side windows facing No. 56 have
been conditioned to be obscure glazed and the ground floor windows would be sited
sufficiently close to the side boundary so that any overlooking would be prevented by the
boundary fencing. The rear facing windows would look down the garden and although the
nearest ground floor kitchen and first floor bedroom windows would be within 21m of the
rear elevation of the proposed house, the windows would be at near right angles to the
proposed house so that they would afford adequate privacy to the rooms they would
serve. Although an area of the rear patio would be overlooked within a 21m distance, the
area affected is relatively small, equating to the 5m width abutting the side boundary
which would have the greatest benefit from the screening afforded by the boundary
fencing and landscaping, leaving the remaining 13m width of the rear garden more than
21m from the rear elevation of the new house. Furthermore, it is considered that the
potential for overlooking by the proposed development is not significantly greater than that
which would be experienced from the existing house as to justify a reason for refusal on
this ground as the main rear elevation of the proposed house would only move
approximately 2.7m further to the rear. As such, it is considered that the scheme accords
with policies BE20, BE21 and BE24 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
(Saved Policies, September 2007).

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

The Council's HDAS Residential Layouts advises that for new residential units to afford an
adequate standard of residential accommodation, five+ bedroom, two storey houses
should have a minimum internal floor area of 101m?2, increasing to 108m? for three storey
properties. The house, including the basement, would have a floor area in excess of
400m?2. Furthermore, it is considered that all the proposed habitable rooms would have
adequate outlook and natural lighting.

Guidance also stipulates that new houses should also satisfy minimum amenity space
standards and for five+ bedroom houses, at least 100m? should be provided. In this
instance, excluding the 7.2m x 3.2m deep light well, the proposal would retain a rear
garden area of 306m>.

7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The proposal would utilise the existing vehicular crossover and provide a car parking
space within the proposed garage and at least two spaces on the drive. The proposal
replicates the existing parking arrangements made on site and no objections are raised in
terms of Policy AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

7.11 Urban design, access and security

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 67



712

713

7.14

7.15

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

These issues have been discussed in Section 7.
Disabled access

The proposed dwelling is of a sufficient size, internally to ensure that it could easily meet
lifetime homes standards. As such it uis recommended that a condtion is attached
requiring this.

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Policy BE38 of the adopted Hilingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) advises that topographical and landscape features of merit should be
retained and utilised and new planting and landscaping should be provided where
appropriate.

The Council's Tree Officer advises that there are no landscape features of merit on the
site that would constrain the proposed development and the scheme is acceptable,
subject to landscape conditions.

Sustainable waste management

Not applicable to this application.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

The proposal does ensure that all the habitable rooms would be well served by natural
daylight. A condition has been attached to ensure that the development satisfies Level 3
of the Code for Sustainable Homes.

Flooding or Drainage Issues

This application does not fall within a flood risk area. The submission of a suitable
sustainable urban drainage system has been controlled by condition.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Comments on Public Consultations

Original Plans

As regards the points raised by individuals, points (i), (ii), (iv), (v), (vi), (vii), (xiii) and (xiv)
have been dealt with in the main report. Point (xvi) is noted. In terms of point (iii),
paragraph 3.3 of the Residential Layout Design Guide refers to flatted redevelopment. It is
therefore not applicable in this case. As regards point (viii), any impact of the basement
upon drainage would be a building control matter. As regards point (ix), a number of
amended plans have been submitted and assessed for their accuracy on site. The latest
plan (08/38/02 Rev. E) is considered to be sufficiently accurate. As regards a topographic
and/or tree survey (point (x)), this is normally only required when there are landscape
features of merit on site and in this case, the Tree Officer advises that there are none. To
ask for a topographic and/or tree survey to be submitted at this stage would be contrary to
normal practice. Point (xi) concerning amended plans on previous application is noted. As
regards point (xii), this is noted but it should not be assumed that just because an officer
request is made for amended plans, if the scheme is not amended that it is unacceptable.
Point (xv) concerning increase in build time with basement and additional inconvenience is
not a material planning consideration.

Amended Plans

As regards Point (i), the position of the adjoining houses has changed on Rev. E as they
were not shown sufficiently accurately on the earlier versions of the plan. Point (ii) is dealt

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 68



with at Point (x) above. As regards point (iii), the sale of the house is noted but not
material and as regards point (iv) all the surrounding properties consulted on the original
application, including this consultee, were re-consulted on the latest revised plan.

7.20 Planning Obligations

Policy R17 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) is concerned with securing planning obligations to offset the additional
demand on recreational open space, facilities supporting arts, cultural and entertainment
activities, and other community, social and education facilities through planning
obligations in conjunction with other development proposals. These UDP policies are
supported by more specific supplementary planning guidance.

The scale of this scheme would only generate a possible contribution towards education
space and in this instance, Education Services advise that the child yield from the
proposal would be cancelled by that of the existing house so that there would be no
requirement for a contribution in this case.

7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

There are no enforcement issues on this site.
7.22 Other Issues

There are no other relevant planning issues raised by this application.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware of
the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

Not applicable to this application.

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 69



10. CONCLUSION

The replacement house is acceptable in terms of its impacts upon the street scene and
the character and appearance of the area. It is also considered that the impact of the
proposed house on the amenities of surrounding occupiers, including those that would be
afforded to the occupiers of a new house which has permission but has yet to be built to
the rear of the application site in the side garden of No. 2 Highfield Drive, would be
acceptable. The application is recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents

Adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies, September 2007)
London Plan (February 2008)

HDAS: Residential Layouts

HDAS: Accessible Hillingdon

Council's Adopted Car Parking Standards (Annex 1, Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan, Saved Policies, September 2007)

Consultation responses

Contact Officer: Richard Phillips Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 70



.

LONDON BOROUGH
For identification purposes only. 56 The Drlve’ Planning, Environment
This copy has been made by or with Ickenham & Community Services
the authority of the Head of Committee Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Services pursuant to section 47 of the Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
C;\Z?};r;%r:'(ﬁsf;i and patents Planning Application Ref: Scale 1:1.250 ;&*
Uples e Jtrones areevrt | 4496/APPI2009/2765 1, Ak
© Crown Copyright. A_Il_rights reserved. Plannmg Committee Date [ Qt‘
100015085 2000 NorthPage 71 | February 2011 | T+ LLINGDON
LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 72



Agenda ltem 9

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address 19 GROVE ROAD NORTHWOOD

Development: Part two storey, part single storey rear extension, single storey side/front
extension, front porch, alterations to existing elevations and conversion of
roofspace for habitable use with 2 rear, 2 side, and 3 front rooflights and 3
skylights.

LBH Ref Nos: 27846/APP/2010/2916

Drawing Nos: 1480/1
1480/3E
1480/4D

Date Plans Received: 17/12/2010 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 17/12/2010

1. CONSIDERATIONS

1.1  Site and Locality

The application site is located on the north side of Grove Road and comprises a two
storey detached house with a front projecting bay window. To the west lies 17 Grove Road
and to the east lies 21 Grove Road, both detached houses. The street scene is residential
in character and appearance comprising two storey detached houses and the application
site lies within the developed area as identified in the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007).

1.2 Proposed Scheme

The application seeks permission for a single storey front and side extension and two
storey rear extension.

The two storey rear extension would measure 4m in depth along the boundary with nos.17
and 21 Grove Road and 6m in depth in the middle section. The two storey extension
would be set 0.75m in from the side walls of the original house with a hipped roof that
would be at the same height as the main dwelling roof.

A pitched roof over the single storey front and side extension would measure 3.5m in
height. The application also includes the proposed conversion of the loft space for
habitable use to include 2 rear rooflights, 3 rooflights within the central flat section of the
roof , 2 high level rooflights within the side and 3 rooflights within the front roof slope.

Within the side facing no. 21, the existing bathroom window is proposed to be replaced
with 2 obscure glazed windows serving shower rooms whilst facing no. 17, the existing

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 73



side window (currently serving a bedroom) will be enlarged and obscure glazed to serve a
bathroom.

Finally, alterations to the front elevation of the property include a new front porch with
timbered roof above plus the introduction of a matching pitched roof to the existing bay
window at first floor.

1.3 Relevant Planning History
27846/APP/2010/145 19 Grove Road Northwood

Single storey front and side extension, two storey rear extension, conversion of loft space to
habitable use to include 2 rear rooflights and 4 skylights, alterations to front elevation to include
new front porch, new pitched roof to single storey front and pitched roof to existing bay windows
at first floor.

Decision Date: 13-05-2010 Refused Appeal:11-AUG-10  Dismissed
Comment on Planning History
Planning permission for the above application was refused for the following reason:

1. The proposed development by reason of its size, scale, bulk and design incorporating a
large crown roof, would be out of character with the existing and adjoining properties and
detrimental to the visual amenities of the area. The proposal would thus be contrary to
Policies BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies September 2007 and the adopted Supplementary Planning Document
HDAS: Residential Extensions.

The application subsequently went to appeal and was dismissed.
2, Advertisement and Site Notice

2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable

2.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

3. Comments on Public Consultations

19 neighbouring properties and Northwood Residents Association have been consulted
and 3 individual responses and a petition with 57 signatories have been received. The
concerns raised are summarised as follows:

i) The roof structure has only had minor alterations and is still of a bulky appearance
which does not harmonise with the original building;

ii) The side profiles of the planned roof within its excessive bulk would be clearly visible
from the street;

i) Out of scale and character with the other properties in the street;

iv) Loss of sunlight to and overshadowing of the adjoining garden;

v) Loss of privacy due to new windows

vi) 2 holly trees have been removed.

Officer Comments: With regard to the removal of trees, as the site is neither within a
Conservation Area nor subject to a TPO, the Council cannot control the removal of
trees/vegetation. The other points are covered in the main report.

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 74



Two letters from the same person have been received in support of the application stating
that the proposal complies with the Council's rules and regulations and is in proportion
with the existing building and does not adversely affect the street scene.

Nick Hurd MP has asked the committee 'to reach a view on the technical and planning
merits of the application i.e. | will not formally be objecting to the application myself'.

4. UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

Part 2 Policies:

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

HDAS 'Residential Developments'

LPP 4A.3 London Plan Policy 4A.3 - Sustainable Design and Construction.
5. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES

The main issue for consideration relates to the impact of the proposal on the character
and appearance of the original house and the street scene and whether the amended
scheme overcomes the reason for refusal relating to the previous application
(27846/APP/2010/145) and its subsequent dismissal at appeal.

The application site lies within a residential area. Grove Road is characterised by
detached houses of varying styles and designs, some of which, have been extended.
Given the character of the area, the principle of extending existing properties is
acceptable.

Policy BE13 of the UDP Saved Policies September 2007 states that development will not
be permitted if the layout and appearance fail to harmonise with the existing street scene
or other features of the area that the local planning authority considers it desirable to
retain or enhance. Policy BE15 goes on to note that proposals for alterations and
extensions to existing buildings will be permitted where they harmonise with the scale,
form, architectural composition and proportions of the original building.

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 75



The Councils adopted Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) HDAS: Residential
Extensions offers the guidance that must be met for extensions to be considered
satisfactory. Sections 4, 6, 7 and 8 of the SPD set out the criteria against which two-storey
rear extensions, single-storey side extensions, loft conversions, front extensions/porches
and bay windows should be assessed.

For rear and side extensions, proposals:

- Rear extensions should not exceed 4m in depth on a detached plot;

- Single-storey extensions should not exceed 3.4m in height with a pitched roof;

. The width of the side extension should be considerably less than that of the main
dwelling;

. The front wall of the side extension should not protrude in front of the main house;

. The roof of the two-storey rear extension should not exceed the height of the main
dwelling roof.

The roof of the rear two-storey extension is set at the same height as that of the main
house, which complies with the SPD. The rear extension measures 4m in depth at first
floor level adjoining the boundaries with the neighbouring properties, but projects a further
2m in depth in the centre section and a further 1m in depth at ground floor level adjoining
the boundary with 21 Grove Road. The depth and height of the two storey and single
storey element would exceed the SPD guidance in relation to the central section of the
two storey and the single storey adjoining 21 Grove Road.

The pitched roof on the single storey side and front extension is considered acceptable at
3.5m and again is not considered to be out of scale or proportion to the main dwelling or
the adjoining properties. The single storey front/side extension would not extend beyond
the front building line of the existing bay windows, the width of the single storey side
extension is also subservient to the width of the main dwelling, the height and width of the
porch is subordinate to that of the main dwelling and the porch is in line with the front of
the bay windows. The number, size and location of the rooflights are considered
sympathetic to the appearance of the main dwelling.

Thus, the main issue is whether the depth, scale and design of the two storey rear
element is considered to have overcome the previous reason for refusal. In relation to this
issue the Inspector in his decision letter commented as follows:

"There would however be a substantial increase in the scale and massing of the roof.
Although no higher than the existing roof, the proposed crown roof would significantly
extend the roof towards the rear. Although the central rearward projection of some 6m
would not be apparent from public viewpoints, the side profiles of the roof with its
excessive bulk and extended flat top would be

clearly visible from the street. The bulky appearance of the roof would appear out of
character with the existing dwelling and those nearby. It would not harmonise with the
scale, form, architectural composition or proportions of the original building. The proposal
would therefore in this respect harm the character and appearance of the street scene."

The Inspector was thus concerned with the side profiles of the roof with its excessive bulk
and extended flat top which would be clearly visible from the street. In order to overcome
this the current application proposes to set the rear extension in 0.75m from the side
elevations and retain the existing hipped roof. The main view from the street, particularly
from the sides, would be of the hipped roof, although it is clear that, particularly when
standing in front or immediately to the side, the crown roof would also be visible. However,

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 76



in longer views and in street scene terms the hipped roof would be most apparent. This
being the case, the proposal is considered to have adressed the previous reason for
refusal.

Overall, the proposed development is now considered to represent a form of development
that would harmonise with the character and proportions of the original house and the
appearance of the street scene and the surrounding area generally, in compliance with
policies BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
(Saved Policies September 2007) and the principles of the Hilingdon Design &
Accessibility Statement (HDAS): Residential Extensions.

Amenity

With regard to impact on residential amenity, policy BE21 of the UDP Saved Policies
September 2007 is relevant and must be considered. The policy states that planning
permission will not be granted for new buildings or extensions which by reason of their
siting, bulk and proximity, would result in a significant loss of residential amenity.

Sections 4, 6, 7 and 8 of the SPD offer further criteria against which two-storey rear
extensions, single-storey side extensions, loft conversions and front extensions/porches
and bay windows should be assessed against to consider the impact on neighbouring
properties. These include:

- retain foundations and guttering within the application site;

- not to include windows and doors that overlook neighbouring properties.

. use of materials to complement existing house

. provision of sufficient garden space.

The Inspector in his consideration of the impact on adjoining properties commented as
follows:

"7. Although the Council did not refuse the proposal on the grounds of the adjoining
residents  living conditions, there are objections from residents on that basis. The
proposed 2-storey extension would project about 4m from the existing rear wall at the
sides closest to nos. 17 and 21 Grove Road, with a greater projection of some 6m in the
central section. There would be an additional 1m projection at ground-floor level on the
side adjoining no. 21. The drawings were subject to amendment so that the scale was
reduced from the original proposal.

8. There would remain good sized gaps between the proposed building and the dwellings
at nos. 17 and 21 Grove Road and with the habitable room windows of these houses. The
submitted drawings indicate that the proposal would not be within the 45 degree line of
sight from any habitable room window of either no. 17 or no. 21. This Building Research
Establishment indicator is commonly used to assess the effect of a proposal on daylight
and outlook on adjoining dwellings. Paragraph 6.22 of the SPD also refers to the 45
degree guideline. Therefore, taking into account the position of the proposed extension
relative to the adjoining dwellings, | conclude that there would be no harm to residents
living conditions in respect of outlook and daylight.

9. The Council prepared a Sunlight Assessment and reported no unacceptable impact.
The assessment demonstrates that there would a loss of some sunlight in the morning
immediately at the rear of no. 17 and later in the day in respect of no. 21. The effect from
overshadowing would not therefore be so significant as to cause material harm to

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 77



residents living conditions.

10. I am also satisfied that there would be no harm to privacy since there would be no new
side windows to habitable rooms. A condition could be imposed to require obscure glazing
to the proposed first floor shower room facing no. 21.

11. | have taken into account all matters raised by local residents, including the effects on
traffic and highway safety, flood risk, site stability and noise and light pollution. | find none
that merit dismissal on these grounds, or that could not otherwise be dealt with by means
of a condition, or by other legislation."

The situation with regard to the impact has only changed in the sense that the proposed
two storey rear extension is some 0.75m further removed from the adjoining properties
resulting in a lesser impact than the previous application. Given this and the fact that the
Inspector considered that the impact on adjoining occupiers was acceptable previously, it
is considered that the proposed development would not harm the residential amenities of
the occupiers of 17 and 21 Grove Road through, overdominance and visual intrusion.

The proposed windows that face neighbouring properties are conditioned to be obscure
glazed and non-opening below 1.8m.

It is therefore considered that the proposal would not harm the residential amenities of
adjoining occupiers and would be in accordance with policies BE20, BE21 and BE24 of
the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007). The
new windows would provide an adequate outlook and natural light to the rooms they
would serve, in accordance with London Plan Policy 4A.3.

Some 700sq.m of private amenity space would be retained which would be sufficient for
the enlarged house. With regard to parking, the Council's standards require two off-street
parking spaces to be provided and two spaces are available on the frontage in compliance
with Policy AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies
September 2007).

6. RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 HH-T8 Time Limit - full planning application 3 years

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 HH-OM1 Development in accordance with Approved Plans

The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in strict accordance with the
plans hereby approved unless consent to any variation is first obtained in writing from the
Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that the external appearance of the development is satisfactory and complies

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 78



with Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

3 HH-M2 External surfaces to match existing building

The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the development
hereby permitted shall match those used in the existing building.

REASON

To safeguard the visual amenities of the area and to ensure that the proposed
development does not have an adverse effect upon the appearance of the existing
building in accordance with Policy BE15 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007).

4 HH-RPD1 No Additional Windows or Doors

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification), no additional windows, doors or other openings shall be
constructed in the walls or roof slopes of the development hereby approved facing 17
and 21 Grove Road.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

5 HH-RPD2 Obscured Glazing and Non-Opening Windows (a)

The windows and openings facing 17 and 21 Grove Road shall be glazed with
permanently obscured glass and shall also be non-opening below a height of 1.8 metres
taken from internal finished floor level for so long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

INFORMATIVES

Standard Informatives

1 The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to
all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14
(prohibition of discrimination).

2 The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to
the policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007) set out below, and to all relevant material
considerations, including Supplementary Planning Guidance:

Policy No.

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 79



AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street
scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of
the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy

to neighbours.
HDAS 'Residential Developments'
LPP 4A.3 London Plan Policy 4A.3 - Sustainable Design and Construction.

3 You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the
approved drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must
be constructed precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any
deviation from these drawings requires the written consent of the Local
Planning Authority.

4 You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches
by either its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning
application will have to be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a
development that results in any form of encroachment.

5 Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the
Building Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover
such works as - the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building
or structure, the extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings,
installation of services, underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape
works. Notice of intention to demolish existing buildings must be given to the
Council's Building Control Service at least 6 weeks before work starts. A
completed application form together with detailed plans must be submitted for
approval before any building work is commenced. For further information and

advice, contact - Planning, Enviroment and Community Services, Building

Control,
3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

6 You have been granted planning permission to build a residential extension.
When undertaking demolition and/or building work, please be considerate to your

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 80



neighbours and do not undertake work in the early morning or late at night or at
any time on Sundays or Bank Holidays. Furthermore, please ensure that all
vehicles associated with the construction of the development hereby approved
are properly washed and cleaned to prevent the passage of mud and dirt onto the
adjoining highway. You are advised that the Council does have formal powers to
control noise and nuisance under The Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air
Acts and other relevant legislation. For further information and advice, please
contact - Environmental Protection Unit, 4W/04, Civic Centre, High Street,
Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250190).

7 The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal

agreement from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:

- carry out work to an existing party wall;

- build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;

- in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining
building.

Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building

owner and are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls.

The Building Control Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any

necessary agreements with the adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by

the Council should be taken as removing the necessity for the building owner to

comply fully with the Party Wall Act. Further information and advice is to be found

in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 - explanatory booklet" published by the ODPM,
available free of charge from the Planning, Enviroment and Community Services
Reception, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

8 Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override
property rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission
does not empower you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the
specific consent of the owner. If you require further information or advice, you
should consult a solicitor.

9 Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The
Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In
particular, you should ensure that the following are complied with: -

A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the
hours of 08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours
of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays Bank and Public Holidays.

B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with
British Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public
health nuisance.

D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02,
Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 81



prior approval under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate
any difficulty in carrying out construction other than within the normal working

hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would minimise disturbance to

adjoining premises.

10 You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
approved to avoid spillage of mud, soil or related building materials onto the
pavement or public highway. You are further advised that failure to take
appropriate steps to avoid spillage or adequately clear it away could result in
action being taken under the Highways Act.

11 To promote the development of sustainable building design and construction
methods, you are encouraged to investigate the use of renewable energy
resources which do not produce any extra carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions,
including solar, geothermal and fuel cell systems, and use of high quality
insulation.

12 You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
approved to ensure no damage occurs to the verge or footpaths during
construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this development shall not override
or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will require to be made
good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense. For further
information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon,
Middlesex, UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

Contact Officer: Ceri Porter Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 82



Site boundary

Site Address

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with

the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

19 Grove Road,
Northwood

Planning Application Ref:

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, Environment
& Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon

100019283 2009

Scale
27846/APP/2010/2916 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date
North Page 83 | February 2011

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Ny

HILLINGDON

LONDON

=R

1an 39001 AD

NVS




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 84



Agenda ltem 10

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address HAYDON SCHOOL WILTSHIRE LANE EASTCOTE PINNER

Development: Details in compliance with condition 4 (fence colour) of planning permission
ref: 9556/APP/2010/1370 dated 06/08/2010: Installation of mesh fence and
automatically locking gate and new window to existing elevation.

LBH Ref Nos: 9556/APP/2010/2490

Drawing Nos: Letter received from agent on 14 January 2011 detailing fence colour

Date of receipt: 25/10/2010 Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. ORIGINAL PLANNING REFERENCE
9556/APP/2010/1370

2.  MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

SITE:

The application site is the line of the northern boundary fence of Haydon School
which fronts directly onto Norwich Road. The fence will extend from the west
corner of Haydon School's boundary at the Wiltshire Road/Norwich Road junction
and would finish at the vehicular access point to the school on Norwich Road. This
fence would be set behind the existing mature landscaping on this boundary.

PROPOSAL:

The replacement of the existing fencing was the subject of a scheme approved in
August 2010(99556/APP/2010/1370). The approved scheme involved the erection
of a 112m long section of 2.4m high zebex mesh fencing with an electronically
lockable gate. This fence will replace an existing 1.8m high chainlink fence. This
application concerns the discharge of condition 4, which relates only to the colour
of the approved fence and not its design, height or location, issues that have all
been previously agreed( 99556/APP/2010/1370).

Condition 4 states "Notwithstanding the information supplied on the application
forms and contained within the supporting documents, details of the colour of the
proposed metal zebex fence, hereby approved, shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority."

The applicant originally submitted details with this application for the fence to be

for a light blue colour (RAL 5017). This proposed colour was a close match to the
existing blue colour fencing found on the wider school site. However following

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 85



discussions and in a bid to achieve a more neutral and less visually obtrusive
colour to this section of fence, the applicant proposes the fence is coloured Cobalt
Blue (RAL 5013).

PUBLIC CONSULTATION:

The application, as a discharge of condition application was not the subject to a
site notice. No consultation letters were initially sent out to owner/occupiers of
neighbouring properties, in line with standard practice.

A 45 strong petition was received against the original proposed colour (RAL 5017).
The petition considered the original blue colour proposed would not harmonise
with the existing streetscene or improve or complement the area.

Three letters of objection were received, 2 of these letters from the same resident.
One of the residents wrote a letter of objecting to the colour and its appearance in
the neighbourhood and the objector sought a more neutral green or grey colour.

The other two letter of objection (from the lead petitioner) considered the original
blue was not a good match to the navy blue colour used in the existing school
fencing on the site and also considered the colour did not harmonise, improve or
complement the character of the area. A more neutral dark green was advocated
as more natural and in keeping with the area.

Consultation letters were sent out to all the owner/occupants of neighbouring
properties that received a consultation letter with the original application
(99556/APP/2010/1370), following the receipt of the petition and following the
applicants decision to revise the proposed colour to cobalt blue. The written
consultation led to a further letter of objection from a third resident. The resident
objected to the colour and sought a more subtle shade of green to blend on with
the environment

The school is understood to have approached the lead petitioner to see if there
was willingness to withdraw the petition following the change in the proposed
shade of blue. It is understood the lead petitioner was not willing to withdraw the
petition.

IMPACT ON STREETSCENE:

The main planning consideration is whether the proposed colour is in sympathy
and harmony with the school site and within the wider streetscene in Norwich Road
and also, where visible, from the adjoining Wiltshire Lane. The proposed dark blue
colour is considered relatively neutral and not unduly eye catching.

RESPONSE TO PUBLIC CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
In response to the letter of objection and the petition against the original colour

proposed with the application, whilst it is acknowledged the proposed cobalt blue
colour is not black or green, colours that objectors suggest would be the most

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 86



natural or neutral colours to use. However it is considered the cobalt blue is close
to black in colour and would provide a high degree of unobtrusive neutrality whilst
still managing to harmonise with the lighter colour blue fencing found elsewhere on
the school site.

CONCLUSION:

The proposed revised cobalt blue colour is considered in keeping and harmony
with the school site and the wider streetscene and such will not have any adverse
impact on the character of the area. For these reasons the scheme is considered

to comply with Policy BE13 of the UDP (Saved Policies September 2007), and is
recommended for approval.

3. RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL

INFORMATIVES

Contact Officer: Gareth Gwynne Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 87



Notes

Site Address

g

|
:Fl_ ? <

s

=t
[
||
1.
=N

SR u sl
b R~ A
4 . CXTE oFools
B . L3S N3
S PO PR U
n/aeNI R/ NN .

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant

exception to copyright.

Eastcote

Haydon School,
Wiltshire Lane,

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, Environment
& Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2009

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
- C oo Scale s
Planning Application Ref: } .
9556/APP/2010/2490 1:3,000
Planning Committee Date ’!t-
North Page 88 | February 2011 | T LLINGDON

LONDON




Agenda ltem 11

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address 41 RAISINS HILL EASTCOTE MIDDLESEX

Development: Part two storey, part single storey side extension, part two storey, part single
storey rear extension with 1 rooflight, single storey front extension and
conversion of roofspace to habitable use with 1 front and 1 rear rooflight,
involving demolition of existing integral garage and store.

LBH Ref Nos: 64909/APP/2010/2668

Drawing Nos: 10034 P 01.01 Rev. D

Date Plans Received:  22/11/2010 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 28/01/0011
Date Application Valid: 01/12/2010

1. CONSIDERATIONS

1.1  Site and Locality

The application site is located on the west side of Raisins Hill and comprises a two storey
semi-detached dwelling with a fully hipped roof and bay window detail to both the front
and rear elevations. An original attached garage with store room behind is located on the
north west elevation. The garage is set 0.6m from the boundary with the adjacent property
no.43 and flush with the front elevation of the main house. The house is set back 8m from
the road with a 5m wide front driveway and lawned area with hedge separating the site
from the adjoining semi (n0.39). A 22m garden runs to the rear. The adjoining property,
No.39, has recently carried out a hip to gable loft conversion with rear dormer, under
permitted development, and is currently completing a single storey side, front and rear
extension approved in September 2010. The street scene is residential in character and
appearance and the application site lies within the developed area, as identified in the
Adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

1.2 Proposed Scheme

Planning permission is sought to demolish the existing garage and store to the side and
construct a part two storey side extension and a part two storey/part single storey rear
extension plus conversion of the roof to habitable space.

To the rear, the proposed single storey extension would measure 3.6m deep with a 3m
high flat roof. The two storey element would commence 3.2m from the boundary with the
adjoining property (no.39) and measure 2.6m deep. The two storey extension would
measure 4.9m wide projecting out from the side elevation by 2.2m, stopping 1m away
from the boundary with no.43 and wrapping around the side elevation to continue to stop
flush with the front elevation of the house. To the side of the house, the roof of the
proposed two storey extension would be at full height with the rear roof set 1m beneath

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 89



the ridge.

A single storey extension is proposed to the front, measuring 5m wide and 1m deep that
would wrap around the front elevation and be 0.5m wider than the first floor continuing for
a depth of 8.4m. 2 no. parking spaces are identified on the existing front driveway.

1.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Planning History

None.

2, Advertisement and Site Notice
2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
2.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

3. Comments on Public Consultations

11 neighbouring properties and the Northwood Hills Residents Association have been
consulted. 10 individual letters and a petition with 31 signatories has been received
objecting to the proposal on the following grounds:

i) A 5 bed house and the extension would be too large for the plot and is overdevelopment
of the site that would create an unacceptable precedent;

i) Loss of garage will lead to inadequate parking provision on site for such a large
house,leading to congestion;

i) The front extension is forward of the building line;

iv) The extension would shadow garden/patio of the neighbouring property;

v) Loss of southerly views;

vi) Destruction of street scene;

vii) Loss of light.

Officer Comments: The issues raised are considered in the main body of the report.

4. UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

Part 2 Policies:

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.
BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 90



BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

HDAS Residential Extensions

LPP 4A.3 London Plan Policy 4A.3 - Sustainable Design and Construction.

CACPS Council's Adopted Car Parking Standards (Annex 1, HUDP, Saved

Policies, September 2007)
5. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES

The main planning issue in respect of this application is considered to be the design of the
proposed development, its impact upon residential amenity and the provision of adequate
parking at the site.

Visual Amenity

Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (UDP) (Saved Policies
September 2007) requires that the layout and appearance of new development must
harmonise with the existing street scene whilst policy BE15 requires extensions to be in-
keeping with the scale, form and architectural composition of the building. Policy BE19
seeks to ensure new development complements or improves the amenity and character of
the area. Policy BE22 requires two storey extensions to be set back a minimum of 1m
from the side boundary. Guidance is also found within the London Borough of Hillingdon
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) HDAS: Residential Extensions.

For two storey side extensions to be acceptable, the SPD requires such extensions for
semi-detached properties to be set in from the boundary with neighbouring properties by
at least 1m, be set back 1m from main front elevation and have a roof set beneath the
main ridge by at least 0.5m to ensure a sub-ordinate appearance. For two storey rear
extensions the SPD states that the depth must not exceed 3.6m, that the first floor must
comply with 45 degree rule and that the roof height should not exceed the height of the
main roof. Whilst section 8 of the Residential Extensions SPD refers to front extensions,
canopies and bay windows and states that front extensions, including porches, should not
extend across the entire frontage of a property and if combined with a garage conversion
should not project further than 1m forward.

In general, it is expected that a two storey side extension on a semi-detached property is
set back from the front elevation with a lower roof to that of the main house. In this
instance however, the adjoining semi has carried out a hip to gable roof conversion under
permitted development, that has already unbalanced the symmetry of the pair of houses.
By continuing the two storey extension at the same height, a far more simple front
elevation is maintained rather than further unbalancing the pair of houses with an
additional roof pattern. For this reason it is considered that the proposed side extension is
acceptable by seeking to ensure some form of composition for the pair of semi-detached
properties is retained.

To the rear, the two storey extension at 2.6m deep with a lowered and fully hipped roof is
considered to respect the architectural form of both the original house and the
surrounding area.

The flat roof single storey rear extension is of a simple design that meets the size and

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 91



height requirements of the SPD. The front extension although slightly forward of the
existing bay window is reminiscent of a porch/garage conversion extension and also
echoes the extension and canopy approved on the adjoining property.

On balance therefore, whilst the side extension is at full height and depth and not in
general accordance with the SPD guidance, the work carried out to the adjoining semi-
detached property means that a traditional design response for a pair of semi-detached
properties would not ensure symmetry is retained. In all other respects the proposed
extension follows the recommended HDAS guidance for extensions regarding size and
scale and thus is not considered to be an overdevelopment of the site. The use of
matching materials is also proposed and this would ensure further harmony with the
existing street scene. For these reasons it is considered that the proposal meets the
requirements of the SPD and policies BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the UDP (Saved Policies
September 2007).

Residential Amenity

Policy BE20 of the UDP seeks to ensure that adequate daylight and sunlight can
penetrate into and between buildings and that amenities are safeguarded whilst policy
BE21 of the UDP precludes development that would result in a significant loss of amenity
due to a proposals siting, bulk and proximity. Policy BE22 continues that extensions
should be a minimum of 1m from the side boundary. With regard to adjoining property
(n0.39), the proposed single storey rear extension would be directly alongside the
conservatory recently permitted that would measure the same depth. The two storey
extension, set 3.2m from the boundary with no.39 would not affect the 45 degree line
taken from the nearest habitable room rear window.

With regard to adjacent property (no.43), the submitted drawings clearly show that the
proposed two storey extension would also not break a 45 degree line taken from the
nearest window at first floor whilst the side window in no.43 serves a landing/stairwell. The
proposal is therefore not considered to impact unduly on the adjoining properties in terms
of loss of light and overshadowing. The proposed two storey element is located 1m from
the boundary with no.43, as per policy BE22, with no. 43's attached garage alongside the
front half of the side extension. Thus, whilst there would be some impact upon the
residents of no.43, it would not be of such significance as to warrant a refusal of planning
permission. Given the depth of the proposed rear extension it is not considered that no.43
would suffer such a loss of view from the rear patio that would justify the refusal of
planning permission.

Given the above, it is considered that there would be no significant loss of amenity as a
result of the proposal in accordance with policies BE20, BE21 and BE22 of the Hillingdon
UDP, saved policies, September 2007.

With regard to privacy, the two windows proposed within the side elevations of the
proposed two storey element are to serve bathrooms and are shown as high level opening
with obscure glazing. To ensure this is retained a condition to retain them in this state is
recommended plus a further condition restricting the insertion of further openings.

A distance of 22m separates the front of the proposed extension with the house directly
opposite (a bathroom window is proposed at first floor) exceeding the SPD requirement of
21m. The rear garden also provides sufficient distance to the properties to the rear. The
proposal would consequently accord with Policy BE24 of the UDP (Saved Policies

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 92



September 2007) and with the SPD.

It is considered that all the proposed habitable rooms and those altered by the
development still maintain an adequate outlook and source of natural light, therefore
complying with Policy 4A.3 of the London Plan (2008).

Over 100sgm of private amenity space would be retained in compliance with paragraph
5.13 of the SPD and policy BE23 of the UDP (Saved Policies September 2007).

Car Parking

Policy AM14 of the UDP (Saved Policies September 2007) requires new development to
accord with the Council's adopted car parking standards. For a 2 plus bedroom house, the
standards require 2 car parking spaces be provided. A plan indicating that two spaces can
be provided on the existing driveway has been submitted. The application therefore meets
the Council's adopted standard parking standards and is in accordance with policy AM14
of the UDP (Saved Policies September 2007).

6. RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 HH-T8 Time Limit - full planning application 3 years

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 HH-OM1 Development in accordance with Approved Plans

The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in strict accordance with the
plans hereby approved unless consent to any variation is first obtained in writing from the
Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that the external appearance of the development is satisfactory and complies
with Policy BE15 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

3 HH-M2 External surfaces to match existing building

The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the development
hereby permitted shall match those used in the existing building.

REASON

To safeguard the visual amenities of the area and to ensure that the proposed
development does not have an adverse effect upon the appearance of the existing
building in accordance with Policy BE15 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007).

4 HH-RPD1 No Additional Windows or Doors

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 93



Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification), no additional windows, doors or other openings shall be
constructed in the walls or roof slopes of the development hereby approved facing 39
and 43 Raisins Hill.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

5 RPD2 Obscured Glazing and Non-Opening Windows (a)

The window(s) facing 43 Raisins Hill shall be glazed with permanently obscured glass
and non-opening below a height of 1.8 metres taken from internal finished floor level for
so long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

6 HH-RPD4 Prevention of Balconies / Roof Gardens

The roof area of the extension hereby permitted shall not be used as a balcony, roof
garden or similar amenity area.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

7 H7 Parking Arrangements (Residential)

The parking areas shown on the approved plans shall be constructed and shall be for the
sole use of the occupants of the dwelling and thereafter be permanently retained and
used for no other purpose.

REASON

To ensure that an appropriate level of car parking provision is provided on site in
accordance with Policy AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007) and Chapter 3C of the London Plan. (February 2008).

INFORMATIVES

Standard Informatives

1 The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to
all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14
(prohibition of discrimination).

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 94



2 The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to
the policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007) set out below, and to all relevant material
considerations, including Supplementary Planning Guidance:

Policy No.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street
scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of
the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy
to neighbours.

HDAS Residential Extensions

LPP 4A.3 London Plan Policy 4A.3 - Sustainable Design and Construction.

CACPS Council's Adopted Car Parking Standards (Annex 1, HUDP,
Saved Policies, September 2007)

3 You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the

approved drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must
be constructed precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any
deviation from these drawings requires the written consent of the Local

Planning Authority.

4 You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches
by either its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning
application will have to be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a
development that results in any form of encroachment.

5 Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the
Building Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover
such works as - the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building
or structure, the extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings,
installation of services, underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape
works. Notice of intention to demolish existing buildings must be given to the
Council's Building Control Service at least 6 weeks before work starts. A
completed application form together with detailed plans must be submitted for
approval before any building work is commenced. For further information and

advice, contact - Planning, Enviroment and Community Services, Building

Control,
3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 95



6 You have been granted planning permission to build a residential extension.
When undertaking demolition and/or building work, please be considerate to your
neighbours and do not undertake work in the early morning or late at night or at
any time on Sundays or Bank Holidays. Furthermore, please ensure that all
vehicles associated with the construction of the development hereby approved
are properly washed and cleaned to prevent the passage of mud and dirt onto the
adjoining highway. You are advised that the Council does have formal powers to
control noise and nuisance under The Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air
Acts and other relevant legislation. For further information and advice, please
contact - Environmental Protection Unit, 4W/04, Civic Centre, High Street,
Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250190).

7 The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal

agreement from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:

- carry out work to an existing party wall;

- build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;

- in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining
building.

Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building

owner and are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls.

The Building Control Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any

necessary agreements with the adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by

the Council should be taken as removing the necessity for the building owner to

comply fully with the Party Wall Act. Further information and advice is to be found

in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 - explanatory booklet" published by the ODPM,
available free of charge from the Planning, Enviroment and Community Services
Reception, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

8 Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override
property rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission
does not empower you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the
specific consent of the owner. If you require further information or advice, you
should consult a solicitor.

9 Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The
Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In
particular, you should ensure that the following are complied with: -

A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the
hours of 08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours
of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays Bank and Public Holidays.

B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with
British Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public
health nuisance.

D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 96



You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02,
Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek
prior approval under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate
any difficulty in carrying out construction other than within the normal working
hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would minimise disturbance to
adjoining premises.

10 You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
approved to avoid spillage of mud, soil or related building materials onto the
pavement or public highway. You are further advised that failure to take
appropriate steps to avoid spillage or adequately clear it away could result in
action being taken under the Highways Act.

11 To promote the development of sustainable building design and construction
methods, you are encouraged to investigate the use of renewable energy
resources which do not produce any extra carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions,
including solar, geothermal and fuel cell systems, and use of high quality
insulation.

12 You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
approved to ensure no damage occurs to the verge or footpaths during
construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this development shall not override
or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will require to be made
good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense. For further
information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon,
Middlesex, UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

Contact Officer: Ceri Porter Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 97



— ¢~
D

Eastcote Point

Litt

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2009

Site Address

41 Raisins Hill,

Eastcote

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, Environment
& Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale
64909/APP/2010/2668 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date

North Page 98

February 2011

R
HILLINGDON

LONDON




Agenda ltem 12

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address ST JOHNS SCHOOL POTTER STREET HILL NORTHWOOD

Development: Retention of additional classroom and assembly area with library for pre-
preparatory school, together with first aid room and staff toilet, without
complying with condition 4 of planning permission ref: 10795/APP/2001/1600
dated 21/11/2001 (which limits pupil numbers at the school to 350 and staff
to no more than 40) to allow the retention of the current numbers of 405
pupils and 65 full-time equivalent staff (Retrospective application.)

LBH Ref Nos: 10795/APP/2011/91

Drawing Nos: 200
201
202
203
204
Transport Statement
Planning, Design and Access Statement
E-mail from agent received 10th February 2011

Date Plans Received: 17/01/2011 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 17/01/2011
1. SUMMARY

This application is a re-submission of an earlier application (10795/APP/2009/1560) to
retain a single storey extension to the school which is sited within the Green Belt without
complying with condition 4 of the original permission (10795/APP/2001/1600) which
limited pupil and staff numbers at the school to 350 and 40 full time equivalent (FTE)
respectively so as to allow current numbers of 405 pupils and 65 FTE staff to be retained.
When the extension was built, the school was already in breach of this condition and it
would appear that the school have had similar pupil and staff numbers at the current
levels for the last five years.

The application was originally described as a variation of the condition and presented to
the North Planning Committee meeting on 22nd December 2009, but following Legal
Officer advice, given the school's non-compliance with this condition from the outset, the
original permission could not be relied upon to authorise the building works and the
extension has to be considered anew, albeit the building has been on site for over 4
years and is thus, immune from any enforcement action. The application was therefore
deferred in order to allow the description to be amended, re-consultations with
neighbours to take place and amendments on the addendum sheet and full policy
references to be included in the officer's report. The application was re-presented to the
North Planning Committee meeting on the 29th April 2010, but refused against officer
recommendation on the grounds of the impact of increased pupil and staff numbers at
the school on highway safety and the visual amenity of the Green Belt. An appeal against
the refusal has been lodged but in the meantime, this application has been submitted
which provides up-dated information and new analysis of the development.

It should also be noted that changes in school in-takes have changed in the past 12

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 99



months, such that there is no longer capacity in surrounding schools to absorb potentially
55 pupils. This is an important material consideration which ways in favour of approving
the application.

Although the Council's Highway Officer previously did not object to the proposal on
highway safety grounds, a main criticism made by neighbours of the transport
assessment undertaken was that survey data was only collected on a single day which
may not have been representative. The new assessment is based on additional survey
information including traffic counts at the school on a number of occasions and at
different times of the school year. The assessment is now more robust and effectively
demonstrates that the prevailing conditions on the surrounding highway with increased
pupil and staff numbers at the school have not prejudiced highway safety. Furthermore,
the school is actively seeking means to reduce the numbers of pupils arriving at the site
by car and the School's Travel Plan demonstrates that there has been a 7.7% reduction
in the number of pupils arriving by car and further improvements are being considered.
On this basis, the Highway Engineer does not object to the development on highway
safety grounds.

An analysis has also been carried out on the impact of additional pupil and staff numbers
at the school has had on the Green Belt. It is considered that it has adequately
demonstrated that the increase in numbers has not been detrimental to the visual
amenity and openness of the Green Belt.

The application is recommended accordingly.

2. RECOMMENDATION

That subject to no further responses being received that raise additional material
planning issues that have not already been considered in this report, that the
application be approved, subject to the following:

That authority be given to the Head of Planning, Trading Standards and
Environmental Protection, to determine the application under delegated powers,
subject to the following:

1. That the Council enter into a legal agreement with the applicants under Section
106/Unilateral Undertaking of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
amended) or other appropriate legislation to secure:

(i) that the number of pupils enrolled with the school for attendance at the school
site for educational purposes shall not at any time exceed 405 in aggregate
(excluding pupils enrolled for attendance in the future and former pupils);

(ii) that the number of members of staff engaged to provide services to the school
at the school site shall not at any time exceed the equivalent of 65 full-time
members of staff; and

(iii) that not later than one calendar month after the beginning of each academic
year the school will notify the Council in writing of the number of pupils as
described in (i) and the number of members of staff engaged for that academic
year as described in (ii).

2. That the applicant meets the Council's reasonable costs in the preparation of

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 100



the S106 Agreement and any abortive work as a result of the agreement not being
completed.

3. If the S106 Agreement has not been finalised within 6 months, the application to
be referred back to the Planning Committee for determination.

4. That officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed terms of the
proposed agreement.

5. That on completion of the S106 Agreement, the application be deferred for
determination by the Head of Planning and Enforcement under delegated powers.

6. That if the application is approved, the following conditions and informatives be
attached:

1 NONSC Non Standard Condition

The temporary car park/playground adjoining and accessed from Potter Street Hill shall
not be used for staff parking.

REASON

In order to comply with the terms of this application in order to ensure that highway and
pedestrian safety is not prejudiced, in compliance with policy AM17(ii) of the adopted
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2009).

2 NONSC Non Standard Condition

The building hereby permitted shall be used only for purposes ancillary to the school and
shall not be used by the general public.

REASON

To prevent the generation of additional traffic giving rise to problems of safety and
congestion in Potter Street Hill, in accordance with policy AM7(ii) of the adopted
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

3 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Within 1 month of the date of this permission, details of covered and secure parking for
at least 30 cycles shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The approved provision shall be implemented on site within 2 months from the
date of the approval of details permission and thereafter permanently retained.

REASON

To ensure that appropriate cycle parking facilities are provided, in accordance with policy
AM9 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2009).

4 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Within 1 month of the date of this permission, details of the opening and closing times of
the shared use playground/parents car park and management of pick-up/drop-off car
parking shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
temporary car park shall thereafter be made available for car parking by parents in
accordance with the approved details.

REASON

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 101



To ensure that the temporary car parking is available for appropriate periods during the
peak morning drop-off and afternoon pick-up periods to safeguard highway and
pedestrian safety, in accordance with policy AM7(ii) of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national

guidance.

PPS1 Delivering Sustainable Development

PPG2 Green Belts

LPP 3D.9 London Plan Policy 3D.9 - Green Belt

oL1 Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new
development

OoL4 Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

R10 Proposals for new meeting halls and buildings for education, social,
community and health services

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

CACPS Council's Adopted Car Parking Standards (Annex 1, HUDP, Saved
Policies, September 2007)

LPP 3A.24 London Plan Policy 3A.24 - Education Facilities

EC2 Nature conservation considerations and ecological assessments

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking
facilities

3. CONSIDERATIONS

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 102



3.1 Site and Locality

St John's School is located on the western side of Potter Street Hill, on a 12.4 hectare site
near the top of Pinner Hill, close to the borough boundaries with the London Borough of
Harrow and Three Rivers District Council. It forms a predominantly steeply sloping site
between Potter Street Hill and Wieland Road to the west, with views over lower ground to
the south, looking across a wide area of London.

The school comprises an original house dating from the 1920s, with purpose built school
buildings constructed since 1970 sited towards the north of the site on an approximate
1.05 hectare area of relatively flat ground on which all the main school buildings are sited,
with the rest of the school site forming playing fields and open space. The main vehicular
access to the school is also taken at this point from Potter Street Hill, with the main
access road crossing the site, which links to Wieland Road through an arched entrance
building. School buildings front the access road to the north and south, with a hard-
surfaced playground/car-park immediately to the north of the main entrance on Potter
Street Hill. The extension, the subject of this application is sited behind the buildings
which front the northern side of the access road and the western side of the
playground/temporary car park.

Potter Street Hill at this point forms the borough boundary with the London Borough of
Harrow and on the eastern side of the road are large detached properties on substantial
plots which form part of the Pinner Hill Estate. Similar properties adjoin the site to the
west, which form part of the Gatehill Estate.

The extension is well screened from nearby residential properties to the west and Potter
Street Hill is densely lined with trees which obscure views of the school from the east. To
the north of the site there is one house with a view over the school complex.

Potter Street Hill is blocked to vehicular traffic at its northern end, adjacent to the northern
boundary of the school. From its junction with Hillside Road/Potter Street to the south, the
road has a footpath along most of its length on the eastern side, with the exception of a
150m long central section. Vehicular access to properties on the Potter Hill Estate can
also be gained from Hillside Road, via Pinner Hill and South View and Park View Roads.

The whole of the school site, with the exception of that part of the access road nearest to
Wieland Road, forms part of the Green Belt as identified in the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007). Part of the school grounds to the
south also form part of a Nature Conservation Site of Borough Grade Il or Local
Importance. The adjoining Gatehill Estate is also identified as an Area of Special Local
Character.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

This application is to retain a single storey building at the school, which was erected
without being in compliance with condition 4 which limited pupil and staff numbers to 350
and 40 FTE respectively to enable the school to retain current pupil and staff numbers of
405 pupils and 65 FTE staff. This is a re-submission of an earlier application
(10795/APP/2009/1560) which was refused at the North Planning committee meeting on
the 29th April 2010 against officer recommendation.

The application has been revised and now includes amended plans showing the extension
as built on site and revised and up-dated Planning, Design and Access and Transport
Statements. These are described below:

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 103



Planning, Design and Access Statement

This describes the background to the application. It states that the school have been
operating in ignorance of the limitation since the building was constructed and the aim of
this application is to allow the school to retain the current numbers of 405 pupils and 65
full time equivalent staff. It highlights the fact that as the building has been completed for
more than 4 years, it is immune from enforcement action. The application follows an
earlier application that was refused by the Council, contrary to officer recommendation
and an appeal has now been lodged. In the meantime, this application seeks to address
the issues raised in the earlier refused application. It then summarises the changes made
in this application.

The history of the school site is then briefly discussed. It then goes on to advise that
during 2009, a new inspection regime was introduced for independent schools, more
closely following that used by OFSTED in the state sector. St John's was one of the first
schools in the country to be inspected by the Independent Schools Inspectorate (ISl) in
January and February 2010 and received an excellent report which found the school to be
fully compliant with no regulatory failings. Importantly, the inspection did not highlight or
report any requirements for improvements to either the buildings, classroom sizes or the
general teaching environment and the inspection team were satisfied that sufficient
facilities exist at the school to accommodate the educational needs of 405 pupils from 3 to
13 years of age.

Extra-curricular activities and the community contribution made by the school are
discussed, including the school's strong links with Sunshine House School in Northwood
which provides education, rehabilitation and residential respite care, raising funds and
arranging visits and the school has also sought to work with the borough to allow the use
of its facilities with other schools, although some planning conditions on some facilities
restrict such use. The school remain keen to promote dual use of their facilities at no cost
to themselves. The report goes on to advise that over recent years, 5% of the gross fee
income has been designated for bursary requests from parents of existing and
prospective pupils. In the academic year 2009/2010, the school provided approximately
£120,000 in bursaries and currently there are seven means tested bursaries for parents
who would otherwise not be able to send their children to the school.

The school site and the surrounding area are then described and the statement notes that
there is considerable boundary planting, particularly along the edges of Potter Street Hill,
Hillside Road and Wieland Road. The woodland areas within the school are informally
managed by the school and used for environmental education purposes. School buildings
are then described, together with access and parking arrangements.

Planning history is then discussed, and then the report focuses upon pupil and staff
numbers. It advises that the school caters for pupils aged 3 to 13 and a table of total pupil
numbers shows that the limitation of 350 pupils has been consistently exceeded since
2000 and the school therefore already breached the original condition limiting pupil and
staff numbers at the time it was imposed. There has been a marginal increase in numbers
since 2000, but for the last five years, pupil numbers have been within 10 of the 405 now
sought, with only one year, 2008 exceeding this at 406. The report advises that the school
has reviewed how this situation came about and puts this down to the physical separation
of functions between St John's and Merchant Taylor's Schools, but this separation of
function has now been addressed, with all administration now taking place at St John's
itself. A Bursar for the School was appointed in September 2008 to be responsible for site
management on a day to day basis including buildings, services and general

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 104



administration of non-teaching areas. In addition, in the most recent academic year, the
Chairman of Governors put in place a Governance structure for the School that ensures
each member of the governing body has responsibility for a particular function of the
school and this has proved very helpful and this and other areas of governance of the
school were considered to be 'outstanding' by the ISI in January 2010.

The report goes on to advise that on a typical day, a school club operates from 7:30 and
the nursery and pre-preparatory schools are open from 8:20 with the rest of the school
starting at 8:25. Finishing times are staggered, with the nursery finishing at 14:50, and the
pre-preparatory school finishing between 15:00 and 15:10. The junior school finishes at
15:50 with the Middle and Upper Schools finishing at 16:00. After schools activities are
completed by 17:30 in the autumn/winter terms and by 18:15 in the summer term. There
is also an after school club which closes at 18:00. The report then goes on to advise that
the school has operated with 65 full time equivalent (fte) staff for the last five years. This
breaks down as 35 teaching staff (34.4 fte), 10 teaching assistants (9.0 fte) and 29 non-
teaching staff (20.9 fte), giving a total of 74 or 64.3 fte staff.

The report then goes on to consider the school travel plan and parking management. It
advises that the final version of the Travel Plan was issued in May 2009 and based on a
number of questionnaires of both staff and parents. Since the adoption of the plan, a
number of initiatives have been pursued by the school, namely:

* A car sharing scheme has been implemented,

* A fleet of 25 bicycles has been purchased to be used for proficiency training and by
those not using their own bicycles,

* A secure cycle storage facility has been provided,

* The Travel Plan is fully communicated within the school by inclusion on the school's web
site, notice boards and direct communication with parents. Parents also receive regular
news and term letters detailing the travel requirements sought from them in attending the
school,

* A pedestrian route has been created within the school grounds linking Potter Street Hill
(at a point approximately 100m from its junction with Hillside Road) to the main school
buildings, which includes light sensitive bollard lighting.

The statement goes on to advise that these initiatives represent the first stage of the
implementation of the Travel Plan. Future initiatives include a proposal for a potential
drop-off area close to the bottom of the new pathway next to an existing gated access.
This would be subject to the grant of planning permission and would reduce the number of
cars travelling up and down Potter Street Hill. In addition, the possibility of a pedestrian
crossing at the bottom of Potter Street Hill/ Hillside Road has been discussed with the
Council, as has a pavement along the full length of Potter Street Hill. Both would need to
be subject to feasibility studies. Since the beginning of the school term in September
2010, additional traffic measures have been introduced within the playground car park, the
main area for student drop-off which are more fully described in the Transport Statement
and have improved the flow of traffic on Potter Street Hill and reduced the tendency of
parents to park outside the school. Since the last refusal, the school has also reconfirmed
that parents should not use the Gateshill Estate access. A Travel Plan Review has
recently been published, detailing how many of the Travel Plan objectives have been
progressed and where further action is required. Importantly, a further mode of transport
survey has been undertaken which demonstrates an overall reduction in car use of 7.7%
since the creation of the Travel Plan in 2009, with a 3% increase in car sharing, 2%
increase in walking and 3% of pupils now 'park and stride', using the new footpath.

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 105



The report then turns to highway and pedestrian safety issues, the first reason for refusal
of the earlier application. The report considers that the measures taken by the school,
together with the further studies undertaken demonstrate that this issue has been
adequately addressed. That said, the report points out that any proper consideration of
the application needs to take full account of the benefits of providing educational places in
the locality and the adverse impact that a refusal of permission would have on the school
and its displaced pupils. These are discussed later in the statement.

The statement then goes on to consider transport issues. It advises that the Transport
Statement submitted with the earlier application was criticised by some third parties as the
surveys of existing traffic were not considered to be representative, being taken on a
single day (Tuesday 19th May 2009). Now additional surveys on three consecutive days
on two separate occasions, one in the summer term and one in the autumn have been
carried out, in addition to an Automatic Traffic Counter which was placed on Potter Street
Hill some 150m south of the school's entrance for 7 consecutive days at the same time as
the first survey period and again from 27 August to 6 September 2010 to record traffic
movements and speeds during non-term time for comparison purposes. During the
second survey period, traffic counts were also taken at the junction of Potter Street Hill
with Hillside Road.

The assessment shows that on average, the number of vehicles dropping off or picking up
pupils is 616 per day. On the basis of 405 pupils, that equates to 1.31 pupils per vehicle or
with 91% of pupils travelling by car, 1.2 pupils. The survey shows that there is very little
traffic from the Wieland Road access, with a maximum of 11 vehicles in one morning
peak hour (08:00 to 09:00). There is queuing on Potter Street Hill to access the school's
car park, but this dissipates very quickly, with no more than 20 vehicles in a queue
occurring on average between 6 mins 42 secs and 11 mins 33 secs per day during term
time. Moreover, this queuing does not cause any particular inconvenience to other road
users, particularly as there are alternative routes through the adjoining residential estate,
using Hillside Road, Pinner Hill Road, South View Road and Park View Road. In terms of
parking, the school has a well-managed car park with approximately 53 spaces. Demand
in the car park only exceeded the amount of spaces on three occasions, twice in the
afternoon and once in the morning. The maximum accumulation of 59 vehicles occurred
on Tuesday 28th September for a duration of just under five minutes. The average length
of stay during the morning period is 9 mins 37 secs and 16 mins 13 secs in the afternoon,
reflecting that parents tend to arrive in good time to pick up their children at the end of the
school day, whereas they have some flexibility in the morning and can drive off once their
child is safely in school. Average vehicle speed along Potter Street Hill during term time
was 27.4 and 28.1 mph in the AM and PM peak respectively, comparing with 30.1 and
30.0 during non-term time. Additional vehicles during term time therefore do not have any
appreciable impact on vehicle speeds which appear to be influenced by speed limit and
characteristics of the road.

The statement advises that the new surveys are broadly consistent with the one day
survey and they confirm that at no time is there significant congestion or interruption of the
free flow of traffic, with the queuing that does occur being quickly dissipated and this is
being addressed to some extent by the school's management regime.

The statement goes on to advise that as regards safety issues, records held by Transport
for London go back to 1998 while Hertfordshire County Council only hold records for the
last five years. During the last 12 years, only one accident has been recorded on Potter
Street Hill on Tuesday 10th December 2002 at 08:20 which only involved slight injury.
Over the last five years, there have been no injuries, and the accident rate on Potter

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 106



Street Hill is below the national average for this type of road demonstrating that the road
network around the school operates safely.

Drop-off/pick-ups on Potter Street Hill during a typical school day total up to 83 with a
maximum of 18 vehicles parked on the street at any one time. During a typical school day,
there are up to 197 pedestrians (including parents/carers) walking along and across
Potters Street Hill. It is reasonable to assume that this level of activity has been similar
over the last five years due to similar pupil numbers at the school, so it is clear that current
pupil numbers at the school do not prejudice conditions of general highway and
pedestrian safety. Furthermore, on-street parking does not cause any particular issues for
adjoining residential properties on Potter Street Hill, all of whom have extensive off-street
parking within their large curtilages.

A tracking exercise has been undertaken and this demonstrates that a fire tender (the
largest emergency vehicle) could still travel along Potter Street Hill with queuing traffic so
that emergency vehicle access would not be compromised.

As regards staff, there are 50 marked spaces, 5 of which are allocated for visitors. There
are also areas which are regularly used for staff parking which provide a further 18 spaces
and all the parking spaces have been shown on a plan. The statement goes on to advise
that a survey undertaken for the previous application on 16th November 2009 revealed a
total of 51 staff vehicles parked on site. In total, 74 staff are employed at the school of
which 59 are full time. As the total includes 25 part time staff, the number of staff present
at the school at any one time is generally less than 74. According to the survey
undertaken as part of the Travel Plan (2009), 81% of staff drive to school. Thus, there
should be a total parking requirement of 58 spaces on the basis of all staff being present
at the school at the same time as compared to the 63 spaces being available for staff
parking. Therefore, staff have no need to park on adjoining roads and staff parking has no
impact upon the adjoining highway network.

A reduction in pupil numbers at the school to 350 would reduce peak parking demand
which was recorded at 66 vehicles and this would reduce to 57 vehicles. Queuing would
also reduce from the observed maximum 20 vehicles to 17, and the average duration of
queues on a typical day from 11 mins 33 secs to 9 mins 59 secs in the morning and from
6 mins 42 secs to 5 mins 48 secs in the afternoon peak.

A reduction in pupil numbers would therefore result in a very small reduction in the length
and duration of queuing along Potter Street Hill and theoretically reduce the probability of
highway safety issues but as currently, the probability of highway safety issues is
extremely low, the reduction would not result in any measurable improvement for road
safety. As such, the above analysis confirms that the retention of pupil and staff numbers
in fully compliant with Policies AM7 and AM14 of the UDP.

The statement then goes on to consider Green Belt issues associated with the increase in
pupil and staff numbers, the analysis of which is presented at Section 7.05 of this report.
This section of the statement does briefly consider the building itself and stresses that as
it was constructed well over 4 years ago, it is immune from enforcement action and will
therefore remain, whatever the outcome of this application. Indeed, the report advises that
this was reflected in the previous refusal reason which refers to the intensification of the
use, and not the building itself. The statement goes on to advise that if the issue of the
retention of the building was at stake, the fact that the building is immune from
enforcement action represents very special circumstances to justify its retention. This
section of the report then goes on to advise that the majority of development allowed at

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 107



the school was consistent with Green Belt policy at the time and was not considered to
represent 'inappropriate development' as it was only the changes made to the 1995
version of PPG2 that removed development at 'institutions standing in extensive grounds'
as being appropriate within the Green Belt.

The statement then assesses other planning considerations. It cites PPS1 and the
balance to be struck between environmental impact and social benefits and that any
potentially negative impacts of development on the environment needs to be considered
against the positive effects of development in terms of economic benefits and social well
being. The UDP recognises the need to provide for educational development, highlighting
potential increases in pupil numbers, and Policy R10 states that proposals for new
educational buildings will be acceptable, subject to other policies in the plan.

Maintaining current pupil numbers will allow existing buildings at the school to be used in a
manner which allows the optimum number of pupils to be taught. Any reduction will
require pupils to be taught elsewhere, either in the state system or other independent
schools which are likely to be a greater distance from the immediate locality, causing
greater journey lengths in addition to disruption to pupils. There are clear educational
benefits of maintaining the school at its present size.

The school has no current plans to extend current or construct new buildings. In any
event, if planning applications were made, these would need to be dealt with on their
merits. As set out in the ISI report, no deficiencies were identified with the existing
teaching accommodation. Accordingly, this application would not give rise to possible
future applications that might be perceived as threatening the Green Belt.

Losing fifty five fee paying pupils, or 13.5% per annum of circa £500k of gross income
would erode the school's ability to maintain its existing structure. Many overheads would
remain at their current levels. Any reduction in gross income would impact upon the
school's ability to provide bursary funding at the level that has been applied for a number
of years. Currently, 5% of gross fee income per annum is available to assist pupils from
less affluent backgrounds and therefore the school would not fulful its public benefit
obligations as required by the Charities Act 2006.

The report goes on to advise of the practical difficulties of reducing pupil numbers and
advises that this could not happen immediately. The only practical way would be to not
replace those pupils whose parents relocate elsewhere and those that leave in the middle
of their time at St Johns which would be very few. Annual intake could be gradually
reduced but class sizes would become too small with a detrimental impact upon teaching
and learning. Enough pupils in each class are required for them to be able to share
experiences and participate in group activities. The fifty five pupils would have to be
educated elsewhere and currently all local competitor preparatory schools are full and
would not have spaces available. It could also be problematic for the local authority to
accommodate the extra pupils. The only other option would be to relocate certain years
away from the site but this is not seen as a viable option, given land and other restraints in
the area and would almost certainly increase travel distances as siblings would need to be
dropped off at different locations.

The school also advises that it would be impossible to run the school with 25 less full-time
equivalent staff. Teachers at St. John's are either specialists or general subject teachers
who teach all the main academic subjects through to Year 4. With fewer numbers in each
class, it would still be necessary to offer the same range of subjects and have the same
number of teachers. Similarly with non-teaching staff, the same number of buildings and

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 108



grounds would need to be maintained and with a small secretarial and administrative
section, less pupils would not reduce the need for administrative staff. Reduced pupil
numbers would also impact upon the quality of facilities and resources, and result in no
further capital investment, resulting in St John's becoming less attractive to parents of
potential students.

Transport Statement

The main findings of the Transport Statement are fully discussed within the Planning,
Design and Access Statement.

It does advise that since the beginning of the school term in September 2010, additional
traffic management measures have been introduced within the playground car park. In the
morning, up until 8:25, an area of car parking spaces closest to the school buildings is
cordoned off as a dedicated drop-off zone for about 4 to 5 vehicles. Parents with children
who do not need to be accompanied to the classroom (generally those in Year 3 and
above), can quickly drop off their children without the need to park. The cordon is
removed at about 8:25 (at which time Year 3 and above pupils should be in their
classrooms) with the car parking spaces becoming available again until 9:00.

3.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History

An earlier application (10795/APP/2009/1560) for the retention of the additional classroom
and assembly area building with library for pre-prep school, together with first aid room
and staff toilet without complying with condition 4 of 10795/APP/2001/1600 was deferred
from the North Planning Committee meeting on the 22nd December 2009 before being
refused at the North Planning committee meeting on the 29th April 2010 for the following
reasons:

1. The proposal by reason of the increase in capacity of pupils and staff would result in
increase in parking demand and traffic to the detriment of highway and pedestrian safety
and contrary to Policy AM7 and AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies September 2007.

2. The proposed development would result in an intensification of use to the detriment of
the visual amenities of the Green Belt contrary to Policy OL4 of the adopted Hillingdon
Unitary Development plan Saved Policies September 2007 and National Planning Policy
as set out in Planning Policy Guidance Note 2 - Green Belts.

An appeal has been lodged.

The original application (10795/APP/2001/1600) for the erection of the building was
granted on 21st November 2001. Condition 4 of this application states:

The total number of pupils at the school shall not exceed 350 and the total number of staff
shall not exceed 40 full time equivalent.

Reason:
To prevent the generation of additional traffic giving rise to problems of safety and
congestion in Potter Street Hill.

Other relevant building history at the school:

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 109



10795/AJ/91/714 - Erection of a two storey classroom block (including staff facilities) and
associated car parking - Approved 29/11/91.

10795/AN/94/972 - Details of scheme of landscaping in compliance with condition 5 of
planning permission ref. 10795/AN/94/872 dated 29/11/91 - Approved 23/06/94.

10795/AR/97/436 - Erection of a part two storey, part single storey detached building to
provide assembly hall, four new classrooms, music practice rooms and toilets - Approved
10/06/98.

10795/APP/2009/199 - Erection of a two storey extension to existing junior school block to
provide new teaching spaces and associated staff, toilet and cloakroom facilities, and
erection of a single storey to dining hall/kitchen facilities to provide new storage and
catering staff welfare facilities - Refused 06/04/09.

4, Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.10

PT1.1

PT1.30

PT1.31

To seek to ensure that development does not adversely affect the amenity and
the character of the area.

To maintain the Green Belt for uses which preserve or enhance the open nature
of the area.

To promote and improve opportunities for everyone in Hillingdon, including in
particular women, elderly people, people with disabilities and ethnic minorities.

To encourage the development and support the retention of a wide range of local
services, including shops and community facilities, which are easily accessible to
all, including people with disabilities or other mobility handicaps.

Part 2 Policies:

PPS1
PPG2
LPP 3D.9
OoL1
OoL4
BE13
BE15
BE20
BE21
BE24
BE38

Delivering Sustainable Development

Green Belts

London Plan Policy 3D.9 - Green Belt

Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new development
Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 110



R10 Proposals for new meeting halls and buildings for education, social, community
and health services

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

CACPS Council's Adopted Car Parking Standards (Annex 1, HUDP, Saved Policies,
September 2007)

LPP 3A.24 London Plan Policy 3A.24 - Education Facilities

EC2 Nature conservation considerations and ecological assessments

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway

improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking facilities
5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 9th February 2011
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

125 neighbouring properties have been consulted and two notices have been displayed on site. 4
responses have been received, one of which is in support.

The objection responses make the following points:

(i) The school has a record of ignoring any rules and regulations and quite clearly, any conditions
which the LPA imposes. Their reason for not complying with original condition is that they did not
know about it which is ignorance. School does not organise its affairs in a diligent manner and
ignores its neighbours.

(i) Potter Street Hill is not built for the amount of traffic which now uses it. Every day, a traffic jam
forms and we have to sit in it until we get to our property or make sure we are off the road before
the school finishes.

(iii) Residential drive is being used as a passing point, even by coaches and damaging driveway,
(iv) Too many vehicles using entrance to the school in Wieland Road, which the school had agreed
to control and limit. However, this could be deliberate to reduce peak time traffic at main school
entrance,

(v) Object to application if increases traffic flow or encroaches upon the green bel,

(vi) This should not even be considered as school cannot be trusted.

Northwood Hills Residents' Association: No response received
Northwood Residents' Association: No response received

Gatehill (Northwood) Residents' Association: No response received
Ickenham Residents' Association: No response received

London Borough of Harrow: No response received

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 111



Three Rivers District Council: No response received

Internal Consultees
Highway Engineer:

St John's School is located to the west of Potter Street Hill, Northwood and to the east of Wieland
Road. Potter Street Hill is a no through road and Wieland Road is a cul-de-sac. The site currently
has permission for a maximum of 350 pupils. Consequently the highway comments are based on
the impact of an additional 55 pupils and 25 members of staff.

A Transport Statement (TS) has been submitted in support of this application, which suggests that
the school currently has 405 pupils and 65 full time equivalent members of staff and has been
operating with approximately the current numbers of pupils and staff since 2003.

The main access for parents and visitors is off Potter Street Hill with an in and out arrangement for
the car park, which has a total of 53 marked spaces. The southern access is used as an IN and the
northern access as an OUT of the car park. This segregated arrangement helps in the movement
of vehicles at drop off and pick up times. During peak pickup/drop times, given the short duration of
stay required by parents/carers, additional drivers are able to make use of some unmarked areas
and also manoeuvre around the car park.

As per the Transport Statement there are a total of 50 marked out staff car parking spaces spread
around the site, with 5 allocated for visitors. In addition to the marked spaces, there are areas
which are regularly used for staff parking which provide space for a further 18 vehicles. A survey
carried out on the morning of 16 November 2009 revealed that a total of 51 staff cars we located on
site. Staff survey carried out in January 2009 for the Travel Plan which has been agreed with the
Council revealed that a total of 81% of staff drive to school, 9% walk to school and the remaining
10% either being passengers or use other modes. Thus there should be a total parking
requirement of 58 spaces on the basis all employees are present at the school at the same time.

Surveys of travel patterns associated with the school have been undertaken over a period of six
days during two separate terms. The survey equipment was faulty on Thursday 30th September,
however the sample size of the other survey readings provides adequate confidence level in the
survey results. In relation to the queue lengths south of the Potter Street Hill access the survey
demonstrates that queue lengths vary substantially across the survey peaks, ranging from a
maximum of 0 to 20 vehicles. Similarly the number of vehicles parked on Potter Street Hill also
varies considerably ranging from 0 to 18. The traffic movements are concentrated between two
periods; 0800 to 0900 and 1430 to 1600.

During the morning period queues were recorded generally between 0820 and 0835, with
maximum queue lengths across each of the survey days ranging from 7 to 20 vehicles. The
maximum queue length of 20 vehicles occurred on Tuesday 29th June for a period of less than one
minute.

During the afternoon period queues were recorded generally between 1450 to 1505 and 1550 to
1600, with maximum queue lengths across each of the survey days ranging from 0 to 13 vehicles.

In comparison with the morning period, queues in the afternoon period are generally shorter, which
is largely due to the staggered finishing times of the school compared to the concentrated start
times in the morning. In addition, the surveys show that queues in September were generally lower
than in June, particularly in the morning period, which could be explained by the introduction of
improved car park management, particularly the drop-off arrangement.

The survey and observations contained in the submitted TS assert that there are no severe

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 112



congestion problems as a result of the current levels of activity at the school. The Council's
Highway Engineers have carried out site visits during peak morning and afternoon drop-off and pick
up timings, and our observations confirm that the majority of the car parking associated with the
School takes place within the site, however some overspill parking and queuing were observed in
Potter Street Hill, but these are not considered to cause highway safety issues and/or access
issues to other nearby properties.

From the surveys carried out in support of the TS for the previous application, both in the morning
and afternoon periods, no cars were observed stopping and waiting to drop off or pick up either
pupils or staff in Wieland Road. The new surveys demonstrate low car movements associated with
the Wieland Road access. The Council's Highway Engineers' site visits also did not observe any
related car parking/traffic problems at the Wieland Road access.

The personal injury accidents database for a period of 5 years have been analysed in the TS and
confirms that there are no related personal injury accidents reported during this period on the
surrounding highway network.

Potter Hill Street has no footway in places. A School Travel Plan was prepared and agreed with the
Council in 2009 and a review was undertaken in 2010. The plan contains measures to reduce car
reliance, promote car sharing, cycling and walking. As part of the travel plan measures, a
pedestrian route has been created within the school grounds linking Potter Street Hill (at a location
approximately 100m from its junction with Hillside Road) to the main School buildings. This
pathway includes light sensitive bollards.

Queue length surveys carried out at the junction of Potter Street Hill/Potter Street/Hillside Road in
support of the previous application showed a maximum queue length of 8 vehicles, which dispersed
in less than a minute.

Notwithstanding the above, for the additional 55 pupils and 25 members of staff, the impacts of any
additional parking demand and additional traffic on the local highway network are considered to be
insignificant.

In the light of the above considerations, no objection is raised on the transportation aspect of the
proposals subject to suitable conditions being applied to restrict the number of pupils and staff as
proposed, restrict any staff parking within the car park fronting Potter Street Hill, drop-off & pick-up
parking management plans, and provision of 30 cycle parking spaces.

Education and Children's Services:

The Northwood area has experienced a surge in demand for primary school places since summer
2010 due to an unusual increase in net inward migration. In addition, births in Northwood and
Northwood Hills wards have increased in recent years and this will place more demand on local
primary schools in future. Most simply, the evidence of increasing demand for school places is
apparent in the official births record, illustrated in Table 1 at Appendix B.

The total effect of all local factors is included when making assessments for future school place
requirements. The most recent forecast for this part of the borough is illustrated in Table 2 at
Appendix B. There are now few remaining places available in the lower year groups at local primary
schools and this situation will get worse. To meet growing demand, Hillingdon Council are
formulating proposals to expand a local primary school.

Given the evidence of increased demand for local school places, Hillingdon Education & Children's
Service does not wish to see any downsizing of local private schools (which may result from refusal
of the latest planning application). The effect of fewer places available at local private school could

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 113



be to further increase demand for local maintained places at this difficult time.

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
The principle of the development

The main issue concerning the principle of this development relates to its Green Belt
siting. This issue is addressed at Section 7.05.
Density of the proposed development

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to this application.
Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

The school forms part of the Green Belt. PPG2: Green Belts which was published in
January 1995 and amended in March 2001 lists the categories of development that can
be considered to be appropriate within the Green Belt and it is noted that the proposal
does not fall into any of these. As such, the school building represents inappropriate
development and it is for the applicant to demonstrate that 'very special circumstances'
exist to justify the development.

To this end, the applicant's have submitted a revised Planning, Design and Access
Statement that fully considers the impact of the development upon the Green Belt. Firstly,
the original application for the building was considered and approved by the
Ruislip/Northwood Planning Committee on the 20th November 2001 and although it was
considered to represent 'inappropriate development' since the latest changes had been
made to PPS2, it was considered that the building was acceptable in Green Belt terms.

There has been no material change in Green Belt policy or circumstances on site since
the previous officer's report on the original application (10795/APP/2001/1600) to suggest
that the building is no longer appropriate. Furthermore, the building has been erected and
has been on site for more than 4 years. As such, the building is immune from enforcement
action, which is an important material consideration.

Turning to the second reason for refusal of the previous application
(10795/APP/2009/1560) to retain the building without complying with the original condition
controlling pupil and staff nhumbers which concerned the intensification of the use, a
detailed analysis of the green belt issues surrounding this application has been submitted
as part of the Design and Access Statement. The statement advises that since the
previous application was refused, the School has undertaken a number of initiatives. The
first of these is the implementation of the School Travel Plan which has produced a 7.7%
reduction in pupils travelling by car, hence reducing any impact associated with the
'intensification' permitted by this application. Other green travel initiatives have sought to
reduce the impact upon Potter Street Hill and the site as a whole. The School, following
discussions with the Council's Landscape Officer, has also planted an area of
replacement landscaping on the western boundary of the site which assists with screening
from adjoining residential properties.

The Statement goes on to advise that with only 1.7ha or 14% of the 12.4ha site containing
buildings and hard surfacing, with the remainder of the site providing playing fields (3.9ha
or 31%) and areas of nature conservation and woodland (6.8ha or 55%), the site is
predominantly open in character. Considering the purposes of including land within the

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 114



Green Belt as set out in PPG2, the site helps to prevent the unrestricted sprawl of
neighbouring urban development and the undeveloped parts of the site have safeguarded
the land from encroachment. The statement goes on to advise that the site also
contributes to the positive roles land within the Green Belt can perform, namely that the
school provides access to open land for the urban population (albeit on a controlled basis)
and opportunities for outdoor sport and recreation. The positive management of the site
by the school also ensures that an attractive landscape is maintained which contributes
positively to the visual amenity of the area and the site's ecological and nature
conservation interest.

As it is accepted that the existing building, previously approved by the North Planning
Committee on the 20th November 2001 has been on site for more than 4 years, the
reason for refusal of the previous application seeking to retain pupil and staff numbers
only involved the intensification of the use of the site. To this end, the statement breaks
down the impact of intensification into three categories, namely (i) the physical presence
of more people on the site, (ii) the physical presence of more cars on site, and (iii) the
increase in traffic generation and the 'appearance’ of this traffic within the Green Belt.

The statement takes these in turn and considers whether individually or cumulatively they
render the application proposal 'inappropriate development' resulting in harm in principle
for which very special circumstances needs to be demonstrated, whether there is any
harm in practice and if either of the forgoing do apply, whether very special circumstances
do exist. In terms of the mere presence of more children and staff, the statement
considers that this by itself, does not constitute 'inappropriate development' under the
terms of PPS2. By way of explanation, the statement advises that whilst Green Belt policy
discourages development, it also positively encourages the use of the Green Belt by the
urban population. Appropriate uses of Green Belt land include 'access to the open
countryside' and 'opportunities for outdoor sport and recreation near urban areas'. Given
that the proposal does not involve physical works, the statement considers that more
pupils and staff at the site would increase the recreational use of the site and would not
conflict with the purposes of including the land within the Green Belt in this location. As
regards the openness of the Green Belt, the statement advises that the vast majority of
schooling takes place inside existing buildings and the increase in pupil and staff numbers
are accommodated in these existing buildings. During lessons, there is therefore no
discernible impact upon the Green Belt. At breaks between lessons, the majority of pupils
are able to use the main playground within the developed part of the school site which is
well screened from the wider Green Belt. If pupil numbers were to reduce from 405 to
350, the number using the playground would perhaps reduce in a similar proportion, but
this would have to be viewed in the context of the playground only being used during
restricted times of the day. Such a reduction would have no discernible beneficial impact
upon the openness of the Green Belt since the visual appearance of an additional 50 or
so pupils would not be readily apparent. The playing fields of the school are intermittently
used for games both within the school day and extra-curricular activities. The use of the
playing fields is consistent with the character of the land and Green Belt policy and the
level of use is unlikely to be much altered with 350 pupils as opposed to 405 pupils. For
these reasons, this aspect of the increased use of the site does not harm the openness or
the purpose of the Green Belt and by definition, does not need a case of very special
circumstances to be acceptable.

As regards staff parking, the statement advises that the increase from 40 to 65 FTE staff
might represent an increase in 15 more cars on the site. This level of increase cannot in
itself be considered to adversely affect the purposes of this part of the Green Belt or
impact upon its openness, given that the parking areas already exist to accommodate the

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 115



existing staff cars and no new areas have been created to accommodate the increased
number of staff. Furthermore, the main staff parking area is located within the developed
area of the school and the only areas that are not sited between buildings are five
approved spaces located to the south of the Junior Block and a total of six or so spaces
along the access road from Wieland Road, the only part of the school site which does not
form part of the Green Belt. Retention of existing staff numbers therefore causes no harm
to the openness of the Green Belt.

As regards the impact of traffic generation upon the Green Belt, the statement advises
that Potter Street Hill is an established highway which forms a developed feature within
the Green Belt which also provides access to a number of residential properties and a golf
club. The road contributes very little to the objectives of the Green Belt and any change in
traffic associated with increased pupil numbers cannot be construed as harming the
contribution made to Green Belt objectives by the school site. Parking for parents is
provided with the dual use playground adjoining Potter Street Hill and is not prominent in
any wider views of the Green Belt. The use of the playground for morning drop off and
afternoon pick up is transitory, as is any impact upon the Green Belt. The difference
between the amount of peak parking demand in relation to the existing number of pupils
as opposed to 350, as set out in the Transport Statement, would be 9 cars, reducing from
66 to 57. This peak lasts for a very short period and would have no discernible impact
upon the Green Belt. The Statement concludes by stating that the proposed development
has had little impact upon the openness or the visual amenities of the Green Belt.

Given the detailed assessment above, officers consider that the increase in pupil and staff
numbers has had little impact upon the openness and visual amenities of the Green Belt.
The development is considered to comply with Policy OL4 of the adopted Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2009) and PPG2: Green Belts.

7.06 Environmental Impact

Not applicable to this application.
7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The single storey building is well screened by surrounding buildings to the south and east
and has been recessed into the sloping ground level to the north and west. It harmonises
with the scale and design of surrounding school buildings. No objections were previously
raised as regards the impact of the building on the character and appearance of the
surrounding area and none are raised now. As such, the building complies with policies
BE13 and BE15 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).
7.08 Impact on neighbours

The previous report stated that the extensions is well screened from nearby residential
properties to the west, and Potter Street Hill is densely lined with trees which obscure
views of the school from the east. The nearest residential property on Woodgate Crescent
to the west is over a 100m from the single storey building which is screened by existing
school buildings. To the north, there is only one house with a view over the school
complex, in particular the area of the extension. This property, known as Gatehouse is
over 80m from the extension and sited on higher ground, with the nearest part of its rear
garden boundary over 55m away, separated by the school's cricket pitch. To the east, the
nearest residential property is 70m away. The extension, due to the sloping levels, has
also been set into the ground on its northern and western edges, with planting provided
above, beyond the retaining walls. As previously concluded, the building has no impact
upon the amenities of surrounding residential properties.

The additional pupil and staff numbers has not generated any significant additional noise,

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 116



fumes, smells and general disturbance as would be generated by the school site with the
authorised numbers of pupils/staff numbers and the background traffic volumes on
surrounding roads to justify a refusal of permission. The Council's Environmental
Protection Unit previously confirmed that there have not been any complaints concerning
noise and disturbance generated by pupils at the school in the last 5 years. Furthermore,
the adjoining properties, certainly on the opposite side of Potter Street Hill tend to be large
detached properties on substantial plots that generally have generous off-street car
parking provision available. Wider traffic issues have been dealt with at Section 7.10
below. As such, it is considered that the increase in pupil and staff numbers has not
resulted in a loss of residential amenity to surrounding properties. The application thus
complies with polices BE19 and OE1 of the adopted Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007).
7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

Not applicable to this application.
7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

This application has been supported by the submission of revised Planning, Access and
Design and Transport Statements. In response to criticisms by third parties on the
previous application, when a traffic survey was conducted on only one day (Tuesday 19th
May 2009), the revised Transport Assessment bases its assessment on two three day
survey periods, Tuesday 28th June to Thursday 1st July 2010 and Tuesday 28th
September to Thursday 30th September 2010 within the summer and autumn terms
respectively.

The Transport Assessment advises that there are 50 marked parking spaces within the
vicinity of the school buildings, 5 of which are for visitors, and a further 18 unmarked
spaces around the buildings which are available for staff parking. A staff surveys taken on
the 16th November 2009 identified 51 staff cars parked on site and a staff survey
undertaken as part of the January 2009 Travel Plan identified that 81% of staff drove to
work. On this basis, 58 spaces would need to be on site to satisfy staff demand for
parking if all staff were present at once. The 63 spaces are therefore adequate to satisfy
staff demand. The Highway Engineer does not raise any objection with this assessment.

Although the survey equipment recording drop off and pick up movement on Sandy Lane
on one of the survey days (30th September) was faulty, the Highway Engineer advises
that the sample size of the other survey readings provides adequate confidence in the
survey results. These surveys demonstrate that traffic queues do build to access the main
Potter Street Hill entrance to the school, both during morning and afternoon peaks, and
that these queues vary substantially, so that on one afternoon, there was no queuing,
whereas the maximum queue length recorded was 20 vehicles. Similarly, parking by
parents/carers on Potter Street Hill dropping off and picking up children also varies
considerably, ranging from 0 to 18 vehicles at any one time. However, the queues quickly
dissipate. The Council's Highway Engineer advises that the survey and observations of
the Transport Assessment assert that there are no severe congestion problems as a
result of the current levels of activity at the school. Furthermore, unlike a development
proposal, traffic associated with this development is already on site and the Council's
Highway Engineers have witnessed this during the peak morning and afternoon drop off
and pick up periods and generally confirm the findings of the Transport Assessment that
the majority of car parking associated with the school takes place within the site and the
limited overspill parking and queuing that does take place does not cause highway safety
issues and/or access problems for adjoining residents.

The Highway Officer concludes that the traffic associated with 55 pupils and 25 members

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 117



7.11

712

713

7.14

7.15

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

of staff in terms of the impacts of any additional parking demand and additional traffic on
the local highway network are considered to be insignificant. No highway objection is
raised subject to conditions restricting current levels of pupil and staff numbers, restricting
any staff parking within the car park fronting Potter Street Hill, drop-off and pick-up
management plans and provision of a minimum 30 spaces for cycle storage. As such, the
development is considered to comply with policies AM7(ii), AM9 and AM14 of the adopted
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2009)

Urban design, access and security

Urban design is dealt with at Section 7.07 above. Access is dealt with in Section 7.10
above and as an extension to the school, there are no additional security considerations.
Disabled access

The extension, including the provision of an access ramp was previously considered to
provide adequate facilities for people with disabilities. As the building has already been
built on site, no objections can be raised now to the disabled facilities provided. As such,
the scheme complies with policy R16 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan,
Saved Policies (September 2007).

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Parts of the school grounds to the south of the main area of school buildings are
designated as a Nature Conservation Site of Borough Grade Il or Local Importance. The
school extension has not involved and has not been sited close to this designated land.
Furthermore, the additional activity at the school represented by the increase in pupil and
staff numbers over and above the levels authorised at the November 2001 committee is
not likely to have had a demonstrable adverse impact upon the ecology of this area.
Although it appears that the school had previously removed a number of trees, these were
on the western side of the school, away from the extension and designated nature
conservation site and as such, formed a separate matter. However, a replacement
planting scheme has been introduced. The development is considered to comply with
policy EC2 of the adopted Hilingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

Sustainable waste management

Not applicable to this application.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

The development is for a school extension that has already been built on site, in
accordance with the relevant Building Regulations in place at the time. The extension
makes appropriate use of natural lighting and is considered to comply with policy 4A.7 of
the London Plan (February 2008).

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

See Section 7 above.
Comments on Public Consultations

The issues raised by the objectors have been considered in the main report.
Planning Obligations

Not applicable to this application.
Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
Other Issues

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 118



The school do advise of the potential difficulties which would be experienced in terms of
having to reduce pupil and staff numbers. Potentially, pupils would suffer if they had to re-
locate and with reduced income, the school would not be able to subsidise places at the
school for the less affluent and capital investment at the school would reduce. School also
advise that staff numbers could not be significantly reduced as only class sizes would
reduce, not class numbers. Furthermore, pupils would need to re-locate and it would
appear that there is no existing spare capacity in the state and private sectors in this
vicinity. These are material considerations that need to weighted against any perceived
benefits for the Green Belt and road safety of refusing the application.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware of
the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

This application effectively demonstrates that the retention of current pupil and staff
numbers at the school has had little adverse impact upon the visual amenities and
openness of the Green Belt and has not resulted in conditions prejudicial to highway and
pedestrian safety.

Furthermore, the limited impact of retaining current pupil and staff numbers at the school
has to be considered against the potential adverse impacts of refusing the application for
the pupils, staff, school and wider community and the difficulties that might be
experienced in terms of providing alternative school accommodation.

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 119



11. Reference Documents

Planning Policy Statement 1 (Sustainable Development)

PPG2 (Green Belts)

The London Plan (February 2008)

Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).
Consultation responses

Planning history

Contact Officer: Richard Phillips Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 120



Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the

St. Johns School,
Potter Street Hill,
Northwood

. w '—-" VLAY
\ ) i
2 o 18 R - : y 4
o G ! : RS AN ~ | Reservoir
S Q"?o — i)
O?E s ; % | {covered)
R ~
Co Const - |-
N = —_—— = t%
st ) 1<y Bop Const, GL Asly Gp A
J: 'E , ThoEIi ‘\:'_' CIIItisamE s -
g b = = e ':::‘ Qm;«
X 126m\
\\
P
1
LB
Py e ﬁLu‘ ~ -~
/ =~ I Srroooe
,'I"I N ooty o 8| n S Lt
R TN 15 B o= C:é
o . - wer LW
I NH by
7 825 W™ e ’ [ 8% a
\e ’,e" = !-
AN N\ JE DN [ &7
el ¥ A/ " — %I A
] Y. g = — I, Q
A2 & |
" V.. oL 1 '
Q o k 1‘ :) ,", p . 3 % -*‘. B
o e g ! = - R
o "'“ $ g = | - 03 NS
O8N , o B e
o s ~ ,',' = ‘
b d / EL_ k. "*"b @
Sl Y -\ QA
=.;;"~ Vit L N ~ =
T G
lIside X - B
nior & 3
nt School i -
Ny ; - & '
Centre. [ - \ *\N- 2 Bandngs.
Wiy 7 f&% " : s
Hilsg, ¢ el - ¢ -“““ \ -
855 o, ; f—--."':'.:::.*?:;-: ______ R H - Q v d
B I = =y N R
p Y ) N .'\-%" e XX
4e N = o X :
% N S N N 8
", \ 1% & N R
v | W CR e, -~
s . D %
i : O 3 X
[ ! X N N
i R
s = . K N O N S
Notes Site Address LONDON BOROUGH

OF HILLINGDON

Planning, Environment
& Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

Scale

Planning Application Ref:
1:4,000

10795/APP/2011/91

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2009

Date
February 2011

Planning Committee

North Page 121

HILLINGDON

LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement

Address ST JOHNS SCHOOL POTTER STREET HILL NORTHWOOD

Development: Retention of additional classroom and assembly area with library for pre-prep
school, together with first aid room and staff toilet, without complying with
condition 4 of planning permission ref. 10795/APP/2001/1600 dated
21/11/2001 (which limits pupil numbers at the school to 350 and staff to no
more than 40) to allow the retention of the current numbers of 405 pupils and
65 full-time equivalent staff (Retrospective Application).

LBH Ref Nos: 10795/APP/2009/1560

Drawing Nos: 002
Planning Statement
Transport Statement
Supplementary Statement on Staff Parking
Letter dated 13th October 2009
E-mail dated 8th December 2009
E-mail dated 10th December 2009
E-mail dated 15th March 2010
Letter dated 26th January 2010
4779/N/011 Rev. A
SJS/PrP. 200.01
SJS/PrP.200.02
SJS/PrP. 200.03
SJS/PrP. 200.04A
SJS/PrP 200.05A

Date Plans Received:  17/07/2009 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 19/07/2001
Date Application Valid: 17/07/2009 17/07/2009

14/10/2009
17/11/2009
08/12/2009
10/12/2009
01/02/2010
15/03/2010
22/03/2010
1. SUMMARY

Members may recall that this application was deferred from the North Committee
meeting on the 22nd December 2009 in order to allow a new report to be prepared,
incorporating all the information contained in the Addendum Sheet and to ensure that all
policies are considered that are relevant to this retrospective planning application.

This application originally sought to vary condition 4 attached to planning permission
dated 21st November 2001 (ref. 10795/APP/2001/1600) for extensions to the school to
allow existing pupil and staff numbers to be retained at their current levels, namely 405
pupils and 65 full time equivalent staff as compared to the 350 pupils and 40 full time
staff equivalent stipulated by the condition. It would appear that since the extension was
completed, at no time has the school been in compliance with this condition, having had
similar pupil and staff numbers to the current situation for at least the last 5 years.

North Planning Committee - 29th April 201629¢ 122
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS



Following Legal Officer advice, given the school's non-compliance with this condition, the
original permission cannot be relied upon to authorise the building works and the
extension has to be considered anew, albeit the building has been on site for over 4
years and is therefore immune from any enforcement action. The application's
description has been amended and a further round of public consultation carried out.

As previously considered at the Ruislip/Northwood Committee meeting on the 20th
November 2001, although the building did not accord with the 1995 changes to national
Green Belt policy and would not constitute exceptional circumstances to justify
development in the Green Belt, the proposed single storey extension was not considered
to significantly harm the open character of the Green Belt. Furthermore, the 2001 report
considered that residential amenity and the safety and free flow of traffic on neighbouring
roads would not be affected, subject to appropriate conditions.

The condition restricting pupil and staff numbers was only applied due to highway safety
concerns. The school's non-compliance with the condition has enabled the impact of the
increased numbers on highway safety to be studied. The findings of the Traffic
Statement, based on traffic surveys conducted at the school have been assessed on site
at peak times by the Council's Highway Engineers and they concur with the observations
and conclusions of the Traffic Statement, namely that existing traffic conditions on the
surrounding roads are acceptable in terms of highway safety and therefore any additional
impact associated with the increase in pupil and staff numbers has not been significant.

Also, the increase in pupil and staff numbers over and above that of the 2001 permission
is not considered to have been harmful to the openness of the Green Belt or the
residential amenities of surrounding occupiers, given that the majority of activities take
place within existing school buildings.

The school has also now offered a S106 Agreement that would restrict pupil and staff
numbers to 405 pupils and 65 full time equivalent staff. It is recommended that approval
be granted subject to the legal obligation.

2, RECOMMENDATION

That delegated powers be given to the Head of Planning and Enforcement to grant
planning permission, subject to the following:

1. That the Council enter into a legal agreement with the applicants under Section
106/Unilateral Undertaking of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
amended) or other appropriate legislation to secure:

(i) that the number of pupils enrolled with the school for attendance at the school
site for educational purposes shall not at any time exceed 405 in aggregate
(excluding pupils enrolled for attendance in the future and former pupils);

(ii) that the number of members of staff engaged to provide services to the school
at the school site shall not at any time exceed the equivalent of 65 full-time
members of staff; and

(iii) that not later than one calendar month after the beginning of each academic
year the school will notify the Council in writing of the number of pupils as
described in 1.1 and the number of members of staff engaged for that academic
year as described in 1.2.

North Planning Committee - 29th April 2010°29¢ 123
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS



2. That the applicant meets the Council's reasonable costs in the preparation of
the S106 Agreement and any abortive work as a result of the agreement not being
completed.

3. If the $106 Agreement has not been finalised within 6 months, the application to
be referred back to the Planning Committee for determination.

4. That officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed terms of the
proposed agreement.

5. That on completion of the S106 Agreement, the application be deferred for
determination by the Head of Planning and Enforcement under delegated powers.

6. That if the application is approved, the following conditions and informatives be
attached:

1 NONSC Non Standard Condition

The total number of pupils at the school shall not exceed 405 and the total number of
staff shall not exceed 65 full-time equivalent.

REASON

To prevent the generation of additional traffic that could give rise to problems of safety
and congestion on the surrounding roads, in compliance with Policy AM7(ii) of the
adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2001).

2 NONSC Non Standard Condition

The temporary car park/playground adjoining and accessed from Potter Street Hill shall
not be used for staff parking.

REASON

In order to comply with the terms of this application in order to ensure that highway and
pedestrian safety is not prejudiced, in compliance with policy AM17(ii) of the adopted
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2009).

3 MCD1 Ancillary Uses

The building hereby permitted shall be used only for purposes ancillary to the school and
shall not be used by the general public.

REASON

To prevent the generation of additional traffic giving rise to problems of safety and
congestion in Potter Street Hill, in accordance with policy AM7(ii) of the adopted
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

4 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Within 1 month of the date of this permission, details of covered and secure cycle
parking shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The approved provision shall have been implemented on site within 3 months from the
date of this permission and thereafter permanently retained.

REASON
To ensure that appropriate cycle parking facilities are provided, in accordance with policy
AM9 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September

North Planning Committee - 29th April 201629¢ 124
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS



2009).

5 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Within 1 month of the date of this permission, details of the opening and closing times of
the shared use playground/parents car park shall be submitted to and agreed in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The temporary car park shall thereafter be made
available for car parking by parents in accordance with the approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the temporary car parking is available for appropriate periods during the
peak morning drop-off and afternoon pick-up periods to safeguard highway and
pedestrian safety, in accordance with policy AM7(ii) of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hilingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national

guidance.

PPS1 Delivering Sustainable Development

PPG2 Green Belts

LPP 4A.3 London Plan (February 2008)

OL1 Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new
development

OoL4 Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings

EC2 Nature conservation considerations and ecological assessments

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

R10 Proposals for new meeting halls and buildings for education, social,
community and health services

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design

North Planning Committee - 29th April 2010°29¢ 125
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS



of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking

facilities
AM14 New development and car parking standards.
CACPS Council's Adopted Car Parking Standards (Annex 1, HUDP, Saved

Policies, September 2007)
3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

St John's School is located on the western side of Potter Street Hill, near the top of the
hill, close to the borough boundaries with the London Borough of Harrow and Three
Rivers District Council. It is on a predominantly steeply sloping site between Potter Street
Hill and Wieland Road to the west on the adjoining Gatehill Estate, with views over the
lower ground to the south looking across a wide area of London.

The school comprises an original house dating from the 1920s, with purpose built school
buildings constructed since 1970 sited towards the north of the site on an approximate
1.05 hectare area of relatively flat ground on which all the existing school buildings are
sited. The main vehicular access to the school is also taken at this point from Potter Street
Hill, with the main access road crossing the site, which links to Wieland Road through an
arched entrance building. School buildings front the access road to the north and south,
with a hard-surfaced playground/car-park immediately to the north of the main entrance
on Potter Street Hill. The extension, the subject of this application is sited behind the
buildings which front the northern side of the access road and the western side of the
playground/temporary car park.

The extension is well screened from nearby residential properties to the west and Potter
Street Hill is densely lined with trees which obscure views of the school from the east. To
the north of the site there is one house with a view over the school complex.

Potter Street Hill is blocked to vehicular traffic at its northern end, adjacent to the northern
boundary of the school. From its junction with Hillside Road/Potter Street to the south, the
road has a footpath along most of its length on the eastern side, with the exception of a
150m long central section.

The school forms part of the Green Belt as identified in the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007). Part of the school grounds to the
south also form part of a Nature Conservation Site of Borough Grade Il or Local
Importance.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

This application was originally submitted as an application to vary condition 4 of planning
application ref. 10795/APP/2001/1600 dated 21/11/2001 (which limits the number of
pupils at the school to 350 and full time equivalent staff to 40) to allow the retention of the
current numbers of 405 pupils and 65 full time equivalent staff at the school. However, as
it appears that this condition has not been complied with from the outset, the original
permission cannot be relied upon to authorise the extension. The description of
development has therefore been amended, and the application now seeks retrospective
permission to retain the single storey building for use as an additional classroom and
assembly area with library for the pre-prep school, together with a first aid room and staff
toilet, while allowing up to 405 pupils and 65 full time equivalent staff numbers at the

North Planning Committee - 29th April 201629¢ 126
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS



school, to enable existing pupil and staff numbers to be retained.

The building is sited to the rear of the school buildings which front the northern side of the
access road and also return to front the playground/temporary car park to the east. The
building is single storey and comprises an L-shaped main block, with a maximum width of
10.0m and depth of 18.25m and a maximum roof ridge height of 4.3m and 2.7m eaves
height. This building projects by approximately 4.6m further north than the adjoining
school building. A 6.6m square, 2.7m high flat roofed link extension provides internal
access to the building from the adjoining school buildings abutting the playground/car park
to the east. The covered play area is sited to the front of the link extension, within the
courtyard formed by the surrounding buildings.

A planning statement has been prepared in support of the application. This describes the
history of the site. It claims that the school were unaware of the limitations (both to the
10795/APP/2001/1600) and an earlier application (10795/AR/97/436) and cites
information supplied in connection with previous appeals and applications on this site as
evidence of this. It goes on to say that the breach of condition has persisted for at least 9
years yet no complaints have been made to the LPA or to the School and suggest that
this is evidence that pupil/staff nhumbers have not caused any particular planning or
highway issues. The statement assesses the policy framework for considering the
application and highlights the negative impacts of not allowing the optimum number of
pupils to be taught at the site, disruption to pupils and pupils having to be taught
elsewhere, which might increase journey times. The document refers to the Travel
Statement and the various initiatives that are being explored as part of the School Plan,
such as a mini-bus service, car sharing and encouragement of other transport modes. It
re-iterates the findings of the Travel Statement and stresses that the condition was
specifically introduced to avoid highway concerns and not as a result of the Green Belt
status of the land. The document discusses the social and financial implications of
refusing the application.

A Transport Statement has been submitted in support of the application. This provides an
introduction to the application, and claims that it was during the process of the application
submitted and refused early last year for further extensions (10795/APP/2009/199) when
it became apparent that the school was operating in breach of the planning consent
granted in 2001. This has been on-going over the last 5 years or so, with around 400
pupils at the school. The statement goes on to provide a brief description of the school,
stating that vehicular access to the school is achieved from Potter Street Hill and Wieland
Road, with the main access for parents/visitors being off Potter Street Hill. Potter Street
Hill has an open staggered priority junction at its southern end with Hillside Road/Potter
Street and is closed at its northern end to vehicles. The statement goes on to say that
access from Wieland Road is only used by some of the staff who travel to and from the
site to the west, with the agreement of the owners of the adjoining Gatehill Estate's private
roads.

It goes on to explain that there are two main areas for car parking, a large car
parking/playground adjacent to Potter Street Hill and a staff/visitor parking area located in
the vicinity of the main building. The playground/car park is opened for parents to park in
order to drop off/pick up children at the start and end of school, but is closed during the
day to be used as a playground. There are two accesses onto Potter Street Hill. The
southern access is used as an entrance into the car parking/playground area as well as
an access/egress for staff/servicing using the access road to the staff/visitor parking to
the north of the main building. Secondly, there is an exit only to the north of the entrance,
directly from the playground and so allows for a segregated in and out movement of

North Planning Committee - 29th April 2010~ 29¢€ 127
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS



traffic.

Over the last 5 years, pupil numbers have ranged from 395 to 406 in 2008, with staff
numbers remaining relatively consistent at around 65 full time equivalent each year. The
statement goes on to say that highway records kept by Transport for London and
Hertfordshire County Council reveal that there has been no personal injury accidents in
the vicinity of the school and during school hours in the last 5 years.

The assessment then goes on to explain the results and conclusions reached on the
various traffic surveys that were carried out at various points on Tuesday 19th May 2009.
These findings are more fully discussed at Section 7.10 in the report. The Statement
concludes by stating that at no time on the day of the survey was there congestion,
interruption of the free flow of traffic or an unsafe situation created. Vehicles could turn
around at the northern end of Potter Street Hill and when parked on Potter Street Hill,
vehicles did not cause problems to other road users and generally tend to park to the
north of private accesses and to the south of South View Road at the northern end of the
school.

A Supplementary Statement on Staff Parking has also been submitted and again this is
discussed at Section 7.10.

3.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History

The original application (10795/APP/2001/1600) for the erection of additional classroom
and assembly area with library for pre-prep school, together with first aid room and staff
toilet was granted on 21st November 2001. Condition 4 of this application states:

The total number of pupils at the school shall not exceed 350 and the total number of staff
shall not exceed 40 full time equivalent.

Reason:
To prevent the generation of additional traffic giving rise to problems of safety and
congestion in Potter Street Hill.

Other relevant building history at the school:

10795/AJ/91/714 - Erection of a two storey classroom block (including staff facilities) and
associated car parking - Approved 29/11/91.

10795/AN/94/972 - Details of scheme of landscaping in compliance with condition 5 of
planning permission ref. 10795/AN/94/872 dated 29/11/91 - Approved 23/06/94.

10795/AR/97/436 - Erection of a part two storey, part single storey detached building to
provide assembly hall, four new classrooms, music practice rooms and toilets - Approved
10/06/98.

10795/APP/2009/199 - Erection of a two storey extension to existing junior school block to
provide new teaching spaces and associated staff, toilet and cloakroom facilities, and
erection of a single storey to dining hall/kitchen facilities to provide new storage and
catering staff welfare facilities - Refused 06/04/09.

4, Planning Policies and Standards

North Planning Committee - 29th April 201629¢ 128
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS



UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.1 To maintain the Green Belt for uses which preserve or enhance the open nature
of the area.

PT1.10 To seek to ensure that development does not adversely affect the amenity and

the character of the area.

PT1.31 To encourage the development and support the retention of a wide range of local
services, including shops and community facilities, which are easily accessible to
all, including people with disabilities or other mobility handicaps.

Part 2 Policies:
PPS1 Delivering Sustainable Development
PPG2 Green Belts

LPP 4A3 London Plan (February 2008)

oL1 Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new development

oL4 Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings

EC2 Nature conservation considerations and ecological assessments

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

OEA1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

R10 Proposals for new meeting halls and buildings for education, social, community
and health services

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking facilities

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

CACPS Council's Adopted Car Parking Standards (Annex 1, HUDP, Saved Policies,
September 2007)

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 25th March 2010

5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

North Planning Committee - 29th April 2010°29¢ 129
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS



4th September 2009

6. Consultations

External Consultees
ORIGINAL COMMENTS

116 neighbouring residential properties consulted and a site notice posted.

Two petitions, one with 23 signatories, the other with 22 signatories received, the first objecting for
the following reason:

'We refer to your notification regarding the above proposed development and as Hillingdon
residents wish to lodge our petition of objection to this proposal which could have a substantial
impact on the day to day amenity of the residents of the Gatehill Farm Estate either close to or
adjoining the boundary of the school.

The applicant has blatantly ignored the planning condition imposed although well aware of its
content. The limit has been set by the Local Authority in order to permit the further development in
Green Belt land. The applicant has ignored this planning condition as well as other planning
conditions. For example, another condition imposed was for landscaping and the erection of
screening. The applicant ignored this condition for screening by demolishing 50-60 trees to the
west of the site in 2007 prior to seeking further overdevelopment of the Green Belt site and despite
letters of enforcement action this breach has still not been rectified. There is also insufficient and
otherwise substandard car park arrangement for staff attendance without impinging on playground
space.'

The second petition was received after the application was initially presented to committee, but
before the application was re-consulted with a revised description. The 22 signatories object for
the following reason:

'We refer to your notification regarding the above proposed development and as Hillingdon
residents wish to lodge our petition of objection to this proposal which could have a substantial
impact on the day to day amenity of the residents of Potter Street Hill.

The application to vary the Condition would effectively mean a 24% increase in the number of
pupils and students from the previous limit (340 students plus 39 staff). This would be inappropriate
development and therefore harmful to Green Belt land. The increase in numbers of pupils and staff
has led to a noticeable increase in traffic and congestion to the detriment of the day to day amenity
to residents of Potter Street Hill. A recent example demonstrates the potential danger to the lives of
residents as well as road [users] when an ambulance could not reach the passengers of two cars
involved in an accident.'

13 individual responses also received (5 being additional responses from same objector), raising
the following concerns:

(i) Due to school's location, it attracts a large number of cars to the area. Potter Street Hill is the
only road directly servicing the school and is narrow and not designed to carry such traffic. This
development exacerbates existing problems of congestion, emergency vehicle access and parking
on Potter Street Hill, including blocking private drives and obstruction of pedestrian access.
Surrounding roads, such as Sandy Lane and Wieland Road also affected as cars cut through
Pinner Hill estate;

North Planning Committee - 29th April 201529¢ 130
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS



(ii) This is a retrospective application, and ignorance of limitation on pupil and staff numbers is not a
valid ground for breaching the condition. This is also hard to believe as the agent who submitted
the application in 2001 is still Secretary of the Company for the School and the Headmaster has not
changed;

(iii) Numerous claims made in supporting documentation are refuted, for example that no road
accidents have occurred in last five years, current pupil/staff levels have not caused any particular
planning or highway issues in the locality and that it was the school that brought the breach to the
attention of the LPA. For instance, a family member has been struck recently by a car wing mirror,
which was reported to the school and complaints have been made to the school regarding traffic
matters and the state of the road caused by coach, service vehicle and car traffic etc has been
taken up with the Council;

(iv) The applicant contends that financial, educational and social considerations are material to the
decision but this is refuted and implications are over-stated. For instance, cost of re-schooling 56
pupils to local authorities is exaggerated. School also attracts a considerable number of students
from suburban north-west London so that it is misleading to suggest many students would have to
travel larger distances if the application were to be refused and this may increase pupil numbers
walking to school. St John's has the potential to reduce school numbers by relocating some
students to their associated school at Merchant Taylors;

(v) As regards traffic survey, one survey is not enough, particularly as taken in fair weather and a
coach free day. No doubt cars were kept moving promptly to try and create as favourable
conditions as possible. Traffic survey also does not contain baseline data to show how traffic has
grown since 1997 and does not take into account number arriving via Gatehill Estate entrance;

(vi) Site is a designated green belt area and Potter Street Hill is a site of nature conservation
importance. Applicants contend that reason for condition was only on traffic grounds, but there are
other reasons relating to creep/harm to Green Belt. Many additions have been added to the school
over the years and question whether many of these approvals were 'appropriate’ in green belt
terms as have involved disproportionate additions to original school buildings. The footprint of the
original building on 1/7/48 was 379m? which would allow a total maximum footprint of 570m? if the
50% rule applied whereas footprint of current school buildings is 3,371m2. This is contrary to policy
OL4 of UDP;

(vii) Remorseless increase in pupil numbers over the years despite restrictions. For instance, in
application 1997/436, the school states that school would not increase numbers from 336 pupils
and condition added accordingly, but ignored. In terms of the application the school is trying to vary
(2001/1600). The schools own records show pupil numbers had breached the 350 limit before the
extension was built. By May 2004, pupil numbers had risen to 393, the school itself attributing the
rise primarily to the pre-prep class in the new nursery class building allowed under 2001/1600.
2008/720 application for a new classroom block was predicated upon need for an additional 16
pupils. School therefore have no intention of restricting pupil numbers and provide misleading
information in applications. In recently refused application in early 2009 (2009/199), applicant
admitted that existing facilities were cramped and inadequate for existing number of students
(about 405). Pattern emerging - need for further development justified in accompanying application
that new facilities would improve facilities for existing pupils and that no increase/only small
increase in pupil numbers involved. Once built, more pupils taken on and further need for additional
facilities;

(viii) If the LPA is mindful to grant permission, would need to refer to the secretary of State;

(ix) Development only for profit;

(x) Entrance to school should be re-located away from top of Potter Street Hill, with parking
provided in lower field;

(xi) School does not only operate for 39 weeks of the year, activities take place at weekends and
during holidays by external bodies;

(xii) Traffic volumes have resulted in damage to fencing and lamp columns on Potter Street Hill;
(xiii) Restricting pupil numbers to 350 will provide better space for teaching and learning. Needs
and demand of school are proportionate to number of pupils with increased pressure for
inappropriate development in the green belt;

North Planning Committee - 29th April 2010~ 29¢€ 131
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS



(xiv) Removal of condition will infringe on the right of local residents for a private family life under
the Human Rights Act;

(xv) Unreasonabile to try to blame LPA as did not enforce condition.

(xvi) In the Supplementary Parking Statement, it is not clear where the claimed 62 staff spaces are
within the school grounds. Not aware of any planning permission being granted and do spaces
satisfy standards? Over the years, applicants have replaced open space with hardstanding. In the
variation report considering the refusal of permission in April 2009, the case officer states that
‘confirmation is required if they have planning consent for these overspill places'. Applicant's claim
that there are the 62 spaces available conflicts with previous applications, where they state that 51
spaces are available outside of the car park. Claim that there are 62 spaces appears wrong and
correct number seems to be 51.

(xvii) There are no cycle spaces. Will their provision as part of the School Travel Plan be at the
expense of car spaces?

xviii) We estimate that there are 4 heavy goods vehicles delivering to the school on a normal
working day, but no mention of any provision made within the site.

(xix) Does the coach parking space satisfy standards?

(xx) The 2001 application also subject to approval of landscaping plans. It appears that these have
not been submitted. In one of documents, recommendation to get TPOs applied to the existing
planting screens to the west of the development. This was not followed through.

(xxi) Case law is cited and there is a requirement to look at all the planning circumstances existing
at the time of the determination. It seems that the only or main consideration in arriving at the
recommendation is a consideration of highway safety. Inappropriate development in the Green Belt
needs to be considered. Now have statements from school stating that current accommodation is
cramped and needs up-grading.

(xxii) In 3.1, school is not well screened from west as trees have been removed.

(xxiii) In 3.2, report states that some staff travel to the school with the agreement of the owners of
the adjoining Gatehill Estate's private roads but there is no such agreement in place and therefore
staff are trespassing.

(xxiv) A proper analysis of the true facts in the supplementary statement further supports need to
reduce pupil numbers to 350.

Northwood Residents' Association - No comments received.
Northwood Hills Residents' Association - No comments received.
Gatehill (Northwood) Residents' Association:

(i) Due to school's location, it attracts a large number of cars to the area. Potter Street Hill is the
only road directly servicing the school and is narrow and not designed to carry such traffic. This
development exacerbates existing problems of congestion, emergency vehicle access and parking
on Potter Street Hill, including blocking private drives and obstruction of pedestrian access.
Surrounding roads, such as Sandy Lane and Wieland Road also affected as cars cut through
Pinner Hill estate;

(i) This is a retrospective application, and ignorance of limitation on pupil and staff numbers is not a
valid ground for breaching the condition. This is also hard to believe as the agent who submitted
the application in 2001 is still Secretary of the Company for the School and the Headmaster has not
changed;

(iii) The applicant contends that financial, educational and social considerations are material to the
decision but this is refuted and implications are over-stated. For instance, cost of re-schooling 56
pupils to local authorities is exaggerated. School also attracts a considerable number of students
from suburban north-west London so that it is misleading to suggest many students would have to
travel larger distances if the application were to be refused and this may increase pupil numbers
walking to school. St John's has the potential to reduce school numbers by relocating some
students to their associated school at Merchant Taylors;

North Planning Committee - 29th April 201629¢ 132
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS



(iv) Site is a designated green belt area and Potter Street Hill is a site of nature conservation
importance. Applicants contend that reason for condition was only on traffic grounds, but there are
other reasons relating to creep/harm to Green Belt. Many additions have been added to the school
over the years and question whether many of these approvals were 'appropriate’ in green belt
terms as have involved disproportionate additions to original school buildings. The footprint of the
original building on 1/7/48 was 379m? which would allow a total maximum footprint of 570m? if the
50% rule applied whereas footprint of current school buildings is 3,371m2. This is contrary to policy
OL4 of UDP;

(v) Remorseless increase in pupil numbers over the years despite restrictions. For instance, in
application 1997/436, the school states that school would not increase numbers from 336 pupils
and condition added accordingly, but ignored. In terms of the application the school is trying vary
(2001/1600). The schools own records show pupil numbers had breached the 350 limit before the
extension was built. By May 2004, pupil numbers had risen to 393, the school itself attributing the
rise primarily to the pre-prep class in the new nursery class building allowed under 2001/1600.
2008/720 application for a new classroom block was predicated upon need for an additional 16
pupils. School therefore have no intention of restricting pupil numbers and provide misleading
information in applications. In recently refused application in early 2009 (2009/199), applicant
admitted that existing facilities were cramped and inadequate for existing number of students
(about 405). Pattern emerging - need for further development justified in accompanying application
that new facilities would improve facilities for existing pupils and that no increase/only small
increase in pupil numbers involved. Once built, more pupils taken on and further need for additional
facilities;

(v) Unreasonable to try to blame LPA that they did not enforce condition.

Ickenham Residents' Association - No comments received.
London Borough of Harrow - No comments received.
Three Rivers District Council - No comments received.
RE-CONSULTATION RESPONSES

117 neighbouring residential properties consulted and a site notice posted. 5 responses have been
received, mainly re-iterating original comments, namely:

(i) There is a general presumption against inappropriate development in the green belt. Such
development should not be approved except in very special circumstances. Inappropriate
development is harmful by definition. The LDF advises that additions to buildings in the green belt
should not be disproportionate, considered to be any enlargement of the building over 50% of the
original.  The original building was 370sq m. The development of 380sq m would be
disproportionate and therefore inappropriate.

(i) There are no special circumstances to support the development. Several Court of Appeal
decisions to expand schools in the Green Belt have indicated that factors that are applicable to all
or most schools cannot be construed as very special circumstance. Revisions to PPG2 make clear
that development by (education) institutions is subject to same controls as other development in the
Green Belt. The applicants have made a number of claims of the consequences of a reduction in
the numbers of students and staff at the school but need to confine consideration to land use
matters. School is also independent outside the remit and responsibility of Hillingdon Council and
also provides for children of non-compulsory age groups.

(iii) LPA has duty to ensure that there is no undue intensification or enlargement of buildings within
the Green Belt. There is a long history of continuous expansion at the school, amounting to over
2640sq m of built up space, a foot-print almost 700% that of the original building, a significant
overdevelopment of the site which is mainly driven by increased pupil numbers.

In addition to current example, the development of the two storey detached building (ref.

North Planning Committee - 29th April 2010~ 29¢ 133
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS



10795/AR/97/436) in 1997 lead to 340 pupils at the school 4 years later despite assurances at the
time that there would be no additional pupils from the current 320. The January 2009 application
was also justified on grounds that existing accommodation was cramped and sub-standard for 21st
century learning.

(iv) Greater demand for parking and drop-off areas within the school, increasing risk to users.
There have been accidents on Potter Hill Street in past. School attracts a large number of cars due
to pupils being drawn from large catchment area with the school's Green Travel Plan showing 80%
of pupils coming from outside Hillingdon. Potter Street Hill not designed for such traffic and road is
frequently blocked as school refuses to open gates before classes end. Congestion extends to
evenings, weekends and school holidays because of out of hours activities. In 2009, a development
of 551sq m of additional floorspace (ref. 10795/APP/2009/199) was refused despite school
claiming that there was no increase in pupil numbers on grounds of insufficient parking, which will
lead to overspill parking. Photographic evidence of existing overspill parking is attached.

(v) School does not comply with LPA standards as regards to marked parking spaces, disabled
parking, hard standing areas for loading and manoeuvring space for coaches etc. School has not
complied with previous conditions to provide disabled spaces and there are doubts as to whether all
the overspill parking spaces have planning consent.

(vi) Detrimental to amenity of adjoining residents on grounds of level of traffic movements, noise,
fumes, smell and general disturbance.

(vii) The proposal will damage a Site of Grade Il Importance for Nature Conservation. School has
already destroyed a line of approximately 50 mature trees and approximately 500sq m of grassland
that supported diverse fauna and flora, including foxes, squirrels, rabbits and birds.

(viii) Siting, bulk and proximity of the development would result in a loss of residential amenity due
to being overbearing and loss of privacy.

(ix) There are legal precedents which establish that 'the fact that the development has been carried
out should not weigh in favour of the applicant'.

(x) Proposal would set undesirable precedent.

(xi) School never ceases to submit applications and is hoping that local residents grow apathetic.
(xii) School should work within consents they have and then apply to go beyond these like everyone
else.

Northwood Residents' Association - No comments received.
Northwood Hills Residents' Association - No comments received.
Gatehill (Northwood) Residents' Association:

1. Claim that current administration of the school unaware of restriction on pupil and staff numbers
as all planning matters were dealt with through the associated Merchant Taylors School is hard to
understand. The Bursar of St Johns School at the time of the 2001 application was also the Bursar
and Clerk to the governors of the Merchant Taylors School and he remains an important part of the
school's business and administration. The headmaster of St John's School has also been in post
since the mid 1990s.

2. It is not reasonable for the applicant to suggest that the LPA should of realised and pursued
breach on subsequent applications.

3. The traffic survey which only took place on one day did not mention smaller commercial vehicles
and school minibus which invariably use the Wieland Road access. Are there other errors with the
survey?

4. Financial implications of complying with condition 4 are disputed.

5. An examination of the planning files shows that previous extensions at the school
(10795/AT/97/436 and 10795/APP/2001/1600 refer) were allowed exceptionally on this Green Belt
site because of the assurances that were made by the school as to the rationale for the
development and that school numbers were only to increase slightly, if at all. This extension was
built in 2002 and the Inspection Report two years later attributes the rise in the school roll to 393 to

North Planning Committee - 29th April 201629¢ 134
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS



the introduction of the pre-prep school in the new nursery building, contrary to the school's claim
made to justify the extension, that it is not intended to increase pupil numbers at the school, ten at
most. The 2008 application for a new 4 classroom block was predicated on need to take on further
16 pupils and to provide better facilities generally. Pattern is emerging whereby school justifies
extension by stating only small increase in pupil numbers, and then larger numbers are enrolled
which results in need for more accommodation.

6. Breach of planning condition by the school not an isolated case as 40 to 50 cypresses were
felled in 2007 which were shown as being retained on approved landscaping plan (application ref.
10795AJ/91/714 and 10795/AN/94/872).

Internal Consultees
HIGHWAY ENGINEER:

St John's School is located to the west of Potter Street Hill, Northwood and to the east of Wieland
Road. Potter Street Hill is a no through road and Wieland Road is a cul-de-sac. The site currently
has permission for a maximum of 350 pupils. Consequently the highway comments are based on
the impact of an additional 55 pupils and 25 members of staff.

A Transport Statement (TS) has been submitted in support of this application, which suggests that
the school currently has 406 pupils and 36 full time and 39 part time members of staff and has
been operating at around the level of 400 pupils for the last 5 years.

The main access for parents and visitors is off Potter Street Hill with an in and out arrangement for
the car park, which has a total of 53 marked spaces. The southern access is used as an IN and the
northern access as an OUT of the car park. This segregated arrangement helps in the movement
of vehicles at drop off and pick up times. During peak pick-up/drop times, given the short duration
of stay required by parents/carers, additional drivers are able to make use of some unmarked
areas and also manoeuvre around the car park.

The applicant has advised that the school has a total of 62 staff car parking spaces spread around
the site. A survey carried out on the morning of 16 November 2009 revealed that a total of 51 staff
cars were located on site. A staff survey carried out in January 2009 for the Travel Plan which has
been agreed with the Council revealed that a total of 81% of staff drive to school, 9% walk to
school and the remaining 10% either being passengers or use other modes.

The survey and observations contained in the submitted TS assert that there are no congestion or
safety problems as a result of the current levels of activity at the school. The Council's Highway
Engineers have carried out site visits during peak morning and afternoon drop-off and pick-up
timings and our observations confirm that the majority of the car parking associated with the School
takes place within the site, however a few vehicles were seen to park in Potter Street Hill, but these
are not considered to cause highway safety issues and/or access issues to other nearby properties.

From the surveys carried out in support of the TS, both in the morning and afternoon periods, no
cars were observed stopping and waiting to drop off or pick up either pupils or staff in Wieland
Road. The Council's Highway Engineers' site visits also did not observe any related car parking
problems in Wieland Road.

The personal injury accidents database for a period of 5 years have been analysed in the TS and
confirms that there are no related personal injury accidents reported during this period in the
surrounding highway network.

Potter Hill Street has no footway in places. A School Travel Plan has recently been prepared and

North Planning Committee - 29th April 2010~ 29¢ 135
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS



agreed with the Council. As part of the School Travel Plan measures, the problem of a lack of a
footway on the whole length of Potter Street Hill is being investigated. A pedestrian/cycle route is
being considered within the school site to connect the southern end of Potter Street Hill directly with
the School.

Queue length surveys carried out at the junction of Potter Street Hill/Potter Street/Hillside Road
shows a maximum queue length of 8 vehicles, which dispersed in less than a minute.

Notwithstanding the above, for the additional 55 pupils and 25 members of staff, the impacts of any
additional parking demand and additional traffic on the local highway network are not considered to
be significant.

In the light of the above considerations, no objection is raised on the transportation aspect of the
proposals. Conditions restricting the number of pupils and staff as proposed and restricting any
staff parking within the car park fronting Potter Street Hill are recommended to be applied.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The school forms part of the Green Belt. This application seeks to retain a single storey
extension to the school which was originally approved by the Ruislip/Northwood Planning
Committee on the 20th November 2001. As part of the previous officer's report to
committee, reference was made to PPG2: Green Belts which was published in January
1995 and amended in March 2001. The report listed the categories of development that
can be considered to be appropriate within the Green Belt and it was noted that the
proposal did not fall into any of them. It was therefore acknowledged that the development
was inappropriate within the Green Belt and therefore permission should only be granted
in very special circumstances. The report went on to refer to a supporting statement, in
which the applicants argue that the proposal is for a small single storey extension, located
within the curtilage of existing buildings. The statement then goes on to advise of the need
for the development and that it is not intended to employ more than one full time and two
part time teachers and student numbers will not increase by more than 10. The Officer's
report went on to advise that in the light of recent appeal decisions, it was unlikely that
special circumstances had been demonstrated. However, the report stated that unlike the
appeal cases cited, the proposal involves the construction of a building on a site that is not
readily visible from publicly accessible land and is only visible from the one private garden
outside the application site. While it would increase the coverage of buildings on the site,
the building is single storey and located between two existing buildings that form a
courtyard. There is also substantial tree planting along the boundary of the site with the
open land to the north, which when grown to full height, will substantially screen the new
building. The officer's report concluded that the proposal would not materially harm the
open nature of the Green Belt and the tree planting would enhance this aspect.

There has been no material change in Green Belt policy or circumstances on site since
the previous officer's report to suggest that the building is no longer appropriate.
Furthermore, this permission has been implemented (albeit without complying with
condition 4) and the building has been on site for more than 4 years. As such, the building
is immune from enforcement action and the school could benefit from the original
permission by complying with condition 4. These are material considerations which need
to be borne in mind and in such circumstances, no objections are raised to the retention of
the building.
7.02 Density of the proposed development

Not applicable to this application.
7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

North Planning Committee - 29th April 201629¢ 136
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS



7.04

7.05

7.06

7.07

7.08

7.09

Not applicable to this application.
Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

The intensification of the use of a site with an additional 55 pupils and 25 members of staff
could impact upon the site in Green Belt terms. However, given that this activity would be
mainly contained within existing buildings on site, the only impact upon the openness of
the Green Belt would be during play/sport periods, periods of movement between
buildings and at arrival and departure times. It is considered that the additional activity as
compared to the activities associated with the authorised 350 pupils and 40 staff at the
school would not be so significant at these relatively infrequent periods of external activity
as to justify a refusal on grounds of being prejudicial to the openness of the Green Belt.
Environmental Impact

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The previous report considered that the justification advanced for making an exception to
Green Belt policy demonstrates that the building has little effect on the visual amenity of
the area. On site, the single storey building is well screened by surrounding buildings to
the south and east and has been recessed into the sloping ground level to the north and
west. It harmonises with the scale and design of surrounding school buildings. As such,
the building complies with policies BE13 and BE15 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Impact on neighbours

The previous report stated that the application site was well screened from nearby
residential properties to the west, and Potter Street Hill is densely lined with trees which
obscure views of the school from the east. The nearest residential property on Woodgate
Crescent to the west is over a 100m from the single storey building which is screened by
existing school buildings. To the north, there is only one house with a view over the
school complex, in particular the area of the extension. This property, known as
Gatehouse is over 80m from the extension and sited on higher ground, with the nearest
part of its rear garden boundary over 55m away, separated by the school's cricket pitch.
To the east, the nearest residential property is 70m away. The extension, due to the
sloping levels, has also been set into the ground on its northern and western edges, with
planting provided above, beyond the retaining walls. As previously concluded, the building
has no impact upon the amenities of surrounding residential properties.

The additional pupil and staff numbers would not generate any significant additional noise,
fumes, smells and general disturbance as compared to the use of the school site with the
authorised numbers of pupils/staff numbers and the background traffic volumes on
surrounding roads to justify a refusal of permission. The Council's Environmental
Protection Unit has confirmed that there not been any complaints concerning noise and
disturbance generated by pupils at the school in the last 5 years. Furthermore, the
adjoining properties, certainly on the opposite side of Potter Street Hill tend to be large
detached properties on substantial plots that generally have generous off-street car
parking provision available. Wider traffic issues have been dealt with at Section 7.10
below. As such, it is considered that the increase in pupil and staff numbers has not
resulted in a loss of residential amenity to surrounding properties. The application thus
complies with polices BE19 and OE1 of the adopted Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007).

Living conditions for future occupiers

North Planning Committee - 29th April 2010~ 29¢ 137
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS



Not applicable to this application.
7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

This application has been supported by the submission of a Transport Statement. As part
of this assessment, a number of traffic surveys were carried out at various points within
and around the school on Tuesday 19th May 2009, when there were no school trips or
other activities that would have affected the surveys. The applicants state that the traffic
surveys did not take place on more days in order to meet the Council's tight deadline for
the submission of the application. These were carried out between 07:00 to 09:30 hours
and 14:30 to 18:15 hours and reveal that morning traffic on Potter Hill Street is very
'peaked’, with 217 of the total of 226 arrivals at the school car park (96%) occurring
between 07:45 and 08:45 hours. This is less pronounced in the afternoon period when 88
out of the total of 274 traffic movements or 32% occurred during the peak hour of 15:30 to
16:30 hours.

The Travel Statement advises that the main car park has a capacity of 53 spaces and
during the morning of the survey, this capacity was exceeded only for one 15 minute
period starting at 08:15. However, cars 'park' in other areas and also cars manoeuvre
around the car park looking for spaces particularly at peak times. In the afternoon, there
were four periods when cars exceeded the total number of parking spaces, despite the
lesser 'peaked’ effect produced by the more staggered finishing times of the school, as
some parents arrive early and wait for children to finish before leaving, possibly waiting to
collect an older child, finishing later. The majority of this activity is confined within the
school grounds, with only 12 vehicles throughout the morning survey period dropping off
pupils on Potter Hill Street, with a typical length of stay being less than 5 minutes and 13
vehicles picking up pupils during the whole of the afternoon survey period, although
lengths of duration tended to be much longer and tended to be a parent, having picked up
a younger child, waiting to collect an older sibling. No cars were observed stopping or
waiting to drop off or pick up either pupils or staff in Wieland Road. During the whole of
the morning study period, a total of 34 vehicles parked to the north of the bollards
accessed via Sandy Lane and 13 vehicles in the whole of the afternoon period.

The junction capacity on Potter Street Hill was also assessed. The survey confirms that
the majority of morning and afternoon traffic using Potter Street Hill is associated with the
school. From observations, queues generated between 08:05 to 08:40 with queue lengths
between 4 and 8 vehicles, with the worst queue lengths dissipating within less than a
minute. In the afternoon, there was only one 5 minute period when a queue length of 8
vehicles built up, but again this dissipated in less than a minute. Through traffic on
Hillside/Potter Street was not affected.

The Travel Statement concludes by stating that at no time was there congestion,
interruption of the free flow of traffic or an unsafe situation on the highway. Vehicles could
turn around at the northern end of Potter Street Hill and when parked on Potter Street Hill,
vehicles did not cause problems to other road users and generally park to the north of
private accesses and South View Road. It is also anticipated that traffic will reduce as the
policies of the Travel Plan begin to take effect.

The Council's Highway Engineers have carried out un-announced site visits during peak
morning and afternoon drop-off and pick-up times during November 2009 to verify the
statements made and conclusions reached in the Traffic Statement. Their observations
confirm the conclusions reached in the Travel Statement that the majority of the car
parking associated with the school takes place within the school site. A few vehicles were
seen to park in Potter Street Hill but this parking is not considered to cause highway

North Planning Committee - 29th April 201629¢ 138
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS



safety issues and/or restrict access to other nearby properties. From the surveys carried
out in support of the Travel Statement, no cars were observed stopping and waiting to
pick up either pupils or staff in Wieland Road in the morning and afternoon periods and no
related car parking problems were observed by the Council's Highways Engineers.

Additional information was requested regarding staff parking at the school, and a
Supplementary Statement on Staff Parking has been submitted. This states that there are
65 full time equivalent staff at the school (36 full time and 39 part time), however, part-
time staff attendance at the school is dependent upon their responsibilities. Surveys
carried out to support the School's Travel Plan suggest that 81% of staff arrive by car,
equating to maximum demand of 61 staff parking spaces if all the staff were present at
the same time. A car parking plan has been submitted which shows 50 formal parking
spaces and 17 informal/access road parking spaces within the school. The amount of
staff parking available therefore exceeds forecast demand. A separate parking survey
carried out on the morning of 16th November 2009 revealed that 51 staff cars were
present on site. The supplementary survey also states that since completing the School
Travel Plan, a coach 'drop-off' point has been allocated within the grounds of the school
instead of outside the school entrance which will further enhance the movement of traffic.
This is also shown on the car parking plan. Since the preparation of the School Travel
Plan, the school have confirmed that a foot/cycle path has also been constructed within
the school grounds from the bottom of Potter Street Hill to the school buildings, to
encourage walking and cycling. The School Travel Plan also has the agreed aim of
reducing car usage by 10% from 2009 to 2012 through its School Travel Action Plan.

The Highway Engineer concludes that the existing traffic volumes generated by the school
are not prejudicial to highway and pedestrian safety. The impact of the traffic generated
by the additional 55 pupils and 25 members of staff in terms of their additional parking
demand and additional traffic on the local highway network is not considered to be
significant.

The existing staff car parking arrangements within the school site are also satisfactory,
given that the parking is not for the general public. Cycle parking provision and the hours
of opening/closing of the temporary car park for parent parking have been controlled by
condition.

In light of the above considerations, no highway objection is raised subject to conditions
restricting pupil and staff numbers and restricting staff parking within the car park fronting
Potter Street Hill. As such, the development is considered to comply with policies AM7(ii),
AM9 and AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2009).

7.11 Urban design, access and security

Urban design is dealt with at Section 7.07 above. Access is dealt with in Section 7.10
above and as an extension to the school, there are no additional security considerations.

7.12 Disabled access

The extension, including the provision of an access ramp was previously considered to
provide adequate facilities for people with disabilities. As the building has already been
built on site, and the fall back position is that the school could benefit from the original
permission by limiting pupil and staff numbers to comply with condition 4, no objections
can be raised now to the disabled facilities provided. As such, the scheme complies with
policy R16 of the adopted Hilingdon Unitary Development Plan, Saved Policies

North Planning Committee - 29th April 2010~ 29¢ 139
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS



713

714

715

7.16

717

7.18

719

(September 2007).
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Parts of the school grounds to the south of the main area of school buildings are
designated as a Nature Conservation Site of Borough Grade Il or Local Importance. The
school extension has not involved and has not been sited close to this designated land.
Furthermore, the additional activity at the school represented by the increase in pupil and
staff numbers over and above the levels authorised at the November 2001 committee is
not likely to have had a demonstrable adverse impact upon the ecology of this area.
Although it appears that the school has removed a number of trees, these were on the
western side of the school, away from the extension and designated nature conservation
site. This is a separate matter which the school is seeking to address. As such, the
development is considered to have complied with policy EC2 of the adopted Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Sustainable waste management

Not applicable to this application.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

The development is for a school extension that has already been built on site, in
accordance with the relevant Building Regulations in place at the time. The extension
makes appropriate use of natural lighting and is considered to comply with policy 4A.7 of
the London Plan (February 2008).

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

See Section 7.
Comments on Public Consultations

ORIGINAL COMMENTS
The points raised by the petitioners have been dealt with in the main report.

Points (i) and (v) made by the individual respondents on the initial consultation have been
dealt with in the main report. Points (ii), (iii), (iv), (vi), (ix), (x), (xi), (xii), (xiii), (xiv) and (xv)
are noted, however, there is the requirement that every application needs to be
considered on its individual merits. As regards Point (vii), the school's lack of adherence
to the previous conditions restricting staff and pupil numbers is regrettable. However, this
application still has to be considered on its individual merits. A S106 agreement restricting
numbers is recommended in this instance and is also the subject of a condition.

As regards point (xvi), the 12 individual spaces on the west of the site were granted
permission on 23rd June 1994 under application ref. 10795/AN/94/872. Application
10795/APP/2009/513 also shows much of the area around the compound to the northwest
of the site to be hardsurfaced. The other parking areas tend to be sited immediately
adjacent to the buildings and would not necessarily be subject to planning permission. It is
however noted that the application seeking to discharge a landscaping condition in
connection with the L-shaped building to the west of the site, granted on 7th July 1999
(10795/AW/98/2328) did show the area to its front as an existing tarmaced car park. As
regards the number of spaces that these areas contain, this is addressed in the main
report. As regards point (xvii) relating to cycle spaces, this has been dealt with by
condition. As regards point (xviii), service vehicles would normally make use of the

North Planning Committee - 29th April 2015298 140
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS



circulation space within the school and no specific provision would need to be made. As
regards point (xix), the provision made for coach parking is adequate. Point (xx) is not
correct, as the 2001 permission did not require the submission of a landscaping scheme.
As regards point (xxi), the description of development has been amended and re-
consulted on. As regards point (xxii), this is a separate issue. As regards point (xxiii), any
trespass issue of staff on adjoining roads is not a planning matter.

RE-CONSULTATION RESPONSES

As regards the responses to the re-consultation, points (i) to (viii) have been dealt with in
the main report and in dealing with the initial points raised and commented upon above. In
response to the additional points raised at point (iv), application ref. 10795/APP/2009/199
was not supported by a transport statement, as is the case here, the findings of which
have to be considered. In terms of the opening times of the temporary car park, this has
been conditioned. As regards point (ix) this is noted and accepted, but with this
application, it is an important point of consideration that the building itself is immune from
enforcement action due to the '4 year rule' and no action could be taken against the
building itself even if this were considered desirable. Points (x) to (xii) are noted but all
applications have to be considered on their merits.

7.20 Planning Obligations

The school has offered a S106/Unilateral Undertaking to ensure that the 405 pupil and 65
full-time staff number limit is legally binding upon the school.
7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
7.22 Other Issues

There are no other relevant issues raised by this application.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware
of the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

North Planning Committee - 29th April 2010~ 29¢ 141
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS



Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
This is not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

Although it is regrettable that the school did not fully comply with the original permission, it
is considered that there has been no change in policy or site circumstances since the
original application was considered in November 2001 (ref. 10795/APP/2001/1600) to
suggest that a further permission is no longer appropriate. Furthermore, as the building
has been on site for over 4 years, the extension itself is immune from any enforcement
action. As the school could benefit from the original permission if it fully complied with the
permission, it is just the additional pupil and staff numbers that are relevant to this
consideration. In this respect, the additional pupil and staff numbers would not materially
harm the Green Belt, or the residential amenities of surrounding residential properties.
The Council's Highway Engineer is satisfied that the development would not harm
highway safety.

11. Reference Documents

Planning Policy Statement 1 (Sustainable Development)

PPG2 (Green Belts)

The London Plan (February 2008)

Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).
Consultation responses

Planning history

Contact Officer: Richard Phillips Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 29th April 201629¢ 142
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS



Appendix B

Table 1

RECORDED BIRTHS IN NORTHWOOD AND NORTHWOOD HILLS

Born in School Year:  2000/2001 2001/2002
Northwood

Northwood Hills

m
120

107
125

Total births in Northwood &
Northwood Hills

23 273

Table 2

2002/2003

105
124

29

2003/2004  2004/20056  2005/2006

2006/2007

m
120

126
131

2 257

2007/2008

unconfirmed

2008/2009  2009/2010

105

Chart 2: Planning Area 2 - Primary pupils aged 4-10
2,000 ---a----r/--T---"-r---rU/---|"/-/---r---T TS TTTTTAaAT T TTreTTTTTTTrhTT T TITTTTIET T T T T T T
[} [} [} [} [} [} [} [} [} 1 1 x L.ma 1 [}
L e e il et e et ik sttt —_--hw---"*i—-_-,— I—-—q”——-“i"-—-ﬂ"
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 ] = — — e —
1,500 ———-|————I————-r————l————f————l————f———lﬁ——wk——_ = —_——-t———l————1————l————*:——+
14z 1.j:| I“ly ain 1_&} " 1.]'?'.' 1.4 -'i_--- 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
T s N = | S O 1 LT, L L L IR P S _—— = gy, i T BN TR EUINN R [N I |
— i _t--' ] 1 I
vaoo o T X __ T ___T_ " __ el L LM 1___
[} [} [} [} [} [} 1 1 [} [} [} [} [} [}
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
B e e et it it et el e it ity el sty Aiielied ity i_-_-l _______ |
. I I I I I | | —
e T s s Wl et A e e S S T S e e S S B
= — e - 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
=00 ———*—-——*——--#-——#‘—_—-i‘——"—"— i itk phleienks Bkl et el o "
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 —#— Flanning area 2
4 --—q---—F—--4-—--F-——t—-—--—-—f-—-——-——t--——q---—F———t-—- -
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 —.—E.;.,.-g
il = === = = o e e e [ e e e e e e ]
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 =i
o4 + + + + + + + + + + + + + *_Gits
;o4 3005 006 2007 M08 M08 30 MY X2 M3 M4 M5 MME XMT 3MME 3Ms 2mo MM

Page 143



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 144



Agenda ltem 13

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address BREAKSPEAR HOUSE BREAKSPEAR ROAD NORTH HAREFIELD

Development: Application for alterations to the previously approved scheme for the
residential units 1-4 of the enabling development (previously approved within
scheme ref: 7610/APP/2002/1816 dated 28/01/2008 for the conversion of the
existing Breakspear House to 10 flats, the erection of 7 dwellings and
erection of single storey extension to Lower Lodge, incorporating conversion
of existing house to 9 flats, erection of 8 dwellings and erection of a two
storey extension to Lower Lodge, single storey extension to Upper Lodge
together with surface level and underground parking) involving alterations in
the internal residential room layouts and the design and layout of the rear
gardens.

LBH Ref Nos: 7610/APP/2010/2608

Drawing Nos: 1677-1380 Rev. D
1677-A300 Rev. A
1677-1005 Rev. C
1677-A314 Rev. A
1677- SKO06 Rev. A
99225-301 Rev.
99225-302 Rev.
1677-1352 Rev.
1677-1361 Rev.
1677-1363 Rev.
1677-1364 Rev.
99225-303 Rev.

moOmMmmOOO

Date Plans Received:  12/11/2010 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 10/12/2010
Date Application Valid: 09/12/2010
1. SUMMARY

The application involves amendments to House Units 1-4 of the enabling development,
previously approved on 30 September 2009 (7610/APP/2008/1012).

The approved scheme (ref 7610/APP/2008/1012) is for the conversion of a Grade 1
listed building into 9 apartments with a two storey (one and half height) extension to
Lower Lodge, a single storey extension to Upper Lodge, as well as the erection of 8
dwellings with surface level and underground parking.

The current scheme involves proposed alterations to House Units 1-4 (reflected in a
more restricted red line demarcating the application site) involving (i) alterations in the
internal layouts with bedrooms relocated to the lower ground floor with the main living
rooms relocated to the upper ground floor (car park courtyard level), (ii) changes in the
garden and introduction of decking serving the houses and individual gardens to the 4
units, and changes to the architectural feature details to the external elevations.

The proposals are not considered to change the fundamental character or merits of the
scheme in respect of these particular 4 units or the relationship these houses would have
to the wider Breakspear House site. Therefore the scheme is recommended for approval.

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 145



2, RECOMMENDATION

That authority be given to the Head of Planning, Trading Standards and
Environmental Protection, to determine the application under delegated powers,
subject to the completion of a Deed of Variation to planning permission Ref:
7610/APP/2008/1012, to be entered into, to insert the new planning reference
number into the existing Agreement and subject to the conditions on the original
planning permission, in so far that these are still relevant and are still capable of
being discharged.

1 T8 Time Limit - full planning application 3 years

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Notwithstanding the submitted plans, prior to the implementation of the relevant works,
details and/or samples of all materials, colours and finishes to be used on all external
surfaces shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Such details shall include:

(i) all external joinery,

(ii) down pipes and flues

(iii) samples of all materials, bricks, tiles,

(iv) tile hanging,

(v) decorative finials, including weather vanes, cupolas

(vi) window cills and door thresholds for new structures

(vii) design details of boundary walls, railings and steps

REASON

To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

3 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Notwithstanding the submitted plans, prior to the implementation of the relevant works a
plan indicating the positions, design, materials and type of boundary treatment to be
erected shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The
boundary treatment shall be completed before the buildings are occupied, or in
accordance with a timetable agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

REASON
To safeguard the visual amenities of the area in accordance with Policy BE13 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

4 OoM2 Levels

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be
shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point. Thereafter the development shall not
be carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 146



REASON

To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in
accordance with policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

5 OM5 Provision of Bin Stores

No development shall take place until details of covered and secure facilities to be
provided for the screened storage of refuse bins within the site have been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No part of the development shall
be occupied until the facilities have been provided in accordance with the approved
details and thereafter the facilities shall be permanently retained.

REASON

To ensure a satisfactory appearance and in the interests of the amenities of the
occupiers and adjoining residents, in accordance with Policy OE3 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

6 OM11 Floodlighting

No floodlighting or other form of external lighting shall be installed unless it is in
accordance with details which have previously been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. Such details shall include location, height, type and
direction of light sources and intensity of illumination. Any lighting that is so installed shall
not thereafter be altered without the prior consent in writing of the Local Planning
Authority other than for routine maintenance which does not change its details.

REASON

To safeguard the amenity of surrounding properties in accordance with policy BE13 of
the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and/or in the
interests of highway safety [ delete if not relevant ] and London Plan (February 2008)
Policy 4B.1.

7 TL1 Existing Trees - Survey

Prior to any further work, other than to the Manor House commencing on site, an
accurate survey plan at a scale of not less than 1:200 shall be submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan must show:-

(i) Existing and proposed site levels.

(i) Routes of any existing or proposed underground works and overhead lines including
their manner of construction.

REASON

To enable the Local Planning Authority to assess the amenity value of existing trees,
hedges and shrubs and the impact of the proposed development on them and to ensure
that the development conforms with Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

8 TL2 Trees to be retained

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the
Local Planning Authority.

If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely damaged during construction,
or is found to be seriously diseased or dying another tree, hedge or shrub shall be
planted at the same place and shall be of a size and species to be agreed in writing by

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 147



the Local Planning Authority and shall be planted in the first planting season following the
completion of the development or the occupation of the buildings, whichever is the
earlier.

Where damage is less severe, a schedule of remedial works necessary to ameliorate the
effect of damage by tree surgery, feeding or groundwork shall be agreed in writing with
the Local Planning Authority. New planting should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery
Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and Shrubs'. Remedial work should be carried out
to BS 3998 (1989) 'Recommendations for Tree Work' and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of
Practice for General Landscape Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work
shall be completed in the first planting season following the completion of the
development or the occupation of the buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON

To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and to comply with Section 197 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

9 TL3 Protection of trees during site clearance and development

No additional site works or development shall be carried out until the fencing to protect
trees and hedges to be retained has been erected, in accordance with the details
approved. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority such
fencing should be a minimum height of 1.5 metres. The fencing shall be retained in
position until development is completed. The area within the approved protective fencing
shall remain undisturbed during the course of the works and in particular in these areas:
1. There shall be no changes in ground levels;

2. No materials or plant shall be stored;

3. No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.

4. No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.

5. No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that trees and other vegetation to be retained are not damaged during
construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with policy BE38 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

10 TL5 Landscaping Scheme - (full apps where details are reserved)

Within 3 months of the date of this permission, (or such period as agreed in writing by
the Local Planning Authority) a landscape scheme, based on historic research and
landscape restoration proposals, providing full details of hard and soft landscaping works
shall be submitted for approval in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works
shall be carried out as approved. The scheme shall include: -

- Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

- Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

- Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities where
appropriate,

- Implementation programme.

The scheme shall also include details of the following: -

- Proposed finishing levels or contours,

- Means of enclosure,

- Car parking layouts, - Other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas,

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 148



- Hard surfacing materials proposed, including kerbing, road surfaces and other finishes

- Minor artefacts and structures (such as play equipment, furniture, refuse storage,
signs, or lighting),

- Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground (e.g. drainage,
power cables or communications equipment, indicating lines, manholes or associated
structures),

- Retained historic landscape features and proposals for their restoration where relevant.

Schedule of landscape maintenance.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality in compliance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007).

1 TL6 Landscaping Scheme - implementation

All hard and soft landscaping shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
landscaping scheme and shall be completed within the first planting and seeding
seasons following the completion of the development or the occupation of the buildings,
whichever is the earlier period.

The new planting and landscape operations should comply with the requirements
specified in BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and Shrubs'
and in BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape Operations (Excluding
Hard Surfaces)'. Thereafter, the areas of hard and soft landscaping shall be permanently
retained.

Any tree, shrub or area of turfing or seeding shown on the approved landscaping scheme
which within a period of 5 years from the completion of development dies, is removed or
in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes seriously damaged or diseased
shall be replaced in the same place in the next planting season with another such tree,
shrub or area of turfing or seeding of similar size and species unless the Local Planning
Authority first gives written consent to any variation.

REASON

To ensure that the landscaped areas are laid out and retained in accordance with the
approved plans in order to preserve and enhance the visual amenities of the locality in
compliance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

12 DIS1 Facilities for People with Disabilities

All the facilities designed specifically to meet the needs of people with disabilities that are
shown on the approved plans shall be provided prior to the occupation of the
development and thereafter permanently retained.

REASON

To ensure that adequate facilities are provided for people with disabilities in accordance
with Policy AM13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) and London Plan (February 2008) Policies 3A.13, 3A.17 and 4B.5.

13 H1 Traffic Arrangements - submission of details

Notwithstanding the submitted plans, prior to works commencing on the enabling
development and car parking areas, details of all traffic arrangements (including

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 149



where appropriate carriageways, footways, turning space, safety strips, sight lines at
road junctions, kerb radii, car parking areas and marking out of spaces, loading
facilities, closure of existing access and means of surfacing) have been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved development
shall not be occupied until all such works have been constructed in accordance with
the approved details. Thereafter, the parking areas, sight lines and loading areas
(where appropriate) must be permanently retained and used for no other purpose at
any time. Disabled parking bays shall be a minimum of 4.8m long by 3.6m wide, or
at least 3.0m wide where two adjacent bays may share an unloading area.

REASON

To ensure pedestrian and vehicular safety and convenience and to ensure adequate
off-street parking, and loading facilities in compliance with Policy AM14 of the
adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and
Chapter 3C of the London Plan (February 2008).

14 H11 Visibility at Junctions

Unobstructed visibility shall be provided and permanently maintained above a height of
0.6 metres from footway level at 2.5 x 90 metres.

REASON

To ensure that adequate sight lines are provided and thereafter retained in the interests
of highway safety in accordance with Policy AM7 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and Chapter 3C of the London
Plan.

15 H16 Cycle Storage - details to be submitted

No part of the enabling development (units 1-8) herbey permitted shall commence until
shall details of covered and secure cycle storage for 17 covered and secure cycle
storage spaces have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The facilities shall be provided in accordance with the approved details prior to
the occupation of the development and thereafter permanently retained.

REASON

To ensure the provision and retention of facilities for cyclists to the development and
hence the availability of sustainable forms of transport to the site in accordance with
Policy AM9 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)
and Chapter 3C of the London Plan (February 2008).

16 OM14 Secured by Design

The development hereby approved shall incorporate measures to minimise the risk of
crime and to meet the specific security needs of the application site and the
development. Details of security measures shall be submitted and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority before development commences. Any security measures to
be implemented in compliance with this condition shall reach the standard necessary to
achieve the 'Secured by Design' accreditation awarded by the Hillingdon Metropolitan
Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA) on behalf of the Association of Chief
Police Officers (ACPO).

REASON

In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
to consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote
the well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 150



Local Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with policies 4B.1 and 4B.6 of the London Plan.

17 OM19 Construction Management Plan

Prior to development commencing, the applicant shall submit a demolition and
construction management plan to the Local Planning Authority for its approval. The plan
shall detail:

(i) The phasing of development works

(ii) The hours during which development works will occur.

(i) A programme to demonstrate that the most valuable or potentially contaminating
materials and fittings can be removed safety and intact for later re-use or processing.

(iv) Measures to prevent mud and dirt tracking onto adjoining roads.

(v) Traffic management and access arrangements (vehicular and pedestrian) and
parking provisions for contractors during the development process.

The approved details shall be implemented and maintained throughout the duration of
the demolition and construction process.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas in accordance with Policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies

18 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Prior to occupation of the development, the boundary wall with the Cottage shall be
completed in accordance with the submitted drawings. The agreed works shall be carried
out as approved.

REASON

To ensure that in the new wall does not harm either Harefield Village Conservation Area
or the setting of Breakspear House, in compliance with Policies BE4 and BE10 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

19 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Prior to any development works relating to the enabling development and car park
commencing on site, details of a methodology for the excavation and construction of the
new underground car park shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The agreed works shall be carried out as approved.

REASON

To ensure that in the proposed works do not harm either Harefield Village Conservation
Area or the setting of Breakspear House, in compliance with Policies BE4 and BE10 of
the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

20 RPD5 Restrictions on Erection of Extensions and Outbuildings

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification), no extension to any dwellinghouse(s) nor any garage(s), shed(s) or
other outbuilding(s) shall be erected without the grant of further specific permission from
the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
So that the Local Planning Authority can ensure that any such development would not
result in a significant loss of residential amenity in accordance with policy BE21 of the

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 151



Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

21 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Sample panels of all new facing brickwork showing the proposed brick types, colour,
texture, face bond and pointing for the new houses, new bin store structure, boundary
walls to new properties and front boundary wall to Brakespear Road, shall be provided on
site and the specification approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the
relevant parts of the works are begun. The relevant parts of the work shall be carried out
in accordance with such approved sample panels. The approved sample panels shall be
retained on site until the work is completed and has been approved.

REASON

To safeguard the special architectural, historic interest and setting of the building, in
compliance with Policy BE10 of the Hillingdon Unitary development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

22 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Prior to the commencement of the enabling development, an Ecological Management
Plan shall be to submitted to and be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The Plan should include the recommendations set out in the Protected Species Survey
(2007). The scheme shall be carried out in accordance with the approved Ecological
Management Plan.

REASON

To ensure the protection of European Protected Species and that the proposed
development will not have unacceptable ecological effects on the locality in accordance
with Policies EC1 and E5 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

23 AR3 Sites of Archaeological Interest - scheme of investigation

No development shall take place until the applicant, their agent or successor in title has
secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work in accordance with a
written scheme of investigation which has been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter development shall only take place in
accordance with the approved scheme. The archaeological works shall be carried out by
a suitably qualified body acceptable to the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

The site is of archaeological interest and it is considered that all evidence of the remains
should be recorded in accordance with Policy BE3 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan Saved Policies (September

24 NONSC Non Standard Condition

No development shall take place within the application site until the developer has
secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological recording of the standing
historic buildings and structures, in accordance with a written scheme of investigation
which has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

The site is of archaeological interest and it is considered that all evidence of the remains
should be recorded in accordance with Policy BE3 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 152



25 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Prior to the installation of the thermal heat pumps to the new houses and lodges, details
of their positions, and screening enclosures shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details.

REASON
To safeguard the visual amenities of the area in accordance with Policies BE10 and
BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

26 NONSC Non Standard Condition

The measures to reduce the energy demand and carbon dioxide emissions of the
development and to provide a 20% reduction in the sites carbon dioxide emissions
through renewable energy generation contained within the submitted report entitled Site
Energy Statement Ref: MDH/AE/1975 dated 26/3/2009 shall be integrated into the
development and thereafter permanently retained and maintained.

REASON

To ensure that the development incorporates appropriate energy efficiency measures in
accordance with policies 4A.1, 4A.3, 4A.4, 4A.6, 4A.7, 4A.9, and 4A.10 of the London
Plan (February 2008).

27 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Development shall not begin until a scheme for protecting the proposed development
from road traffic and air traffic noise has been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include such of the following measures
as are agreed with the Local Planning Authority. All works which form part of the scheme
shall be fully implemented before the development is occupied and thereafter shall be
retained and maintained in good working order for so long as the building remains in use.

REASON

To ensure that the amenity of the occupiers of the proposed development is not
adversely affected by road traffic and air traffic noise in accordance with policy OES of
the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and Policy
4A.20 of the London Plan (February 2008).

28 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Prior to any excavation or construction works related to the new underground car park
and enabling blocks hereby approved, details of the method of protection of the house,
Dovecote shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Such details shall include the underpinning and stabilisation of the Dovecote, retaining
walls and garden walls. The protection works during the excavation and construction
phases shall be carried out as approved.

REASON
To ensure that no damage is caused to the listed structures , in accordance with Policy
BES of the Hillingdon Unitary development Plan Saved policies (September 2007).

INFORMATIVES
1

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 153



It is acknowledged that conditions 4 (floor levels), 4 (ground levels and proposed floor
levels) 5 (storage of refuse bins), 7 (site levels and routes of over/underground works
and lines), 13 (traffic arrangements),15 (secure cycle storage), 17 (construction
management plan), 21 (samples panels of brickwork), 23 (programme of archaeological
investigation), 24 (programme of archaeological recording), 27 ((protection from road and
air ftraffic noise have been discharged (refs: 7610/APP/2009/2499 and
7610/APP/2009/2205). You are advised that this consent does not override those
approved details.

2 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

3 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national

guidance.
PR19 Development proposals for Breakspear House
BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas
BE10 Proposals detrimental to the setting of a listed building
BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of

new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
4

The historic buildings are of intrinsic archaeological interest and any alteration or
demolition of the historic structures should be recorded before they are damaged or
destroyed by the development hereby permitted. The applicant should therefore submit
detailed proposals in the form of an archaeological project design. This design should be
in accordance with the appropriate English Heritage guidelines.

5 113 Asbestos Removal

Demolition and removal of any material containing asbestos must be carried out in
accordance with guidance from the Health and Safety Executive and the Council's
Environmental Services. For advice and information contact: - Environmental Protection
Unit, 3S/02, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 277401) or the
Health and Safety Executive, Rose Court, 2 Southwark Bridge Road, London, SE1 9HS
(Tel. 020 7556 2100).

6

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

7 112 Notification to Building Contractors

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 154



The applicant/developer should ensure that the site constructor receives copies of all
drawings approved and conditions/informatives attached to this planning permission.
During building construction the name, address and telephone number of the contractor
(including an emergency telephone number) should be clearly displayed on a hoarding
visible from outside the site.

8 113 Asbestos Removal

Demolition and removal of any material containing asbestos must be carried out in
accordance with guidance from the Health and Safety Executive and the Council's
Environmental Services. For advice and information contact: - Environmental Protection
Unit, 3S/02, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 277401) or the
Health and Safety Executive, Rose Court, 2 Southwark Bridge Road, London, SE1 9HS
(Tel. 020 7556 2100).

9 114 Installation of Plant and Machinery

The Council's Commercial Premises Section and Building Control Services should be
consulted regarding any of the following:-

The installation of a boiler with a rating of 55,000 - 1% million Btu/hr and/or the
construction of a chimney serving a furnace with a minimum rating of 1% million Btu/hr;
The siting of any external machinery (eg air conditioning);

The installation of additional plant/machinery or replacement of existing machinery.
Contact:- Commercial Premises Section, 4W/04, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge,
UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250190). Building Control Services, 3N/01, Civic Centre, High
Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (tel. 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

10 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with: -

A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the hours of
08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours of 08.00 hours
and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on Sundays, Bank and
Public Holidays.

B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public health
nuisance.

D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02, Civic
Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek prior approval
under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying
out construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

11 119 Sewerage Connections, Water Pollution etc.

You should contact Thames Water Utilities and the Council's Building Control Service
regarding any proposed connection to a public sewer or any other possible impact that

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 155



the development could have on local foul or surface water sewers, including building over
a public sewer. Contact: - The Waste Water Business Manager, Thames Water Utilities
plc, Kew Business Centre, Kew Bridge Road, Brentford, Middlesex, TW8 OEE.

Building Control Service - 3N/01, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (tel.
01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

12 123 Works affecting the Public Highway - Vehicle Crossover

The development requires the formation of a vehicular crossover, which will be
constructed by the Council. This work is also subject to the issuing of a separate licence
to obstruct or open up the public highway. For further information and advice contact: -
Highways Maintenance Operations, 4W/07, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

13 134 Building Regulations 'Access to and use of buildings'

Compliance with Building Regulations 'Access to and use of buildings' and Disability
Discrimination Act 1995 for commercial and residential development.

You are advised that the scheme is required to comply with either:-

‘The Building Regulations 2000 Approved Document Part M 'Access to and use of
buildings', or with

- BS 8300:2001 Design of buildings and their approaches to meet the needs of disabled
people - Code of practice. AMD 15617 2005, AMD 15982 2005.

These documents (which are for guidance) set minimum standards to allow residents,
workers and visitors, regardless of disability, age or gender, to gain access to and within
buildings, and to use their facilities and sanitary conveniences.

You may also be required make provisions to comply with the Disability Discrimination
Act 1995. The Act gives disabled people various rights. Under the Act it is unlawful for
employers and persons who provide services to members of the public to discriminate
against disabled people by treating them less favourably for any reason related to their
disability, or by failing to comply with a duty to provide reasonable adjustments. This
duty can require the removal or modification of physical features of buildings provided it
is reasonable.

The duty to make reasonable adjustments can be effected by the Building Regulation
compliance. For compliance with the DDA please refer to the following guidance: -

- The Disability Discrimination Act 1995. Available to download from www.opsi.gov.uk

- Disability Rights Commission (DRC) Access statements. Achieving an inclusive
environment by ensuring continuity throughout the planning, design and management of
building and spaces, 2004. Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

- Code of practice. Rights of access. Goods, facilities, services and premises. Disability
discrimination act 1995, 2002. ISBN 0 11702 860 6. Available to download from

www.drc-gb.org.

- Creating an inclusive environment, 2003 & 2004 - What it means to you. A guide for
service providers, 2003. Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

This is not a comprehensive list of Building Regulations legislation. For further

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 156



information you should contact Building Control on 01895 250804/5/6.

14 135 Res. Dec's in Harefield - Prox. to Denham Aerodrome

The applicants are alerted to the fact that Denham Aerodrome's hours of operation are
normally between 07.00 hours and 22.00 hours with exceptional and medical flights
permitted at any time.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

Breakspear House is a Grade 1 listed building and is located on the south western side of
Breakspear Road North approximately 1 kilometre to the south east of Harefield Village.
The site of this application is contained within a small part of the grounds of Breakspear
House and formed a part of the site of the approved scheme for enabling development in
relation to the main house. The red line that defines the development site is located
immediately to the west and south of the northwest facing flank wall elevation of the 3
storey listed Breakspear House. The site is located on land between the main house and
the historic walled garden and is on the site of historic single storey outbuildings that have
been demolished. The site is presently a construction site with building works taking place
in respect to the previously approved scheme in respect of the part excavated car park
building and Houses 1-4 of the enabling development.

A major feature of this area of the grounds of Breakspear House is the substantial
changes in levels from east to west. The ground floor of the main house is approximately
4 metres below the floor level of the former outbuildings to the west of the main house. To
the south of the house this change in levels is maintained by a retaining wall and to the
north the slope rises towards both the tarmac area in front of the former outbuildings and
the Dovecote. The floor level of the Dovecote is approximately 6 metres above the ground
level of the main house.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposed scheme is an amendment to the approved scheme (7610/APP/2008/1012)
that embraces the whole of the Breakspear House site and involves alterations solely to
House Units 1-4. The proposals involve alterations to the internal layouts with bedrooms
relocated to the lower ground floor with the main living rooms relocated to the upper
ground floor (car park courtyard level). The proposed scheme would involve the loss of
the 5th bedroom for each unit, as the 3 non-master bedrooms in comparision to the
approved scheme are made larger. Externally the changes involve the introduction of
decking in rear gardens serving the houses and changes to the feature details to the
external elevations of the houses involving less decorative brickwork and feature detailing
surrounding the windows.

The proposed scheme also proposes a minor revision to the detailing of the stairs linking
the upper deck of the car park to flat Unit 8 within Breakspear House itself and the
retention of an original wall (serving approved bin stores) that was to be originally
demolished under the approved scheme. The current scheme will involve no alteration to
the height, bulk, design of roof or footprint of the houses or to the car park and does not
involve any change to the number of residential units.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 157



7610/APP/2008/1012 Breakspear House Breakspear Road North Harefield

Amendments to planning permission ref.7610/APP/ 2002/1816 dated 28/1/2008 (Conversion of
existing house to 10 flats, erection of 7 dwellings and erection of single storey extension to
Lower Lodge), incorporating conversion of existing house to 9 flats, erection of 8 dwellings and
erection of a two storey extension to Lower Lodge, single storey extension to Upper Lodge
together with surface level and underground parking.

Decision: 20-08-2009  Approved

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Breakspear House and the Dovecote are included within English Heritage's Building at
Risk Register 2001. This register is a working tool, helping to define the scale of the
problem, and to prioritise action by English Heritage, local authorities, building
preservation trusts, funding bodies and everyone who can play a part in securing the
future of these outstanding and irreplaceable parts of our heritage.

Breakspear House was identified as being structurally sound, but in need of minor repair
as a result of a lack of general maintenance. The Dovecote was identified as a structure
with deteriorating masonry and general deterioration of most elements of the building
fabric, including external joinery. In the register, in terms of priority action, they are
classed as 'C' which means they are slowly deteriorating. In exercising the approved
scheme (7610/APP/2008/1012) and the related |listed building consent
(7610/APP/2008/1478) the fabric of the main house has been brought up to a an excellent
external standard of repair with work on going in respect of repairs and adaptation of the
interior to serve as separate residential units.

Since the Buildings at Risk Register was compiled in 2001, both Breakspear House and
the Dovecote had experienced rapid deterioration in the fabric of both buildings.
Substantial cracks appeared and there were substantial problems regarding water
penetration to both structures. This increase in deterioration was the result of the long-
term neglect of these buildings. Given these problems, it became imperative that the long-
term survival of these buildings be secured. Breakspear House will remain on the register
of Buildings at Risk Register until the completion of the building works, the discharge of
related planning and listed building conditions and the written agreement by the local
planning authority of a satisfactory implementation of the measures required under the
section 106 including a satisfactory on-going site management plan.

Planning permission was granted in August 2009 (ref: 7610/APP/2008/1012) for the
conversion of the existing house to 9 flats, erection of 8 dwellings and the erection of
extensions to the lodge buildings, with new parking (involving demolition of existing
outbuildings). Listed building consent was also granted for the works set out above.

The conversion of the main house involves significant changes to the internal
arrangement of the house, with new partitions, new openings in existing walls and existing
openings closed.

The proposed new dwellings (‘enabling development') are split into three blocks. Units 1-4
are a terrace of 4 x 5 bedroom houses over 2% levels (located to the west of the main
house), backing onto the proposed underground parking. This terrace is 28.8 metres long
by 8.4 metres deep, resulting in a footprint of 253 sq. metres. The front of the block at
ground floor would be at the same level as the first floor level of the main house with

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 158



sunken rear gardens at the ground level of the main house. The terrace is therefore,
single storey at the front and 2% storey at the rear.

Units 5-8 comprise two pairs of 2V storey semi-detached 5 bedroom houses with a total
footprint of 390 square metres and floor area of 872 square metres. Each pair of semis is
13 metres wide by 7.5 metres deep and would be located 60 metres to the west of the
main house. The terrace and semi detached dwellings will form a courtyard development
enclosing surface and underground parking. Access to the underground parking is via a
new tower to replicate the dovecote, which provides access at the lower level.

4, Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.1 To maintain the Green Belt for uses which preserve or enhance the open nature
of the area.
PT1.8 To preserve or enhance those features of Conservation Areas which contribute to

their special architectural and visual qualities.

PT1.9 To seek to preserve statutory Listed Buildings and buildings on the Local List.

Part 2 Policies:

PR19 Development proposals for Breakspear House

BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

BE10 Proposals detrimental to the setting of a listed building

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting

and landscaping in development proposals.
5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1  Advertisement Expiry Date:- 2nd February 2011

5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

The application was advertised in the local press and a site notice was displayed. Consultation
letters were sent to the owner/occupiers of 11 adjoining properties, Harefield Tenants and Resident
Association, Ickenham Residents Association, Harefield History Society and Harefield Area
Conservation Panel. No responses were received.

English Heritage: Do not wish to offer comments on this occasion, other than the application should
be determined in accordance with national and local policy guidance and on the basis of specialist
conservation advice.

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 159



Internal Consultees
CONSERVATION OFFICER:

PROPOSAL: Alterations to units 1-4, including a deck to rear of the units, new staircase between
house and courtyard and changes to bin store adjacent to the house.

COMMENTS: The revised drawings are acceptable in principle and accord with the pre-application
discussions. It is considered that the changes to the rear of the units would improve their overall
appearance and reduce their impact on the setting of the garden front of Breakspear House.
Overall, the changes create a terrace of buildings that appear less like town houses and more like
the original outbuildings that stood in the courtyard adjacent to the house. The detailed design and
materials of the bridge link and staircase between the courtyard and the main house need to be
agreed by condition.

The changes to the bin store area and enclosure allow an existing brick wall adjacent to the main
house, uncovered during the works, to be retained. This is to be welcomed in listed building terms.

Conditions: The same conditions as attached to the originally approved scheme (re these units)
need to be attached to this application if approved and these should also cover:

- Details repairs to the brickwork of the bin enclosure

- Samples of the new coping to this area to be agreed

- Details of the design of the gate to the bin store and handrails
- Materials for the surfaces of the decked areas to be agreed

CONCLUSION: No objection subject to the comments above.

WASTE DEVELOPMEMT: The plan does show that space has been allocated for a total of 6 x
1,100 litre eurobins. This should provide sufficient waste storage capacity for the development.

TREE & LANDSCAPE OFFICER: There are no trees on the part of the site/scheme (units 1-4) that
it is proposed to alter and the landscaping can be dealt with as part of the comprehensive scheme
for the whole site, which is subject to a live details application (currently being revised).

So long as the tree and landscape conditions imposed on the main planning permission (Ref:
7610/APP/2002/1816 dated 28/1/2008) and the relevant terms/schedules of the associated legal
agreement (and the documents plans submitted/approved in accordance with it) will still apply to
this part of the site, which is part built, the (part retrospective) application is acceptable in terms of
the relevant tree/landscape policies.

PLANNING OBLIGATIONS OFFICER: Further to the submission of the above application | can
advise that a Deed of Variation will be required to hook this additional planning reference into the
main S106 agreement.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The principle of the development has already been established by virtue of planning
permission ref: 7610/APP/2008/1012 dated 21st August 2009. No changes are proposed
in the number of residential units or the number of bed spaces, only their location within
the units. The current application seeks approval of revisions to the appearance of the
building, to the gardens and to the internal layouts.

7.02 Density of the proposed development

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 160



7.03

7.04

7.05

7.06

7.07

7.08

7.09

No changes are proposed to the density of development approved under planning
permission 7610/APP/2008/1012.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

IMPACT ON ARCHAEOLOGY AND THE SETTING OF THE LISTED BULDING:

It is considered that the changes to the rear of the units would improve their overall
appearance and reduce their impact on the setting of the garden front of Breakspear
House. Overall, the changes create a terrace of buildings that appear less like town
houses and more like the original outbuildings that stood in the courtyard adjacent to the
house.

The current application will involve no alteration in the degree or location of excavation
required and this amendment scheme would not involve changes to the approved scheme
in close proximity to the Dovecote that remains in a poor state of repair but is subject to
future repair by existing conditions and the S106 agreement for the site.

Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to the issues curently under consideration.
Impact on the green belt

See Section .
Environmental Impact

Not applicable to the issues curently under consideration.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The impact of the proposal on the Green Belt and Harefield Village Conservation Area
were dealt with in the original approved scheme to which this is an amendment. The
proposed alterations from the approved scheme (7610/APP/2008/1012) are not of a
nature to be considered to have a wide material impact upon the character or appearance
of the wider area. As reflected in the comments of the Conservation Officer, the proposed
amendments with this application are not considered to have a negative impact in relation
to the existing approved scheme for these 4 enabling residential units or the setting of the
listed Breakspear House.

Details that will vary from the approved scheme in respect of repairs to the brickwork to
the bin enclosure, samples of the new coping to the bin stores, details of the design of the
gate to the bin store and handrails, the material for the surface of the top deck car parking
areas can be dealt with appropriately through the existing conditions attached to the
approved scheme that are also attached to this scheme, should it be approved.

Impact on neighbours

The proposed alterations within this application from the approved scheme
(7610/APP/2008/1012) will not have any adverse impact in terms of potential loss of
privacy, overlooking, daylight/sunlight issues to future occupants of the adjoining enabling
residential units (Houses No 5-8) or to the future occupants of the flats within the main
house. The scheme is in accordance with the provisions of Policies BE20, BE21 and
BE24 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and
relevant design guidance.

Living conditions for future occupiers

It is considered that the changes in the internal layouts of the house 1-4 of the enabling
development with the relocation of bedrooms to the lower ground floor and the main living
rooms relocated to the upper ground floor of the units will provide benefits in terms of the
natural light and outlook provided to these main living rooms. The proposed decking at the
upper floor level to the rear of the units will reduce to a degree the sunlight and outlook to

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 161



7.10

7.11

712

713

7.14

7.15

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

the bedrooms at lower ground level. However it is not considered with the excavated
element to the rear garden, served by a retaining wall that the alterations will result in an
unacceptable standard of amenity to these bedrooms for future occupants of the 4
houses. Indeed the loss of a bedroom to each house compared to the approved scheme
should result in a more spacious quality to the remaining bedrooms.

Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

No changes are proposed to the parking arrangements previously approved and
considered acceptable.
Urban design, access and security

The changes proposed would not impact upon the security of the Units 1-4.
Disabled access

The proposed changes would not impact upon level access between the upper deck car
park and entrances to Units 1-4. The development would provide an adequate living
environment for future occupiers in terms of accessibility.

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to the issues curently under consideration.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Subject to the tree and landscape conditions imposed on the original permission
(7610/APP/2008/1012) and the relevant associated legal agreement no new issues in this
respect are raised by the proposed changes.

Sustainable waste management

Subject to the conditions imposed on the original permission (7610/APP/2008/1012) and
the relevant associated legal agreement no new issues in this respect are raised by the
proposed changes.

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to the issues curently under consideration.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not applicable to the issues curently under consideration.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not applicable to the issues curently under consideration.
Comments on Public Consultations

No written comments received to the application from local residents or amenity societies.
Planning Obligations

The current application is identical to the approved scheme in terms of number of
dwellings within this location of the enabling development approved under application
7610/APP/2008/1012 and will not alter the total nuber of units on site.

The original S106 agreement over the site was dated 12 December 2007, A variation to
the S106 was agreed to reflect the amendment to the main scheme
(7610/APP/2008/1012) and was signed and concluded on 9 August 2009.

The heads of terms, are as follows:

- A management plan to secure the long term maintenance of both Breakspear House
and the Dovecote;

- Structural impact details to ensure the Dovecote is not damaged;

- Legal provisions to secure an appropriate phasing and completion to requisite standards;
- A landscape, restoration and management plan, including detailed proposals, long terms
management responsibilities and maintenance schedules for all landscape areas;

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 162



- A management plan for blocks A and B including restrictions on the erection of new
walls, fences or other structures; and any associated traffic orders or associated works;

- A public access plan to enable public access to approved areas of the site for up to 2
days a year,

- Highway works as to improve the site access;

- Wall works, prior to any demolition and rebuilding of a listed wall that a scheme is
submitted and approved detailing how this work will be undertaken;

- A project management and monitoring fee of £1,000 for the management and monitoring
of the education contribution paid in May 2008 and which is outstanding.

While an increase in contributions previously agreed is not considered necessary, a
proportion of the obligations previously agreed do relate, in part, to the units proposed to
be amended by this application. Accordingly the existing S106 agreement must be varied
in order to ensure that these requirements are linked to the current application.

Accordingly, it is recommended that the Council approve the application only once the
varied legal agreement is in place.
7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to the issues curently under consideration.
7.22 Other Issues

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware of
the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 163



10. CONCLUSION

The revision to the approved scheme are considered to provide a better arrangement of
accommodation for future occupants of the Houses 1-4 of the enabling development. The
proposed changes to the rear with the introduction of decking is considered to improve the
units overall appearance and reduce their impact on the setting of the garden of the listed
building. The changes involving a simpler form of architectural detailing to the front
elevation of the terraced units overlooking the top decking of the car parking is considered
more in keeping with the original outbuildings in this location, which is welcome.

In other respects the scheme is considered essentially identical to the previous scheme
other than a welcome retention of an existing wall to serve a bin storage and a proposed
minor change in the stairs linking the car parking deck to the main house, the exact details
of which are controlled by an existing planning and listed building consent condition
relating to the whole scheme (Refs: 7610/APP/2010 and 7610/APP/2010/1478
respectively).

Subject to a variation of the existing legal agreement for the site and subject to the original
conditions imposed on the main approved scheme (7610/APP/2008/1012), the
development would accord with PR19, BE4, BE10, BE13 and BE38 of the Saved policies
of the Unitary Development Plan, September 2007 and is recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents

London Plan Consolidation (February 2008)

Planning Policy Statement 5: Planning for the Historic Environment

Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement (HDAS): Accessible Hilingdon
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement (HDAS): New Residential Layouts
Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance Planning Obligations Strategy

Contact Officer: Gareth Gwynne Telephone No: 01895 250230

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS
Page 164



Upper Lodge

TS

N ~
BreakspeNa "
Stables
Cottage

Breakspear
Mews

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2009

Breakspear House,
Breakspear Road North,
Harefield

Q
\
\
\
\
\ O Tank
\
\ |
O
\\ [
O
\
\
\
\
\ )
O , ,
\ _ preakspear House .
\ S N Filter Bed
N . / N
\\'3 N . NI
V2 N N
C
\3/ :
\Y -
oo
— =
R .
!’ ]
I \
1 Y
1 \
‘ ,,,,,,,,
‘ - B - - - -
\!
\
\!
\!
A\
Notes Site Address

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, Environment
& Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale
7610/APP/2010/2608 1:2,000
Planning Committee Date
North Page 165| February 2011

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 166



Agenda Annex

Plans for
North
Planning Committee

22nd February 2011

T™HILLINGDON

NNNNNN

Y
J

www. hillingdon.gov.uk



Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address SOUTHBOURNE DAY CENTRE 161 ELLIOTT AVENUE RUISLIP

Development: Reserved matters (details of appearance and landscaping) in compliance
with condition 2 of outline planning permission ref: 66033/APP/2009/ 1060
dated 29/10/2010: Erection of a two storey building to provide 23 one and
two-bedroom apartments, together with associated parking, involving the
demolition of existing day centre building.

LBH Ref Nos: 66033/APP/2010/2523

Date Plans Received:  29/10/2010 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 15/10/2010
Date Application Valid: 08/12/2010 09/12/2010

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 168






9l sl L €l 143 | 1) ol T T T T A T T 1T 11 L 9 | S b | € z
PT

yroowoeiryoreqdf

o ®© ool ® ujmps :TVAE

Am onoua oneor ottt

e VD00t aNoolEn  oamexn

ool

aIva HIVOS E8N0H Avasd
SALON.

muow ‘\.

ANSWJOBAIQ TVLINSQISY “ -~
XESTIOCI dNISIMY NOGONITIH INNEAY LLOITH 191
@I 601
8 X018 v 10018

=

ININID ININID 7 wivis aNINIO ININID L yIvLs ONINIO 9NINIO
/39NN07 /39NN01 dan /39NN07 /39NN07 /39NN01 /739NN01

W N NIHILIN
- |

.Hooyo3s

T I
dp8i

Z -
W
e i/

N3IHILIN m

TESVAJ Il T SI30NVA S3WORS 0L

G300 SHOLOMISR MOTS VAW NGHOLD OL G300Y 38 OL SN ONOAIZY
30VdS 040840 NIHOLX NHUI SOV Y¥18 350134 40 NOWSOd 03X

l
'3OVdS ONIANQ/SHLVE A0 INT SIHLOTO STUONIA — - - X :==~_=uM\
BT mm— aNINIO aNINIg aNINIg : 9NINID 9NINIO ubszyeus
‘0L NOONA3E JHL NOU LSIOH XOVRL ONMIED SALVIIONI ————— /39NN071 /39NN07 /39NN01 I — el - /39NN01 /39NN01 - wbsyggie
D — : o l INRIdLOO4
A e B e |
vy - ¥0O014 §S0ND

S o 0 0 A L 52 s
P —

..&v! A |-

%-Sﬁﬁ_.ss.__so

0h9q w60 6

o, sunt gl HSI0 0L A1dN00 OL 0300V SHON 'SHIVE 340 8
NOUNIASNA IO NOIS30 48

ONY SHOGNIA “G3IV00TaY SINI w

%

100 NGO 0L SIUNSN3/SHOOUHIYE 0L U000 “CISAY K s

Q3G S3AAL IV14 OISR STIVA INGRLAANOD

Y Q300 L)AL LT3HS "GISATY SYAW ONY S3dAL IV14

'SV 0L 0300V ¥

ey s 3o o s SRS “
o
popag> punjesbis] sieq | _
3 T T I T 23 T T T o T 5 I 8 L 1 9 T S 1 7 I € [

Page 170




L v L I L cv L oy L v L vy T S S B

" Yool © uimpe :TIVIE
xvi
ouow o muzGmo  EL

IVOoor:|
Vo8

R

Tuondo - NVId YOO'M LSl

—

XESTIAAM JSMI NOGINITIH JNNGAY LLOTH 191

g %0078 ¥ %0078

I\.m\lllﬂ

ONINID él

/39NN07

ONINIO
/39NN01

ONINID
/39NN07

ONINID
/39NN01

ONINIO
/39NN01

5 , | e NanaLIy K

ININIO
/739NN01

, | D 004038
X d

X

.;.::v_m_
il " o0

CF

” ybsgacyg
, wbsy0.5|

lod

N3HILIN m
1 Wopuoig/
2 B

ININIO
/39NN07

o R

'30VdS ONAMQ/SHLYE ¥3A0 3NN SIHLOTO SIUONIA

4 bsg0's8Le

w bsze'esg

INRId1004
¥YOOTd SSOUD

[ &

i
m NIHILIN

7 NINIO

TNVA L0V S3UVOIGNI & NOLLYIATHEEY NOONHLYE 3HL
'OLINOOYG IHL WO 1SIOH YOVRL SNITIZ0 SAUVOINI —————

‘SLLTIOV MAMOHS 40 NOISIAONd TUNLNY HLNI
360 TN O3 ATING GTTVES HLIM GIAUIS 38 OL SNOONHLVE TIV

/39NN01

01,90q w60 SININGHINO3Y NNNYIG OL 30NBRY L4
o1, ounn gt 'HSI0 0L X1AN0D O G300V SAON "SHIVE 4340 030 SHOW 99

QUY0TI SINHOM NSV
o1, v 1z CAVOOTRS SUMIS NAIN 07 IV C3SIBY VRN ¥ UNOAV1 1 MU Sd

U SV %
110 N3O 0L SAUNSN3/SNOOSHIVG OL SHO0Q O3SA3Y SCHVOBANO AN ¢4

papay) T_:z.gm_
T

Page 171




9l | Sl | i3 | €l | A3 13 0L [T T T T f I L | /L | £ | L
P_h
AmoowI0IryoInqdf
s 3 Yool ® ujmpe :TIVWE
Am oxoua ‘oneor ittt
w»a V@00l aNoolan  EoaneExn.
OGN RN
wva HIVOS. HSNOH avasd
SELON
———— i
- as
INSWJOBAIQ TVLLNSQISY -~
ESTIO0IW dNSIMY NOGONITIH ‘INNSAY LLOITHE 191
L §0f
|
I
I
|
i
|
I
|
|
|
|
1
I
N
N
1N H-
Wi Q]
W00¥038 v 7
ZLivid -
B (0]
©
L U LT
, o
\\\\\\\\ GA ]
I
I
| NP 1004038 i
” | s LV \
| _ |
| 1
1 |
I | i
! |
I ! I
| |
I ! W
I ! . ubsygziee
I | Sooss TS nenaas | wbsgrese
i i INRIdLOOS
, A b=y  lirzzzzszesfrrrrrreel| 0 [dtzcscesssdlbrererer | ¥oo ssove
I
| | |
I | |
I 4 i
! |
|
|
I
|
I
|
I
I
I i
|
I 7
|
I ;
i
I
|
I
|
i
oL, %0 weo LGIBUO3 SN OL GO 4
ooy sivis
o1, My Wiz WNAIINI 02 1V14 '03SARY 12 IV ¥3A0 400Y 'O3SMY SMOONU ¥WINM0O  +d
01, SN WZL 100 N3O OL SIUNSNI/SHOOUHIVE 01 S¥00Q £
000 93 QW sianuco
Ol @4 puzz TINVNGY LNOAY] 30vd 0300V ONITINS ONNGD 40 3NN wWwoogl ® 00SI  Zd
o, wr ust s o1
popen ey o] 23ou vosAoy |
9 T ) il 43 143 [ [ T 3 I I T 7 €




1 v L I ! L L m_.w
FmocvionygeInadf
“ Y01 ® ujmpe TVWNE
ey 2z (68100 xvd
An o muzGmo  EL
cxa VO00L:1 aNootan _ SOamEXn
NOGONTTIH ENVIENIA
mva V8 ESNOH  AVAEO
SELON
[Em———— S1oenys
XSTIOGI ST NOTGSNITIH NNGAY LLOITH 191
I 60f
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
8 %078 v %0018 i
| i
i |
|
|
I
|
|
|
|
|
|
| i
| ﬁ:
, =
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
bibar 3u M = ™
~—
=]
o )
I 0y (@)]
o
A o
e e I
or
i e T
|
|
|
|
|
|
i e
ﬁ =
|
|
i
|
|
|
: |
|
g |
|
H |
| i
] |
|
|
|
: |
|
|
i
ININGHINO3 NNWIA OL G30NBY £
T 12 13 4300 J00H TV STV 29,
0SS RN 1d
paxpau funyeutis] jou uoisinay [onaay |
T T =7 T T T 7T T T T T g




9l €l L | L | 0L [T T T T & 1 L | 9 | S | L
P_h
o " Yoo!
Ay ‘ONO¥a "ONEOf
“»a V@00l
ava HIVOS.
SELON
Zuopdo - SNOLLYATE 3QIS G3SOJONd i
INSWIOBAIQ TYLLNQISY. “ -~
ESTIO0IW dNSIMY NOGONITIH ‘INNSAY LLOITHE 191
L §0f
(5£1—¢91 s,oN buwod) NOILYAFII LHOIY
261 34AL OV HN0T00 ORI TV WL
@ @
¥OOT4 ANNOYO TYNYILNI
“““““““““““““““““““““ ~— ¥3ON3IY
¥0014 1S¥l4 TYNY3LINI
———
AION3Y- - /\ /\
¥0014 ANOJ3S TYNYILNI
[T T —
281 340 GV 2000 ST SNOOTEN o ovr om
<
N~
—
I (0]
(@]
0]
o
(2% "ON 30ld BuioD4) NOILVAITI 1437
261 41000 HOGNIK RNV GEIVGD ¥30M04 G3ZVID TNOC 261 340 ONY SN0T00 ORI T3 WAL
@
¥OOT4 aNNOYO WN¥AINK || B e e
Y0014 LS¥I4 TYNYILNI i .
E)%
Y0074 ANOJ3S TYNYILNI
o1 20 w0 [
P SO 0 GO0 Sk TSI SO 54
o, o a1 SO0 31 0L G STNIRH MOOWK 44
01, @4 puzz "0300v SY3NH0Q 39 OL Q300V SIONFUISI MOONIM H00Q £
o, s ant 5 SN 00 03 NG O T SOMEE 2
0, % waz s i
v!_v!_uT._.:a_m_ ajeq _ 240U voISIADY |
9T T T T 3 143 13 o T 3 I A g S T




9l |

Sl 1 i |

€l

(]} [ T T T

Amoomiosryonad(
» Yool ® wympy :mvWE

ToR40 - SNOLLVATH WA ONV LNOW CES0JOM

_ qar

XESTIA0M ST NOGONITIH 3NNGAY LLOTH 191

oL, 9 wgt
o1, on wat
o1, 2on st
oL, @4 Pz
01, vor st

981 ¥NOTOD "SWOONIM NNININTY G3L¥00 ¥3QMOd G3ZV19 FT6NOC-

981 ¥N0I00 "SHOONIM WNININTTY G3L¥00 ¥30MOd 032V1D

anzuz|4

981 3dAL ONY ¥N0TI0D YHOMNORME FOVAMIVA TVOIAL

NOILVA3N3 dv3d

4004 ANNOHO TVYNHILNI

YOOT4 1Sdl4 TYNYILINI

40074 ANOJ3IS TWNYIINI

“08L "SIHOIH00H 10NJ-3HINIO XT3

SNIINO3Y
SU0L0 085 0L G353 "SNOLVATTS O G300V S, “TISUGH SNOUVATTS
q3SUA3Y SHOONM ¥MHOD

981 GUHONHOW

‘STANVG/ONZYO 340LUYA3 "SI0 ¥3ddN OL G300 SIONR3Y 4000 ONY HOONM
G300 9 0L SINGEY 400D ONV OGN ‘0300¥ SLHTA00Y TNV SAINO
3NSS| RN

340U UoisiAaY [oNARY

081 ¥NOT00 'SHOOT WNININNTY G3L¥0D ¥3AMOd G3Z¥19 T1BNOG—

S¥INEoa V1o aval—

HIONTY 981 JdAL ONY ¥NOTOD HHOMYOWE JOV3MIVA TVOIAL:

%Qa @

i

981 3dAL GNY ¥N0T00 “STTIL INDOOTIIN

NOILVAZT3 LNOY4

40014 ANNOYD TVYNYILINI

S¥IN¥00 av1d ava——

,;@/

*08L SIHOIIO0H 1ON-3MINID XNTIA

981 3dAL ONV HNOI00 “STTLL ONOOTIINI —————

@g| @

SuIN¥0a av1D ava——

JOOT14 1S¥ld TVYNYILNI

Y0074 ANOD3S TYNYALNI

Page 175

Py punyeubis] ateq |
9l I

) b

€l

a

[} I 6




VS DU AaLins U UE3 AOUEHT U SPUCS e SPUEDRY JouIeq a0 - 2 3in6d *s3313 pue syue(d o6ueq Jo Bunueld ay3 10) 3dedXd Seale PaRRI0Nd Jawwioy
Uity 21osd 105 Bunsixa 243 Jo WWDT doy 3Ly LM 303X 3q 0} SI SIIOS JO UORRANIND *AjuO JuaWdinba
g o . 8 ¥ pajesado puey yym Jo puey Aq pajeiduwiod aq 0} S| sease papa10id JaULIO) BU3 UIYM Buidedspue) os S
o punaiy £ Souer poyes pepues s “3s 40 Uae) pue Auo Juawidinba puey Aq umop uaye) aq 03 st
FZ_A 1 o o pone by PR € Bupua) 3y “239|dWIOD I8 SHIOM UOIDNASUOD UIBW Y3 JAYe PAAOWAI 3 Ajuo Aew Buua) aad104d 3y L b
NZdX NVI . : ok
! sdun pos 5 0 s s 1 uo Apeipatu; spajap Aue pood avew pue Aliep Bupuay aapeloid aty padsul 0) s Juabe ays ayL g
i “awn Aue e Bupua) BAR104d 3L UIYIM PaRWIRd B8 350s
g 10 0s Aue Jo spinbij ‘sjeuajew Jo a6e0}s ‘AAIOR ON "PaldAID 3q [|_YS UMOYS Se Buuay dAI0id
A0 L ASENDIN AL DTS, ST e a4 3ys 241 21U Siewlew Jo wawdinba “ueld Aue 2102 pue SYIOM 321} 3L JO UONAIJWOD JBYY T
HLIM S3ISTY INGWNOOG STHL 40 LHORIAAOD FHL “JUBLWRUAIOD 0} Joud Aoy Buiuueld (2207 aYy WOy JYBNos aq jleys
9 PAIWASUOD UAIQ Sy [RAOLIDS JRY} UOREIYLIA “PAAOLAI 3G PINOYS UODIAY [EAOLD JOJ UMOYS PUR Paynuap!
11 NO GIO3HO 38 OL SNOISNHIG 9 5391 25043 AjUO BUIMEIP SIUR UO Paseq JuasU0> Buiuueid Jo Juel6 uodn *a)s Uo ade[d e} SHIoM JaLRO Aue
TIV IONIMVIA STHL WOUS TTVOS LON 00 5 2 210j3q 866€ S8 Ul N0 395 SPIRPUELS 0] BUPLOM J0IRIUOD Parc.dde AQ Paja|dwiod 3q 0 aJe SYIoM 3] | 1
N1 wpewa| W uwei \\n : sa0N
WO 00z:T  aws| 010z 834 :owq =caman
NOLLYWYOSNI 404 smexs maEmam s
2o0/L62L aquny Buweiq u u-HL |
# i
NV1d NOLLDALO¥d 3L oms = e
'
<
dISINY ‘3NN3AY LLOITIA

‘TYLN3D AVA INYNOFHLNOS
pafoid

p11 Anuadied 11015 "v'[

qua

woz wot

(vdy) ealy uond2301d 300y D
11e3ap se Buiduay ybly wo'z N»
pajueidsues) $991) I
pouleia1 53311 @

saunpnus pasodod D

saimea) ays bunsixg

Page 176

anjen pue Ayend o) o 5301 = €021
anien pue Ajjend ajesapoui o $201 = £0718
anieA pue Ayjen Ubiy o 5301 = £0ZTY
PoAOW21 9 015304 = ¥
onesuobanen 500z :268S 58 Jo Areuiung. by
SI204 1 BuiIRWRl i INJ9SN POYRCOUY  wonguAU09 53
wepn= A

amewsn = WO
PR Ueds oy I O U G5 = W

‘apeds 8ay) e Buisn
eds 3 [@An1eU SPIIL) OM PUR Pl IO UIIMIDQ = T

o s o i NG 00 WSS = A s 6y g eale uj Juedsues
Ao W haney pue dn aye} v eale
! Pl Shae s 1 16 penseiul OIS Ut B Loty i ums ur sqnuys pue seal |Iy
‘Swiod [eUIpIeD DUf O PR 10 LN SN U Peaids uesg peaids youesg
S 0 WO W
‘Souweu isi6u3 sopads
ueid U0 1aqunu i BupUOGS3110) 2quiny BRI onooiL

3911 J0 3NPaYIS 03 Ao

P e Wie 91 090N O] Gz | T Erad PR Sl of |
“UORIPUGS PUE Wiio] 3jqeuoses, < T [ 5idew Aef T |
“GOQIPUGD PUE U110} 9jqeUoseay < [ oW AeRu
UONIpUGS PUE W00} SPUOSERY| 07< T e
UONIpUO? PUE o) S[APU0SEY| 07< 5 o ke
UONIpUG) PUE W0} SIAPUOSERY|07< T %
“3peds 394 JiM 10y “wioy < S0 | 8 1ead eibnsed| 0
“5peds 551 (N 18019 T170] PR < o) S0 [ 0T EEiS
"3peds 331 M 3103y “WIOJ PRS- < ] S0 | wst aeibnsed| 8
“5peds 551 (AN 18013 “GORIPUOD PUE LLI0] S[eU0SES) < 5 0] 07 7 S0 UESEI0)| £
PO J
“opeds 30,0 M 120y _patueidsuen 2 pinoy wompuod pue wiioypooo| oi< | 1 |A|so| 9 s ||t [T | aebuses| 9
arsp J|
pajueidsue aq pjnod “UoRIPUOd pue Wiy pood|  OT< D JA[S0]| 9 Tyl T S @eibosed| §
aIsp |
pajueldsues aq pjnoD ‘uonipuod pue uojpood| 01< | D |A|so| v |1 1|1 | 1| € aeibnsed|
Do I
pawedsuen aq pinod wonpuod pue wioypooo| ot< | 13 | Al so| 9 [rtfr| T | ¥ awbnses| ¢
“pauisap Ji|
Ppajueidsues 3q pinoD “UORIPUOd Pue ULy pood|  0T< W |AlS0] ¢ Tyl T v aebased| 7
Pa15p J|
paeidsuen 2q pino) “uopuod pue wiojpooo] ot< | 1 [A | soor [t r|t] 1| o awbnses| 1
AN
Z3p( % (z|z8(5 2
BRI [eanpnas / [exbojorsAud m H m. LR sx| gmisfa[n| @ u H
uorpuoy 32| 5 [5]33 7 M e -4
c3E 18383 ) g
i g (2 5[ 2 | peoudsyoues
dIISINY ‘INNIAY LLOIT13 ‘FULNID AVA ANUNOSHLNOS




9l Sl 7l | €l | 4 | L oL [T T T 1 Nﬁv [T 1 L 9 S 7 £ Z | : L
N . \
- e Nan \ V
an v wax  pEES R e ——— A —
wuw V@oor:! awoien  sommn Yledjooy
H VA V08 aenon T yvaus
SALON. =
prem—— SI30HFIE
e AONAAY L1014
] E sBujjes sBuyes sBujies
- - doj juniq 1o pue sousgue doj Juniq Jo pue souRnus doj juniq 10 pue uop28e||0d
XTG4SI NOGONITIH 1WAV LLOT 9 Dodoou i i 507 el sand podooy Ui Ilem ey podooy uiim llem ejsemesnjes
— Hemp yjouq N.—.J HEBMP YOUq WZ'}- Hemp Xjouq wz' 10y ejeB maN
M quey M_ quey quey “
9 L, SR peddop meN peddoip meN peddoip meN tediooy
— ", :
| ESM,-.EQS_&,.-E 2 i - = - ———
Bugueid pejesodioou; L e i3 8z e 6z 13 - RS
| Wy sOuie) doy i < W o261 xocax Maszi) 3 u 8 A
ugen3 e 0014 0u By ] Vg )
] - K | yueq Xot . R
SeInoe} UM qiey u_ Unh_-ﬂﬁ AT e oyt fje& !
peddoiq meN X F90] pedpiows 1oy (4B 02€4 xem!xuﬁd
_oovsr < ‘s _oovsr Bujurey .z 390] 3snqoy 4QOIN3 A0 0011 "0U |
L) e e e[ e e e
$3000Y JBINOJYSA oSy e R
A y oozsy,
q V —_ oorsy, o0 i .
[ 1 _ _ [ / Lﬁ
eJojs
4 ujq esojoue
Y 03 Bugueid —
) pejelodioou)
4 wm
R sBujjies doy
i I puniq 4o pue
i 3 pedooy g'L
| 3
- EE N
Eivinive m ~—
anuaAy ol 19} sammzly O o
. BoisoN‘sieyso L 2 O)
X :sjey z1. Buliies 8 a
ol 4 saseds | = V )s0I§ DI
‘abelojs
— 919A2 |eusayxy
— a
A
m, — ososv ] "
a | ;
X 4 Suﬁmf Jruaun. Jruonn. —| _— +3:4 +oo:< i
2 2.0 .
9 u:ﬁ T VA i ! )
[-% 6l 0z 12 [onar e | ol éso ot | olLvd ospsr, osqsy, anpia 38 o osoy
au..v - V¢ ¥ ”“‘”3 I _ﬂﬁﬂ N OLLYd 23 1 a3 , \ﬁﬁw_ vjﬂ Sranoud 36 oL OlLvd| % | \ |t olvd | ™ WWMM... Loss oo
2 o e R s e S oy ™ I T | | | e il s e | A I
m 1 ﬁ ey osevy, i’ don LT osevy sw\ﬁy 5 ﬂ Arn
@AOqE JeY JO BUIINO /.// 5 i e S jeAeid
g _— B 89Us) papJe0q 80| W', — = W \ ,‘,/‘// W
g K Bupueid \ iy Ny ————— Bugyueyd
n ebeioys Ppejesodioou) yym sbujjies i / -._Bujueaios Bujpiaoid pejesodioou) yym sBujyel
b — 01942 0} %90] 10} = do3 juniq 1o pus pedooy t}-—! \ eaue} pepsecq esojg wg')-/ 3un;q Jo pue pedooy w;
Bujurey .z %20 ﬂ:aozl!'w \ e
sosrT \ e
—; N > - W»/ o g
— I + 2\ ~
. : @ o, " i, k i .. ,
£ €281 SON'SIei A4 [z - - A\ 3
- L. ' L1-€L S.ON ‘Siel} 49 8 ~
G Z :sjeY | Buinies Ty
: I 2 —
-, [ seoeds Z| = €40018 e
SN 92ue} pepJeoq 8sO[D Wg L —e— | -abei0)s A
- ' { [ 01949 jeuseixg .-
! { | Tosver
L IiE I e o, s - —
' = O llllIllll.ﬂ"ll".ll.ll@ll.ll.'illl'
R e o T — i —— ¥ #9508} PIROq 08019
aneaue Lo oMY OL GGy 314 PN v
G300V G3ACYd 33 OL SINT ONHSYM
ohounc CL0NG TUON SERIOLS T10AD 0L INFOVTTY 30V SLINGUAIVMAVY  ¥id
b, Ao sz (GELVOIONI SV G30QVALON  €id
SYERY OLLYA HVE N S3AINAOQ Ml OL LNZOVIQY TZH
Ok, v ez
popappuniesbis]  ageq | |
97 T 143 T s T o T 3 I g T T g S T



[

0102 kienuer |

a1eq

[ 2] weq |

WOz | s ees

8 | vosiney 00L/¥ESLVSD | Joquiny Bumesq

P Aguedse joig Wl
sjesodoiq adeospue ‘oL Bumesq
diysiny ‘anuaAy HolI3 19} waloid

A0 EIUBLOIAUBESIDOMYSE: BWT
6L 29010 Xe3

LY9EVL 900 L

ISy ‘9218 UBH

Qv weg

Bunueid (EueLLOINUD

ENG)

vogduosag L] eleq | oy
0 0) spuaue ‘pajepdn aseq SRAIEIY 2 | oE0zo v
10 0 spuaLLe ‘pajepdn aseq SRAIKIY 20| ouvoe 8

EpIU 103U ‘ONOE

stoued jiyur

LM [lem Y01q JMp UBIY WG’

—

suebund snubes|3 ‘oNG

-

eawodef eqnony ‘onge —

“BUMEIp UO SBlOU O} Jajo) INSORUB JO SUBAW 103 ~EN

$10Q LI WM PaXy punosB ‘angerseseid
9IGBINS Y)M Pajeas} Siejs poompiey pue (1nojoo aBioj

£e16) ewey uos| B1JONP ‘UBIY WIS, X BB WLIGY X WWOOYZ-
‘pancidde pue

4q.puejersio,-
1v3S ¥3EWIL

lenba 1o (0z4 0009 0280) P11 8UBISIBEAS Ao
(

‘pancsdde pue [enba Jo 1P sifeusie Aq Buined uoxes, ‘60
weyed pUOG-§OB}S PIe| 'IN0j0O Jng/jeinieu ‘aBps papunos
“Ysiuly PaINIXa) ‘WG X 0Sb X 0G% ‘Buined Gefs 21a10u0D

syjed souesue Buiemp 0}
- ONIAVd 8V1S 3134INOD

Sile19p $183UIBUS O} SEJE JEINDIDA -
30VHNS WVAVOVIN SNONINNLIE

sjesodoid adeospue-] pieH

(eBpay) snimaq snuidsed ‘ONgL
(eBpay) snimiaq snuidied "ONgL /

e SNqI0S "ON}|

Bu

als

epIU £380]U0T “ONEL
epu 18010 ‘ONEL

sses Ayuewy pesodord

Buueld quys eluewewo pesodoid

77
v
Sununig obpoy posodory [ LI/, Ppanowas aq o} a1} Bupsia ,/ \_
$88)) piepuels. (sieyap 1o} Kanins oau) o} Jajos)
g AreoH-ex3 pasodold paulejes aq 0} 8as} Bupsixg

sjesodoid Bunueiq

I

eUE SNQIOS "ON}

(eBpay) snimaq snuidieD ‘ONgL

(e6pay) snimeq snuidsied ‘ONgL

e SNqIo "ONL
EpIU 10O 'ONE,

((EREN

EpJIU E181UOT “ONEL

(eBpoy) snimaq snuidsed “oNgl
(eBpeuy) snimeq snuidie) ‘ONgL
P BIA0IUOT ONLE

_‘wZ_m -

snsese00ing) snunid ‘oNgz — |

1B1oqunyy sueqsag "ONOY .\

euEdnone sNqI0g N

SNSE18001NE| SNUNIG 'ONGZ. k

1L

pouiEial soudy \ ;
popieog-asop Bunsix3 g

snup wnwnai, onpe — -

pueisdn qi

ot

/.m\anm:_v_._a r * _

L weHEwop o) Buu-eHUM

6 JeINoiyeA

% WO

90Ua} POPIE0G-asOfD Joqui Wg'L

Jofew BOUIA "ONEL
[PUNOW aNig, SNUIOUESD ‘ONEZ
WD BUUM, 8G2H “ONL |
wnuiforeo wnowsdkH ‘ONZH |

wnuifoleo wnousdkH ‘ONZZ
euysung, smoiBAyeIg ONg
B100pIH, wnouadAH "ONJ L

ulysuNS, SMOIBYoRIE ‘ONg.

IR ] sowsomn o

JNNIAV LLOITT3 191

/2
Buipiing jo eseq 0} duls AR

soged ajeaud asooua o}
sbuyes seq [aays ybiy wo'L

PUNO}Y anig, SNUIoUEAT “ONGL
09 OUUM, 9G9H ‘ONG
winuikored wnouedAH ONEL
8D BYUM, 5G8H ONg
0140100 J8POH ‘ONG
19Unkio} snuwAuoN3 ‘ONpL

WD BIUM, 899H "ONOL

‘snsspedAoaeweyo eulOJUES "ONS N
1ounyio} snwAuong ‘ONOL

£0140100 E10POH ‘ONg

RUABIp £30000018S "ON9L
Jofew BOUIA 'O
©uABIp B00000018S "ONZZ ~_

SO SYUM, 8G0H 'ONg /
014100 ©19POH ‘ONLL WW

noqe Bueyieno Buiping

v

1 —
", wnuikoreo wnouadAH "oNGH
BOUIQIS SNUIOD "ONE -

. eouodef eqnony ‘oNLL
. euednone SNGI0S “ONE —-
20U PopIEOG-25070 Joqui wg'L ~__

b SI ISP SI0BNYLE O]
e 7 spuess pue ainsojous sk~
] £ % v ¥ Loy

/

N

sin ey

1ISUOWIS JBISEBUOIODONOZ
EPIIU BISOIUOT ONEZ

550 5 T
ogoN %}335 SNGIOS'ON _VN\

90U} POPIE0G-8S0[0 JAqUIY W'

oy ._s_zs.oé\

a7
‘susbund snubea|3 ‘ONEL \N

elewsa) eASIOUD ‘ONpL
109PIH, WNOAAAH "ONgL
SnUY WIWNGIA 'ONOZ
Jouysuns, SMoIBAYORIE ‘ONg

N

-~ _\. nH.. et
9 e e

eoodef eauds ONLZ
JODUIM SIN, SG8H ‘ONOZ
susdes SNUIOUEBD “ONL L
100pIH, EINpUBAET ‘ONpL
wnuiko[eo WnouSdA ONg

fosequnyy suaqiog ‘ONLZ

JIH UIGOY, Jo1youBIOWY "ON}
snssuedfoseweyd BUIOUES 'ONLL
‘edjuode( eqnony ‘ON.Z

av.

109 BUIUM, 8G9H OO
J3UIN SIW, 893H 'ONOZ

wnuikoles wnouadAH “oNg
suadai snuioueas ONOZ
V3NV ONILVAS] ‘.

ejews) eAsioyd ‘ONvZ
uysuns, SHoIBAeIE “ONgZ
wnuikoles wnouedAH ‘ONEL

PI09PIH, BINPUBAET ONL

o e -
‘A1on19p Jo SITOFZ UIJUM PIe] 6 PINOS SOAIT [y -

peoj ouy

‘SWwiof iy “S1u10f po10BBeIS Ly 'SwO1 UBLEAS JO SOLOS B UI PIE] 0Q PINOUS SOAIN -

{PUNOW 8NIg, SNYIOUBBD 'ONZL

. 990418 0410 WAUSE dol I OYe 09 ) Buyny
Buk
popm
/155990 58 OWY 040 UORBUIGUOD © 10 (L00Z'288CSE
popn-
1
Bunsxo 400 6P, 0 01 0 PO 0q 01 SEOLY -
“Bfueld ng Auey
‘polbue
00
1o onp od 8
wwosg
oz oped ' e
o
18552000 5E OM )
14012q payOBS SE JBUOTIPUDD 05 Wi oKL
s0Bpoy weid -
‘Buueid BpeR
“uNL0SG1 9218 9B 'SyoaM -7 o) parSOK s 1 b Wi wnuu
“aeutesp pood
] WP @ pue w0z -
WSz 0 Ydop € 0} afei0di0au) pue
Aiess2080 52 oM a4 0 UOREUIQUID.
ex i
m po
! our
1o eg
Jo.01 opned ‘souy yieq ouid jo Bu 1ok (inw WS, W L -
v od 10 Jo ores
Jo wioj o
POINbOI 56 POIOJEMOP pUE.
Supend
10 woyoq dn yeosg -
soke] wiuig0g-
“pueS poysem 08In0O-wnIpau Jo 19Ae] WILIGOZ-
“oiBuiys eod " kel w0z~
yos ui so01 X001 X 000
~Jo SUoYSUBIP WL Wy UG Ul S06:11eld AlesouoD -
Bupueig o0iL
EPIU B1801U0T "ONY .
ElE SNQIOS 'ONZ Sunuerd
fue
+ue R
sieued |jyul Buijies [o0}s vonefeisu o) pawBIGU o9
1[EM 01 JEMP UBIY WG|
7 Worp o, 01 9 [euerod
ff— wnuiopeo wnoed oNoL 10 ‘sa0ini05 punoiBiopun o
| eoie fuowe o) e1e6 einoas b  UONe3IGNd 350 ner L
S,/ P Umeio Aq 1m Uoiiopop,
Buipoos sseip | Bunueid AL Aoy
o s i3 Jolotw eouiA
wnuosjes wnood
S|Eep S1B)YOIE O o v T o oA et
SPUEIS PUE BINSOPUS BPAD " s ® " 09142/00 840POH
s v 2 suoda on snyouesy
Ieioy whs/Aysueqozis tod ‘oueN uouwoy oue uer
/ euiednone snqiog ‘ONL 3
80UB) PapIE0g-850[0 Jaqul) We'|
3 v i3 050z cauds. i1, ouodef vauds
s v * oroe 0q seunsuu) ©ultip sen eueuso0y €209200185
sz v 3 oz
" o v 2 00z sopuone) 19100, eyojIsnBu oiopueAT]
Jofew B3UIA "of
UAONLL v v *® ovoe VoM suuor s 10100, wnouodhy
{2100pIH, WnouadAH ‘ONg} s v € ovoe ™ w09 o, oqoH
ov v *® ovoe a0H JOpUM SIN, 0G0H
P v ® oroe oIPUS, P10 § plesous3, ounyio snuukuong
8 v 1 0v0¢  wossorg eBueio ueaen soouspuns, exeuse) efsioud
o5 s z ez snuoueeg punopy onfg, snujouead
elloUIUGNS SNUNI “ONG ) v * oroe sauysuns, spoidAyoesg
oL wbs Aysueq  emsiod (wojozs Kddng oweN uowwod owen uner
Jeulysung, smojBAYoRIg “ONOL Bunueid qriug uswewo
W v T 3 wnaman 000 073, S GG
BOIQIS SNWIOD 'ONLZ " € € oroe foine1 peng oy 10, snsesesoine) snunig
o9 v z oroe fouou & o
e € © oroe snubeora Lepeioey, suebund snuseor3
5 3 v z ogov Joiseau000 rsuours sojsoouojo)
suabund snubesi3 ‘NG 1 4 - o5 - o v
19 v * oroe Kuoquegeuay, wnaincindons yBioquini suequog
P v 'S oroe LoyeBouep, eouodsf eqnony.
oy ‘o unet
Bupued anaus emanag
4B wwosL
‘onow eouy sod swerd y xoidde | e ookt
01 fusog ) wesquoy Smoq snuidieo
oL wiog “owon ue
Bupueid oBpoy posodosd
xoudde "
g T w8 o5 un Uenoy BUlpooS JOJEMIOONS, GUEANoNE SIS,
s v o osrun weoqoyum Loonsolop, eue snguos
s v & osro0r
f B o oseun wourg ueereuiyy uowonber, siin ejog.
' € o oseun fusquous A oy, eIy
1HI0L SYESIEUIN_ UONIpUOD 100N (W3) IBIeH  (w9) UiD ouieN Uowwoo owen uper

Buiueid 9011 piepUEIS | AABOH-213x3 Posodold

JTNAIHIS ONILNV1d




Southborne Gardens
Employment Services

Peter Lyell Court

- -

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2009

Site Address

Southbourne Day Centre,
Elliot Avenue,

Ruislip

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, Environment
& Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale
66033/APP/2010/2523 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date

North Page 179

February 2011

po
NILLINGDON

LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address LAND ADJOINING 12 GLADSDALE DRIVE EASTCOTE

Development: Erection of a single storey detached one-bedroom dwelling with associated
parking and amenity space.

LBH Ref Nos: 65761/APP/2010/2707

Date Plans Received:  23/11/2010 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 30/11/2010

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 180



Ordnance
— Survey’

8 3
g E
189364m T (
1 i
| )
]
|
|
!
{
189300m
189200m
189164m
A 2 a a
i ] {
. § § §

Produced 19.12.2008 from the Ordnance Suryey National
Geographic Database and incorporaling surveyed revision
available al this date. © Crown Copyright 2008,

Reproduction in whole or part is prohibited withoul the
prior permission of Ordnance Survey

Ordnance Survey, the OS Symbol and OS Sitemap are
registered trademarks of Ordnance Survey, the nalional
mapping agency of Greal Brilain.

The representation of a road, lrack or path Is no
evidence of a right of way,

The representation of fealures as lines is no evidence
of a properly boundary.

Melros
20 40

| [ i ] ]
| —— | = {

Scale 1:1250
Supplied by: Blackwell M and D C

Serial number: 00741300
Cenlre coordinates: 510561.88 189264.6

Further information can be found on the
0S Sitemap Information leaflet or the
Ordnance Survey web site:

VAW ovdnancor_ygaéo.‘ré 1

OS Sitemap®

1893¢4m

189300m

189200m

189 1e4m




[ S ¥ [ 5 g

_ €£5107 966LL0 290N 00L:L = 3WIS

WX [ORGPIANIIOY i[ieuw-d SSE6vY £2610 ¥ /2L

_ PPN .va? a.: N ‘peoy acokn:!._jui ‘ueg Kuapmaxy

|IIH‘J;I]|

9]0J%}seq
TOIAGY DNINNY'1d INIANAZAANT 0>_‘_D 0_NUWUN__O Zl
YT sluynsuo)) Sutuue|q 3y Y e/ovd ON 93d \ﬂ ST - |A
|
: . —_—| ) : T iﬁ
[ /e -
s Bnisizaii
h | | , 7 A , [ 4, |
ﬁj | ooy | || J I 11
| | || wea | Il B
\ abuno| , _ _W i/ peq ﬁ , w
=l _ A: |
T | L \
] D ]

uoneAs|3 leay uoneAs|3 apis

|
1

Ul oo |

Page 182

o Wact‘.a’*/
|

UONBAS|T Juoi uoneas|3 epIs

S \ LR |
N x _ f
| 1 |
L R = ==
¢ B || W” ,m |
AN = - S—
W \
X N -

‘sue|d pasodoid

= OS50 Jo7d TOUT 1ed
133HS ¢V _ _ _ u1 50 Atown Q10U 15nW puB 1UBAdOD 51 BuIMEp SIu1




A0IAQY ONINNVT INANZdIANT

Al 9lepspeln 2l

PY stuwjnsuop) Suruueld eiD A

$/00 'ON -Odd

3
wwgo

uoneAs|s apis

| B y ¢ |
= BT TPV
WO [OEBPNIEIDY :[rew-d _ aawa_wm MMMRP-“W__”M 00 = 3OS
PRI ‘POOMTUION ‘PROY YUOMSURWONY ‘wure AUJMY

= /
elr- 4

WW788t

"
’/

UoNEeAR|T BpIS

Pagel 183

"sue|d pesodoid

UOjSS[UIad J0pd Jnoqim ped

v} J0 Atioum paonpoidal q 1ou I1snw pue 1uBuAdoo s| Bumesp siuL




0021 = 3OS

XPPIN
8jo0)se]
aAlQ 9lepspe|D Z|

2/0d ON ‘940

wz_l

‘llulllli[ |

. ety

)Y

\)&\/w Mmuuv%%:
!

J/// B o %...j

LS

il

Page 184

_/

" eNYAd
..... \\ommoﬂuoma

7

133HS ¢V

UO[SSIUII60 J003 TH0UIA UEd
U1 J0 Alioum peonpoida) 8q 10U 1snw pue uBuAdod st Buimesp siuL




‘I\Illllu I |-—W—l




_ \
- \
.- \ s

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2009

Site Address

Land Adjacent to

12 Gladsdale Drive,

Eastcote

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, Environment
& Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale
65761/APP/2010/2707 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date

NorthPage 186

February 2011

LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address 56 THE DRIVE ICKENHAM

Development: Two storey six-bedroom detached dwelling with basement level and habitable
roofspace with detached garage to front, involving the demolition of existing
dwelling.

LBH Ref Nos: 4496/APP/2009/2765

Date Plans Received:  23/12/2009 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 23/12/2009
Date Application Valid: 01/02/2010 01/02/2010
28/10/2010

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 187



v £/8¢/80 0L NYP| 00111 /0G: 1
ATY ‘ONDYd ALvd ATVOS

X 05'} -31v0s
NVd 30074 ANNOYD ONILSIXT

SNOILVA313 % SNV1d
3ISNOH ONILSIX3

NV1d ¥007d LS¥Id ONILSIX3

IILIL

Surui

,M.[/,“WHooEam_ “

<{[_[s30m3s oNNVI3a = [

NOIS(J d5anaxn

19218 10SpuIM V1T ,K1oeg PIO YL,
NOLLdROSIa AGNMYVYA | FIvd  |ASY

\

gv8 018N "XAdIN ‘39aiyaxn \\\ umop
WVHNIMOI “IAIMG 3HL 9
“IDaroud  —
I peg [
Q17 S3LVIS3 OINOYd
“LNAI'TO
16L§ST §6810 “TAL V1 86N X3SAPPIA * 28pLqX)

93uno

Page 188

'8, NOILO3HIA NI

V. NOLLO3HIA NI 004} -3TVOS
NOILYAZ13 3dIS ONILSIX3 NOILVAT13 3aIS ONILSIX3 NOILVAI13 4v3d ONILSIX3 NOILVAI13 LNOY4 ONILSIX3

0
- i




00L:1

]

SNOILVA3I3 ONV SNV1d
ON1173M0 IN3W3II V 1d IYsomen

X3S3700IW  WYHN3INII
JAIHA 3HL 96 -wem

417 S31VLS3 OLNOY¥d
Rkl

3T,

L6552 56810 131 Gy/| 8GN "X3S9|PPIN ‘@bBpugxn
‘19811S 10SpuIM YLz ‘,A1edeg plO ayy,
<CSDAESONTIEITED N9ISI(J 39a14aXN

vonduoseq __ awg __.a.._z,_

Q3SIA3Y 3SNOH 40 HLd30 60 AON 8
WY O e O oy o
PrOPUA U Aoy Qy Ié. Q

pante wma_nz. 4:3/46 ,ws wiey o RO 3

NV1d 40074 ONO0J3S (03S0d0dd

0oLt
L s

NVId |
a3aNany|
———' NOILVA313 30IS Q350d0Y¥d

2N ——

H

1l
|

/

I
\\‘H
"

|
‘ |

il
|

j

VHIND

39NN0Y

[

WO0Y SIWVY

39v4v9

, ‘
RIS
48um

ONIONYT1 (=

oo

(I |
T

paaibo 3q o) 4\“\\,\

Buijup)d maN ~

ulDwal o}

NVId 31IS 03S0d0oyd IA 140 3HL
T / -
/%HP/YW abiay  ss0up \ Buiysix3
N ) L
S — i
o ”
) / \
|

bl
[ paasbo 3gq o4
\w\\,m 1doyspup) puoy
- )
|
) AL 3InNa “ﬁ S Ty
( . | Buigunid Buysixz
= 95@5&»

(

[ ) -
Buiyuo|d mc:m_xu/urﬁ: ﬂ\\/, - ‘,, E_AA ﬂ
1 A \ ko T\\Il!>|.i§§>, l
. | )

paysiowap g o}
asnoy buysixa
jo auiyng

s

/

lr[
paysijowap 23q of

UOISU3}X3 JD3J AaJoys

3)buis o aul

21 el e )
! I\ wmﬁ_as% ag o4
| ( 3bpsnb buysixa

40 3unno

{

(1 1
| G|

( \,\y
,z\v

e v

U
27|

~L

R L mﬂb\wﬁﬂw@

LI
et

NN LISy

v%?ﬁ%, N

N
d \ 0|4
oy )
L S

unor
~

vl 5 |
Uioway o S‘,W > va\ /wm
Buijupyd Buiysixy — | |
N ~A f

Y §

(

P




.

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with

the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon

100019283 2009

Site Address LONDON BOROUGH
] OF HILLINGDON
56 The Drive, Planning, Environment
Ickenham & Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Planning Application Ref: Scale
4496/APP/2009/2765 1:1,250 B
Planning Committee Date ¥ '!t‘
NorthPage 190 | February 2011 | ™I LLINGDON




Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address 19 GROVE ROAD NORTHWOOD

Development: Part two storey, part single storey rear extension, single storey side/front
extension, front porch, alterations to existing elevations and conversion of
roofspace for habitable use with 2 rear, 2 side, and 3 front rooflights and 3
skylights.

LBH Ref Nos: 27846/APP/2010/2916

Date Plans Received:  17/12/2010 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 17/12/2010

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 191



SITE LOCATION 1:1250

gardens

\ rkin,
garden \ ‘ pgpoceg

grove road D- DEC 1o . TEROXE WOOED

C+ €T 10 + RXDOF AL AMELDED
B. BPZ o - Q0F Man AWELDED
Q- FER o - 12%oF AAL AMEULDED

FHome Plans

Chuxch Gardens, Chuxch FHill, Harefiold, Middx. UB9 6DU

Jel & Fa: 01895 822488
BLOCK PLAN 1:200

CLIENT: MR & MRS BROWN

PROJECT: 49 GROVE ROAD
NORTHWOOD
date:  JAN.10 drawn: W
[ .- scale:  1:200 AT A2
Page 192 Drg.No:  14,80[40

DESIGN  PROPOSAL




ONICUNG  ONILSIX 3

ﬁ_om.: :oN Baq we o
00L:L 0S°L :oess woy s
60907 omp
(OOMHLYON
0v0d 049 6L

T

umesp

AL0dr0dd

NMOYE SHW B dW JLNAITD

NY1d 40014 ONNO&D
88p728 96810 ML § PR
@9 6L PN PRINURE AL YY) siapwfy yomy)

mscaﬁu @Eowmu

NY1d d0074 1Syld

WOOY ONINIO

WOOY ONIAIN

1 N3HL

E ALIILN

-

ONIONYT

H00Y038 |

-

M3IA 301S

M3IA dv3Y

M3IA 30IS M3IA LN

Page 193

ﬁﬁa _mmﬂ.a | \ oo QEZ ﬁ

L] =




vS0d0dd  N9IS3a
Je |08yl oNtaq

T

00L:) :oEds woy

E

607330 wep

T

avod 3A049 6L :poaroud

O0OMH LYON

NMOYE SUW 2 HW RiNcige)

oG9 6L PPN PR WAL M) Sepef jomy)

88Y338 56810 WP § PR

msc@e wiowm

Q30MAWY VN AN ST+ 0 OhT <

Q3003WE THISIT O 933 +Q
L1°9) 01 M301 3015 oL MoONIM - O T D

1572 oL 407 « (IR ST + O W -0

300y USRI

S SRR

E=re

TaMAME O30 ¢ O o R

NV1d 13A37 JILLY

B

s
i
L

K K K

woos sawoh |

7
e ...5\,«
I |
> |
|

A
I V- T NN
an Sl

T =

iz ff YW P»LMA E
.

M3IA WV

Soonm

qﬁxﬂﬂ!unr}w -

1

L

i
o

TT

L1

T

,4;

T

|

|

N

(Papoys oM Mau)
NV1d 40074 LSyid

LL7- \ VN |

|
7 wooJpag % 9 woospag x— € woospag

s
. — N\ ——— .

| I ﬁ\ it
JdM[ys yiq I usa
= » Buipup| |/ O
woopaq m

voisuajxa pasodasd

LL'ONOL M3IA 30IS

~

4&\

pe
hasovaee 3015 1. |

o caomes

(P3pDys SioM Mau )
"NY1d 90014 ONNOYES

TIZONOL MIIA 301

Page 194




Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee

Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant

exception to copyright.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.

London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2009

Site Address LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

19 Grove Road, Planning, Environment

Northwood & Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Planning Application Ref: Scale
27846/APP/2010/2916 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date Nt

North Page 195| February 2011 | ™I LLINGDON

LONDON

NVS

1an 39001 AD




Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address HAYDON SCHOOL WILTSHIRE LANE EASTCOTE PINNER

Development: Details in compliance with condition 4 (fence colour) of planning permission
ref: 9556/APP/2010/1370 dated 06/08/2010: Installation of mesh fence and
automatically locking gate and new window to existing elevation.

LBH Ref Nos: 9556/APP/2010/2490

Date of receipt: 25/10/2010 Date(s) of Amendment(s):

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 196



FOd

S1D3LHOHY HINVE XOIN

dnoYo
NOLLVIHOJSNYHL 2 ONINNY1d

0I0z 130 G2

(3A3038
NOGONITIIH 40 0HO8 NOT

SHdVYHOO10Hd
30N34

12 SYH Jeuuld
|00YOS uopAeH

B.oBe
_uﬂm.

~:1

Page 197



J1L0-d

S1D3LIHOHY H3)VE NOIN

dNoy9
NOLLYLHOJSN | 7 ONINNY 14

0i0Z 120 §¢

d3A1303y
zoocZAsrmoocomZOA

SHdVYHO0O10Hd
30N34

12 SVYH J8uuld
|ooyos uopAeH

Page 198



Notes

Site Address

| ‘ : e s T
Sl !

B

lll
:Fl_ ? <

o aVAIN

St
=
-
e
e

'
RN y owls
b & ST ae 2
- s Ssals
h SO U}
q NS g '
PV A 4 N, W B .
o Ry . S

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the

Eastcote

Haydon School,
Wiltshire Lane,

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, Environment
& Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
ii?ﬁr;%rg'(azs/i\gcﬁ and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale 1:
inessyedvonssardorn | 9556/APPI2010/2490 3,000 e
© Crown Copyright. Al rights reserved. Planning Committee Date N
100016283 2005 " North Page 199| February 2011 | 1L LINGDON
LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address 41 RAISINS HILL EASTCOTE MIDDLESEX

Development: Part two storey, part single storey side extension, part two storey, part single
storey rear extension with 1 rooflight, single storey front extension and
conversion of roofspace to habitable use with 1 front and 1 rear rooflight,
involving demolition of existing integral garage and store.

LBH Ref Nos: 64909/APP/2010/2668

Date Plans Received: = 22/11/2010 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 28/01/0011
Date Application Valid: 01/12/2010

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 200



NV1d 1407 3s0d0¥d

0054 ITVOS

—
s NVd X0078 d3S0d0¥dd

a403H0\ MOV TUH SNISVY

SINOAY1 035040Hd ¥ ONILSIX3
iz

0102 HIBWIAON

N8Z SVH 'BINNId 11IH SNISIVY (¥
T

P —re—_—— novpeartes B s noavor B

a3z evm oNiuds ¥
sloalipoavw 438 YH O ¥ ¢ da

avou vilia 3snown sAq

@ové:!:x— .53.8“

Q30aY Nv1d %9018 ' NOILO3S

£9 01 V130 'NY1d 40074 ANOO3S O.
sa
saror SININNOO SHINNVIY

03103¥HO0 NV1d %0018
sa NO 3NITABVANNOCS ¥ ONVHYIAO 3008

05211 INVOS

NV7d NOILvDO01

NV1d ¥00714 LS¥Id d3S0d0dd

NV1d 30074 ANNOHO a3SOdOdd

|
_
“
i
[
_
|

NV1d 80074 LSHId ONILSIX3
I

 WoONa38

7

n —

Hive

om

M

¥OO Lsuld
d
w11 008
1Hor 4008
NOILVA3T3 34IS ONILSIX3
LHOIN 4004 MaN 1 E x‘
ONILSIX3 HOLV OL 3711 400 2

¥0O0Ad/ MOANIM a32Zv19 378N0A OAdN M3N
ONILSIX3 HOLVIN OL ORd8 ONIOVA

3111 4004 ONILSIX3

¥OO0A/ MOANIM ONILSIXT

MO8 ONIOVH ONILSIX3

A ////<\\\\

COEPO®EE
—

7]




e

)

\\‘

.

il

Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee

Site Address

41 Raisins Hill,

Eastcote Point

Littl

Services pursuant to section 47 of the

Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.

Planning Application Ref:

Eastcote

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, Environment
& Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Scale %{
64909/APP/2010/2668 1:1,250 Bt
Planning Committee Date ’, ’!t-
100016263 2008 NorthrPage 202 | February 2011 | THILLINGDON




Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address BREAKSPEAR HOUSE BREAKSPEAR ROAD NORTH HAREFIELD

Development: Application for alterations to the previously approved scheme for the
residential units 1-4 of the enabling development (previously approved within
scheme ref: 7610/APP/2002/1816 dated 28/01/2008 for the conversion of the
existing Breakspear House to 10 flats, the erection of 7 dwellings and
erection of single storey extension to Lower Lodge, incorporating conversion
of existing house to 9 flats, erection of 8 dwellings and erection of a two
storey extension to Lower Lodge, single storey extension to Upper Lodge
together with surface level and underground parking) involving alterations in
the internal residential room layouts and the design and layout of the rear
gardens.

LBH Ref Nos: 7610/APP/2010/2608

Date Plans Received:  12/11/2010 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 10/12/2010
Date Application Valid: 09/12/2010

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 203



siaauiBua Buiijasuod

AOTBNIS M XS ZdH SUH
ANOIEONISOOUI  PeaISIUSH oudH

VIINYLS

158 611 20710 X2} 14 90101
058 61v 21910 91 asnoy efay
om eonas

0ST:T  ams

O oy

S00T-ZL9T  ontia

Juawabueny [esauD

SHOM [BURIXT  opy

PI2yaJeH ‘9SNOH 1eadsyeals o

PY1 SjuawdojPAsg AJUBD  quep

PO umery

siepq  aeq Ay

W s anssT Areulwild 0T'40TZ -
SWRRINDAI SUD Ly 2DUEPIOE

WAV Ui patepdn §-1 0(d Jo SuapIES ey OT0LT V.

W ad NS ) pasiaa: sjaA ‘panepdn 1noke]

fl
BN AV Jlem Buuier: 6unsa jo doj o) pappe sbulley OTOT'ST D

Asepunog

38 [9A37 punoio bunispa

1A pUNOIO paysIuLy seves,

Wwalpes9 pasodoid o8t

‘WS-

dAL ‘[@Aa7 punoi feusapa .
oA oo paysiuy (000501

wranes [

A_gaﬁxseo_aﬁzwsusem
‘ead ui pajios UM Jjeydsy) peos uie

uopnasuo) Aemabeluen
PaARq ¥00Ig 2JeAd

pusbay

6unsie s 03 sfon3| peos pasodoid '

PI0D0€ 03 BSNOH Joueyy punose Bupeyns 1 skemuped

sfesodo.d adedspue im

<

w0'00T = anjen

20URU UIBYHOU 3L} 18 3SNOY UIeW 3L JO [3A3) 100}

PRUSIUY 03 JoJ21 SIRAD] 1Y “WMep AlRNIGIe O} SR IY '

o

18€/08€-£9T

sBumeiq ePNAS 0 Jaja) S|IIRP UORDAS 103 T

-1 5I0ld Y0OE-52266

8L $I0ld VZSE-52266 '9-S SI0Id VISE-STL66

9SNOH JOUBH Y0ST-52266

awayds adedspue 60-0-80 anss! 3, 8€0-50-80

6002

UpIRIW £Z PRep ASAINS 3IS VT00-££9T Buimelq epnas

6007 Iuidy patep ueid 1noken ays pasodoid 102-62266

150N Bumeiq uo paseq st Bumesp syL T

130N

ueid waunean

PR T -

1111117 7%

1
/ frsezTor
J o

w

00vai™

00set
anl
sco'sof” se0'sor 901

18 |5 18

ses'bo1 4] 585501 4/ 85601 |

Serwr | ey Servr 7|

TV SNINVLTY

Wwowabuewy yiedie) A OMOT

S T0f

i

lozt/T

Snu.:‘_._V L T

4
ozregn

fseezor

orveol

H
z

B 53
o0t ownizh_gezoor s

3 st [evzoor
N
| [ ssc0r o

mﬂ.me. VS0
S5°501] geseser |

1

=

61501

: s
e

601 a

1, 019201

oty 5660

szesoyy 085901

[@asa] b 26501

T
4

"s6e'S01

oot ||| || om

% 1, or9201
focsas

sesoy

o6rs0T

6€'501




s19auibua Buiynsuod

VO 00T:T oo

VLINYLS

wy

00EV-LL9T ot

suejd 100}4

- T SHUN MON pasodold  om

piRYRIeH

‘9SNOH 1eadSHelT  pojoss

P11 syuawdojPAsg AduepD

PO umeig
WAV
WAV

sieRa  awa Ay
anss Areuwiig 016022 -
Bued 04 0FOF'S0 ¥

(001:1)
Uejd 100} puUNoI9 Jamo

N e ==cn ey N —
O FE
i, cuoamen 5 -

TN = Ly AT T el = DA

eyl | | )i ileg priiey ke Caprirye iy § L s oo i G gt i | Pyl st ai i =1 | ity |
G [ ) fcs) [z ez [z fci) [z ) ] -
) o )
© . ol w2 | -
woosyeq @ ——7 H 1§ woospaq. S ayns-ue @ woopeq
oo v  woos
: i Nl s ® g Hr ol L
B2 o [ e i) O
ans o) ansue e (5 T ansue
i 5 o
@ ER L) ® i ® & e we () = )
7 "™ ar e e 2 "™ e e ™
& o o s @ & o o LS
@ s
) = b €}

Siieyap 4a2uibu3 38 W 03 2AqNS UoReO|

(oot:1)
Uejd 100} punoin

=

1leM M3N | jlem B>3

= 1]
| | . L
| 1]
[ 1 L L
[ 1] -
[ | |
NH
% (001:1)
Uejq 10014 35114




JoomnAS M HXS ZdH SUH
ooTENAS@ojl  pusisduek lewek i Buiuado MopuM Bunsixe
158 6LY ZPYLO XE) 10H 8enbid

—_— T f———— Jo 30rid Uy 33e6U0L M3
Sumen e UORRRaT o T S
s1aauibue Burynsuod 4T wRnIS. -

< -—-U = z .—-m 05866 [ uid jepusy
VO 0S'T  wms
=
Vo oy 9004S-£L9T ot :
|
=R = 058°T01 :
== 29403 pug
PlyaIRH ‘@SNOH Jeads)eald sy |
P11 syuswidojaAe AdUBD) e
|
e |
® 1

25URAUR LALIOU 3L 18 SN0 Ulew AU JO [9A3) Jool

3y Gupnp Uado pat2e| 6uiRq Jo 3jqeded 2q [ SI00p J2GUR)

T~
/ - "
/ ; (05:1) (o]
/ 0S:T
/ MBIA UBd [[eM
— s IA UBld [[BM O
—~ | Al
\‘ 058'66
—
R T i TR i T R R S = e === = =1 e
A A s P et e | | (@]
i S e S e e A Ts T |AU_ ! a
, | o
I | | wmoms veon | |
S | | e
| (@ sorem nog |
Pl | ; |
|
did ﬁ | _ .
Ayeded an) 0111 i
$86X09Z1X0ST Ui 03 | [ |
Aepunog _J 1 i g
WneTpunai busp 6449% " 058'66
[oA1 pUN0ID paUSIU  sezes, ) |
[553] -
JuaipesD pasodoid A _ _ £3un
quny Aeg Buped (1)
et E: 2y e r|‘1\\|‘\l’|_ 7
‘wwosT- 7% 77427 77 70 770 10 07 70 07 7
dAL ‘pA31 punosg e
(e
51100 PRt “SIPIUBA ISNY3J 3L J0j BUUOY Ob JO SPeO] )3 UBd pieAunod 3yl '8 4 nmm.mm+ Aem 100p 0) payiaALOY ﬁ
Buado Mopum bunsia - sjem bupsixa
(3feydsy) peos uleW I e PapIN0. 2 (1M Ueld JWABRURL 2B VS Y L
- 3[qe3dadne s 3p(yA UoRd3}j0d
pusbal 35Nj21 2UU0) O Joj 5208 UMOUS el BUIRPOW RN Y °g
“S]ieM J2UIELD UG PUE SI3UeIU0> UB3MYEq PUB SIBUIEIU0) UBAMI3]
LILIOST WNWIULI MO[e ©) 3215 JUBDNS JO 3 [IM SPQWRL UG 'S
Juawdinbs UORIRIBP AHOLS PUE SIBYSINBUS
243 Jo ssapjuids 2.1 ‘6'3 UaHE) 2q pinoys suoanedaid aiy AGENS b
sBupling U} JUBWRBRUR)
258/ S00Z:9065 S8 LM P02 03 2I03s Uig Y “JBM3S N0} ALY 0} PaP3ULI AjjnG paddex e spiemo) 3q [iIm
a6euieiq “juiod 36eUIRIP € SPIBMO) [e) IGRYNS © ALY [|IM B
sjesodoid adedspue (M 317 0 J0O} BUL "UMOP BUIYSEM JOj USIUL LAOOLS @ LM [eLlews
PI0d0e 0} 3SNOH JOUB}Y punoie Bupens g skemyled € ‘snojasadw) PRy M Paul| J0 PYINISUOD 3q [[IM S|lEM JSquieyd uig |
wop'00T = 3NjeA “aseyd Uo30

PaUSIUL ) J2j21 Sian3 fly “Wniep AlRIIGE 03 SRARI IV T
“padiden 6uiRq ajdosd 1aKasd 0} qWELD 3
28€/08€-4491 3pisu woy pauado 6u1dG Jo a1geded aq M SPIR] Se NS S2DiKD
sBume:q ePNAg 0} 251 S|ERP LONRS 104 °T 5UDPo| JREUWOINe Aue PLE BUISO Js 30 [IM SI00p JRqURLD UG BUL T

310N 30N




e 2 st == b Ae ke & I3 B3
e ik SAHLON ¥ ) £ J% B E z b
Sresnibus Bunipasues "GH % 99 'S5 'ED SOTYD NO SNWMIOD OL S3r1dd¥ Uz 8% 2 s L 9
- "NWNTOD HIAO SUNIT HVIHS ONIMOHS Nv1d 2z =4 8 s e TS
e = B 2 K=
VN _ L g - 5
[ - s T — rm ...m
ZL QN 11 SU3AV] SYvE S2H —_— = E
TLQNY LLS¥IAYT S¥vd 9TH = i ,
D may YOET-Z49T  onta — i = !
835 dol - uswadiojuey SoETEI——— B —= g T v —— - — — =
qels [pasT Jaddn yed 18D N = - N 2] SO o o
(NWTTOD 40 SINITY2INT) S 7 _ | 21-007_ LY 20-9TH-22
. snoay L%th$@0w I » 10 HLIm 177 T0-31H-52
2l)2.2H ‘@SNOH Jeadsyesig === i B
PiRURIEH H Biesds NMOHS Sv dINOLLISOd [y
SE3 002 L¥ SANTT £6-0TH-POT 1
uawdofeneg Aouey = MizlC — g |
k! [PAR0 AOUBD e ey 3% " as i B ag i 5
o i Seeq me e gElz  IZ = JE ER a2 g 0 Sabl :
wooss DU GRS 3 s 03 Buweig OTLOT - 27 oL by =/ | 0 22 83 L i
"o i i g a2 3 2 g iy | ,
: 954 g g ] H- 3 8 8 g 50
W ! 8z g Kl b i XYW 052 OLNIN 5 T b = = | 7
- i WA 5 5 7 I3 7 . ! |
@ |
W - L - P . _ | i
P .| S P S 727 G e b vy Y I ———— R ——— ] L
+ | - + +
029641 ! 0c9'%0T 008°b01 0£9'b01 e - 4 | zroeiseRe
20002 1V 20-9TH-0S . _ -ygeL puedn . SR
HIIA 177 10-9TH-05 a [ w i i
w ) ;
P . 090'501
. '0"L puersdn
Spe v
N
w0
B i i
g f i
22
5 FE | W = aD9vlS
rt g5 — z T 0ZE0-9TH-E5
B4 Iv 7 L %y ,
: 2=
P2 ! - A 7
- g [ tl
el —t ot — D = = = 7 —_— | = = —s  — s — =] ———s +— —_— = i ) | 5 [ e
= | _ LA Lo _
, vl
I
/ Lt . . 1 7 _ . 7 N~
// 7 J (0g) ) (e | ZI-05T-95-SZH-OZT o
5 ; i
N L < | ! g )
B : ° w
' . T - T
! il f [ © o
} ___06E%GT oS F10H 40 S3qIS ANNOYY . INCHONGHHL: : i
i qejs 0" Pt Wwwooz AU¥SS303N SV ILIS NO LINS OL = J EM _ nﬂ.w._umm“ = L - . |
o e T T T IR 90 GDVISITSHVE NIV 2o edwor z mNm 065101 | | > psspor || . s | | a99vis
5 b , - 5 I 28-002-€0-9TH-66
71002 LY o . a W g 050°01 7
OTH-IT | MB o 6T Y0 pURIsd
SE oL . . Ll . ] S % 14 0 geis JO doL e : 0% oot
g N | it g __OoTR0r - 5 i W
i 7 QEIS "27Y AIIU3 WDy ully ,
{5015 HFO¥3 ON £) E1-00T-61-5TR-CT=EXF _ = !
‘ F10H DNIWWDIL S3vE WIIAL T — F
! & . 3z
L— ! ! 3 2l
f— = | —1 HE o gl2
\ 5] 03] g 06) 87 TL0ST-9b-52H-801 m =
VO 3l
| i 5 8
i | 3, E!
o rh | £
— — — = .= — —_—| — — — =] — T — _ ] — - — — | = — || A = = | 00
[ e #-SZHTT
! LY IL
! R 21007 1Y
i | i 057z oAl | T — 50016
I i 60 T H1IM LTV
) T0-9TH0T
21002 Ly L 7 7 | B yiJ LAE 20002 1v
21-9TH-6E ; i PT-OTHST
@ . B - . ) S L - - HT
ALY (2+2) () (848) (g+8) (5+b) (£+0) (£+t) (5+2) HLm 1y
10:9TH-98 To L E€1-0THET
21002 1Y st L9t N k4 10 . 2000208
S1-9THSZ — ! y | __ | zromer
HLIM L7, 546, {5+ -+ (545 (5+5) [B5] gre) M Ly
sTotHsT, EP £ & el ) ! ) | 20 10-9TH-ET
0. |
{ | [ — T i
. 1 =
i Nespuey 2 TpuessT w0 21007 1¥
H 26pa uo o] apm wukid- | |
08 H0T _ H =
0| queisdn 10 60
1 | .o _ _ i (N
1 r =
i —
== _ _ T 5
5] 11 LTI Sy st - V = P2a I T 7
b N wl — » = N e e = 9 w o i b ? IS = JL, 1
E » & I f - G : : 7 |z 2 3 ol b
2y pe E = * 8B = X z P FA I+ P
82 g5 89 & i E 3 4 > F g 85 18 3 P i
g o 42 g 5 K] 2 B T & I % 35 & 24240
g o 5 5 2
= o o Ke o |5 2 = g s|E = |8 e sE
g2 g 5 B 3E i g |z FIEI g &
ERE I e 3 5 |2 5 i 3 7 gs 3 R 2 B3]
2 i Tl
[1%14]




gt 55 TS HE g 2 ¥ REBREE 3t
prarsuni §-8 NOI1D3S - v-¥ NOILD3s ,L_m ¥ z = Rizzzz Lw
ssnon 34y e e e 89 2 > roLiae] g
s193u18us Buggnsue) 4 s Swv@ STH OL 1108 & & 2 S BEBLRD &
p 4 @ % 8 ROLEGZE 25
$IA0D WHST 310N Eks 4 i o= >
EE g cEEsis zz
€0 £ 0 €0 £0 €0 0 o i3 ; Sc28 N .
0S°T s | Bl 2 = fgga% M 8= TSNHL OV6) ‘5378 ZT90R
€0 23 z BERE 2 m SUYA N 002-£2-8H-S
] = | > TRQ “TvA 40 AN TWIIdAL
{GNYASAN NI LANTS
E e £9ET-LLOT  oxbin . i R 0l8 | i L H_
1 | ee/tE o 1 194 Q3YINDIY S LHOMH ; .
18815 WIOT0g - UBWSIIOMITY £ 0 T 0 w0 N Ty " W% aDNAZY 1INS - — e b
Qe[S [9A9T Joddn ded 1) s o 0L 1MD SYve 310N |
Bh%mw 5t N 28002 1V 20-9TH-2Z |
) : o 2 = HLIM 17 T0-9TH6Z
pRyBIeH asnoH 1205108 R 8 B 7 &
wa s
P17 siuswdolpasq Aouep) i
g3 & 28 &3 a8
e e ) I = i | HE:
) satdy 04 019D g 2 g2 Ba2 29 |
8& S < g P
W UOASU GEf 14 11 ) pR OT'LOST ¥ B M & <3 S
w b1 ] ] 3 ]
S PRI PUE PADNOD ol S ] =X3
NG5 susupumue s Iy pESpOn NaURGURIY OTL0TE 6 8= £ 2 Ng® &
g ]
HN A orersy 3 Luy !
62y puessdn !
Wwooag P3UAIR M IS O} FAIVFHN V-Y LOIAS OTCTRT n = caset] T ~ x -
P O tnew o3 prsaey DETIED 3 \\\\\\\4|v\\1x(J:Hu\tllll!\\illlvnvww‘H nnnnnn — e [}
| - !
= “SHVE Z04OH
“30¥4 HOV3 ONSXE
—, 00Z-9Z-0TH-0E=0TXE
ST . | Y9 ) 00Z-52-8H-8
[ “HVYE ZIJOH ZE-8R- " 30Vd ST-00Z-+2-91H-+8 7
i . ! Suva Luan ; 34 SO-00Z-E2 01H-b8
¥ Gl 2 gy v {ANY1SdN NI .Ez_i 7 ONYLSAN NI LINIZY
| . ; ! |
. vl !
Be ; 5 7
= ; Q99v1S
5 — i 07-€0-9TH-€5
A ki |
g = - -
B I L
o PR . - eo| as o v S i | e o 2 S SR
iH Lo 4
/Iﬁ | ,
: t ; , | o
g N O - | IROHONORAL | (a\]
| . Y1 WIDOL ,
| = IWVIAL ! [6))
| , ’ “FI0H 40 SIS ANNOBY — ; ; ©
—- = sz 3 ) N oy TR —
i i 2o AYVSSIDIN SV 2LIS NO LINS OL NI €n i (] 2B-00€-L0-9TH-L5 Dl
103 %0 QIVHSIA $4VE NIVI ~-__ 0o e
... |Be3 . . ____ @oovis
. a 1 e 28-002-£0-9TH-6
i | [ =9 1 SZQ
X 2
i i . S— SET —_ S mEwwwe
wooe ] = g% 7 6-00rE0STH-2Z W St
e SMHL 'ONE vl [ so0z ] peEesd
B SHYE YINOD BT-OTH-b=TXp | QARLRB=
(3015 HOvA ON €) £8-001-61-9TH-ZT=txp g 358 88§
{310 SNIWWERIL Stve TYIdAL DEEEYR % E3c3 59
. : T SEfzit it [EEgn8:
i ' ¢ FRA = GER0
\\ | N s REERSs 15 & AR
5 g sefess =2
; Ry
| Rggnad  Bs
= p-3ud+] =
J . Tgs0s
- — — - — - - - — — _ — - —T — - = = - — 4\ — - —l —
I 3
kd . — 1|
| 28007 1Y
60016
| — % w1 HUM [
b i TO-STH-0T
28002 1Y ! |
ZESTH-IE i i
HUIM 1Y - B
T0-9TH-TE
st st
¢ -l 5 — —_— -
{s+5) (5+¢})
w0,
i 1
: /espliey 3235 BpUN pUEISN 0 28007 1Y
ins 03 103 i ' 26p3 U0 Wl PIM WIISTZ —— 1 60-9TH-0T
[ zao0z- ™ I LW
X403
T
I
i |

.
EEa 3 S
2l 5 EAE =
25 2 2 ?
> =| <]
gl & 5
R d &
g Zgx 8 2
ERE 2 S
EN 8 &

TE-00Z-€0-9TH

porovant

=X

S NI T8-00Z-

01-91H-

(pnun0)
Std NI 18-00Z-

S¥d NI 18-007-




15861 2rs10 3
058 61p 2vi0 BE

s1azufue Buljfnsaoy

! |
G e —]
i " T i
VIIN41S memem | 0 T} R I ¥ e
05T s et

Aino e B [ st & | os¥ |
|

i
T
| [
111111 ]
wopa siem vy ; ! E ,
B oy 19612691 owos . TTTTo b
&
Bum: 12431 3p iEdie3 snoge E |
ing bupas PURstin 230103 pasioyuR 8 ;
(297 4addn ed 18D oL | w |
QRIS BRUE UL} WILCOD 0 26p3 g
PlaYaIeH 'BSNOK B30SHRBIG ey g
2
pusba]
PY1 SjuBWdORASG AJLUED ey =g — i
i |
W e Gesa mea = | ) El | ‘B
e A (LT * 8 | ,
"o e e 5 4 , ; A , " emmiy s mmerwesg wmg lde -
e st e e e e e e e e .
W 7 s w3 ) || [ . ™ , i = -
o5 pmEpdn S P DVOVS O | ool | T ocgvor 18 ooabor | | oLyv01 OLFHOT |
Mo e b1 @ s3I0 OTTIS0 3 W I3 90L puBssdn — —
H ,
| , | & H
i a
| K] I 080507
_ 13 | i FoLpuesdn—— 1 |
] ) &
e Ay - -~ i | & | I
| | ;. * | N S i |
| H | ' puersdn Emb,_snn,gsESJ . 0
1 : . | 3
| , | | | |
i
' I
R ! , | ] : :
I E
i , il | |
B I g
i | PUBISAN 3121UC BDIA WOST * | | | ﬁ |
. I
—d i W | | , _ ‘ﬁ‘
| ph e | % A , FR
1 1 |
- - —_ ——— - T\\\ e edfllomes o om s mew e s H—- —- — - — = - —- - = —_ I Bl el o e
i L * i i b !
| | : ; | |
I | ! L
! | ! o g 7
i , | | |
i | , | |
| 8 i ¥ | A—— ,
| _ s < W, ) | )

| R

0601 IHOS

IS DY Iy W0z

SN S DoLpuasdy- —— -~

ﬂ o X o i 090°501 @
| Tddgasioool | o
06T %01 - 3405 i |

el 37 I wigoh Ui

1]
G e e ¢ e ows o mss swomreg TN PP S gl_
meweoﬂ F‘w) \/7 ommﬁ.m« I i ,M

|

pumiSdn S1B15005 3p WB00Z!

|
f
| | o |
|

PUEISAN 2180U00 SPYA WWIOOTZ

B
a
4

___ L

DuEisdn 2145000 S WAGOT
i

|

:

| |
| |

|
|
.
I

PUBISaN S1R15U03 PIM WIOST

“Z5ET-££91 Burmen
pUE S[RIEP LORS U031

e



HXE 22k S
pasisduol o

s199w16ua Bujgpnsun P
VOIMULS  wees
- ey 99€T-LL9T  awea

9SNOH Jouep oL Ji2Is
8@ ied Jed

DSYBIRH ‘95NOH JeadSHeRld o

P31 syuswdopaag A2UBD e

P uste SPRa meq A
p oy sy oy OVTTSD
2 POPPE LD 2 B ALK QLTITT ¥

[“

&

“sapUeda.sap Aue Jo J25UIBUT BU| Ayou 03 PUB WBWINOLIR
U] 4O BULBPIO 03 J0ad SBUIMBIP 3L SUIRR SIMPAYS
BUIpU3G XD3Y2 03 JODEUL) BU) Jo AIIsuodss) a1 39 Jleys A ‘0T

panad 100 5133 501
P00 JO 851 U1 "313.0U0D J0 J3A03 PAINDA1 3R 5Bl JUBURHIOI:
12 18U 3UNSUa 03 Pasn 34 [leys A3L] ‘anfieuaie Juseld

S(2ns @ 40 21,5000 35892.dl J0 Bpew 27 01 12 SPOM J3RGS 6

2102 JO 12400 PAIINDA B3 Sey JAWBDIOJURA [[2 BINSUA O}
“SIELD 3215 PN UG pROddns 3q [[24S STEIS Ul BURIOURI oL g

“ABUIPI0Y3E P35ER.0U] 3q 03 B2 SIRGUAL 11U0>
40 SUIPIAA A1eSS303U B2t PUR ‘DT T8 SE LM 3IUEPICIR Ul LALIGL
30101 51 /202 PUNOIG 53 IsulEB Ao 158D Bl Sa0R) BAUM L

“(3¥8:0U0 81 Y puDg 531 3 ARSPApR
Aew i) 33 Juied “510 woy 334 3 [feys WALLONRY 9

"EBbY S8 PUR 78 S8 YIM 3dUERIOTE Ul plavk LI 2 0
UBWIZDI0URA JGE} IV “TUII/N OSZ A ‘Sieq punos uieid 3235 piw
20 PINoUS ¥, Pa1eUBIS3p BWANMOIUIRI Iy “eW/y 005 Al ‘S1eq
P3WIOJaP 7 443 pleiA UBIY 3G PINOLS 1, PRRUBIS3P BWAI0MIZ]
IV "€8bb 10 28kt ‘Gbbb S8 UM AIOLIOD PInOYS WAWRIOURY S

USIGAN pue felisieus 2500]
121844 WO @545 023 8 RS 2131003 PEIIOJUIS Jof SUONRARIN [IY b

1887 S8 yIm
NEPLCI2E U1 110 aLLIE 3 [[eUs BURsa) pue BUjdWSs JBOUSY T

1 "oN 536/q [e02ds Jua pue
T-0058 S8 J0 SUAWRIND3I U3 339U 0] PadLeLa aq PINoLs SAOGR
PRIIpU SUeWRINb2) AA2IN/SLENS U3 ‘AIBssadsU SIEUM

250 15| 55BID [E3IwRLD UBISAQ AL

WG sulunie)
(wonoq) wwsz qes el
{dos) WSz qeis i canoD DAL

Ob/ZED D8 MW

1smoljo) 5B

e D 1OV ist
=15 (039v) 2wou0) 05 UBWUONAUS [BXWALY BASSBIG5Y SuL

20058 58
PU2 1-9GZ N3 S8 03 LIGJU03 0} 5} 3)3.40U00 |I¥ "SO0T 'T "ON 153310
23S T8 PUE [-0058 S8 LAIM 30UBPJOIIR L PAIDads 5| 21003 7

30D S U Ao 0
1 UOINISUOY (/2 pUB QTIS S €1 PaUBISEP SI BlAIUDD PRIOIR [IY  °T

SSI0M 312.10U07 DO

(0z:1 21235)
ToReABI3 1523 YLoN

26ps s

53

ST | ¢

(or ages)
§- 8 uopds

920018 mm:mw_f

e 0z

133 a6pa
w0 3puq asoung

U0
01 payoq eipuzH

(0z:1 31e>5)

{011 3je35)
¥ - ¥ Lodes
— dip wwpt
| ——
05t EoT

- q uopss
- STSE
w0 0079 b0
seEeor 0SE'E0T
qu pes sieq
sausiul paq 10 "ON ¢ s s gy
B2 Wwsg—  WIGDZ |12 031 373 gelS —

= "
[— WOz paioyue ujsas Buoj

| T Qg s1eq AP £0 "ONZ

ofkor SLTYoL

00g 005T

2snoy Jouely Bunsix3

WILOSZ @ 5pea ‘ONY
WW)Z @ 55U ONY
@5

s

(o121 3pe35)
J “DuoRdEs

-

090°S0T

Page 210

e e
008 b0t |
1 F
&Hﬁ - .
! . ; ’
z z z
7 8 (0Z:1 sje3s) < S
p 8 M3IA Ueld 5 ﬂ
o g B 3
s _ i 2
ENS 3 E al? g
7 —t— ——iz |.\ 7L < 1 I\. \| = \lh\
L o ; W i L il i [ 77}
.
£ g
| ;
! 1
la |
=) e L -
2 Zr 7 2 e A 4

ﬂ



i3 EE
we B w2
i 43
=3 g3
£ 5
EH (1]
NN RNRaaW
Iipatatatis

5 §
g :
58 Lk
i i
2 W 3

.......
........
it

LT AL

Harefield
Tée:  Proposed New Units 1 - 4

Elevations

oate:  1677-A314

Date ils:
et Clancy Development Ltd
Poect: Breakspear House,

sale: 1:100 @ Al



s19auibua Buiynsuod

VNS o

[ 08ET-LL9T  wonsa
(002:1 3135)
S|ie33Q uoiRs = UOT
Aiepunog p-1 S101d o £ N0RES

DlaURIBH ‘aSNOH 1eadSYeRIg  peious % | (e [} Joss 191

peoiBifeed 008'%01 _ SE0'S0T
PO e sesa awa piekunon 000501
wooea anss] Keuwsid 01T -
Aibuip:cooe paiepdn 7-7 pue A-A SUORDIS

P11 sjuawdojpAsq AdueR e

"SWAINDII S M PI033€ 0 parepdn

HN 80 +1 S10/d 03 JwauBURLIR [BMIYBY PUE 0jRd 0T ¢ v
HNAY XX 01 pappe Buey a
MO AV pappe (p g >

a

AdD AV 7S snomaid o) paUIMR 3510 JOUBK O) SIRIS

(o0z:1 31e35)

A-A UoRARS

(| = ] il [ Joss 191
Tien 6umieoy || 05610t __ __ : :
uenuy
scegor  (Buped yoniapun) 2 : 00001
peo bursia oot punoi6oeq uy 008bOT | renct
Buidedspuey Jo 3|yoid piekunod

Page 212

(001:1 21e35)
X-X uoneAsg ueid A3y

o
058'10T

yd b
puILag ¥3q MO

seosor SE0'501
5 04807 )
58501 4 8507 4
7 SeCon |

UUBLLLLULLLLLL.

pauIma1 3q 03 llem bunsa

o/t
ot

SSTIOH Jouel

059'50T

000'90T
leM MN Jo doL.

Y




s1aauibue Buijpnsuod

VIINYLS

- ey E0NY-LL9T
9ADAAS0Id MIIA |IPM
ybr Jeay b - T 301d

PIayaleH
‘asnoy Jeadsyealg

P11 suawdojaasg Aue)




TOAY-££91

anmpadsoud
M3IA Jedy b - T 30Id

Playa.eH
‘3snoH Jeadsyealg

[ ESEIVTENET I GITL -l S,

SR meq




A0 GO mNAS MM X ZdH S0

sioauiBua Burijasuo)

VvONILS . -

CONY-LL9T -

AAPadsold
M3IA JuOl] ¢ - T 30|d

playaIeH
‘35N0H Jeadsyealg

P11 suawdojanaq Adue)

SR meq A




PONI-LLIT _oneia

>€4ﬁﬂn
MIIAIBUY b -\T 10Id e’

playBieH
'3SNOH 12ASKEIT  smioss

\
PY1 SIUAWAOIARQ AU ey




Q \
Q
\
\
\
\
\ O Tank
\
\ |
O
\
\
O
\
\
\
\
\
\O ~:~
\ st
\ - Filter Bed NN
N N ’ O
\\,3 . - ‘:::\
v ~ _ Phd -~ ~~
A Seeee :
\2
N\ - -
\ =
!’ !
.' x |
1 \
‘ ,,,,,,,,
\ - T -
\
\
\!
\!
A\
Notes Site Address

Breaksped
Stables
Cottage

Breakspear

Mews

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the

Harefield

Breakspear House,
Breakspear Road North,

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, Environment
& Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
iii’f;gg?‘(ﬁ,e:fc”j and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale ]
st powss ot | 7610/APPI2010/2608 | 12,000 S
© Crown Copyright. Al rights reserved. Planning Committee Date (14t
o00tz8a 2008 O North Page 217| February 2011 | T+ LLINGDON
LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address ST JOHNS SCHOOL POTTER STREET HILL NORTHWOOD

Development: Retention of additional classroom and assembly area with library for pre-
preparatory school, together with first aid room and staff toilet, without
complying with condition 4 of planning permission ref: 10795/APP/2001/1600
dated 21/11/2001 (which limits pupil numbers at the school to 350 and staff
to no more than 40) to allow the retention of the current numbers of 405
pupils and 65 full-time equivalent staff (Retrospective application.)

LBH Ref Nos: 10795/APP/2011/91

Date Plans Received: 17/01/2011 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 17/01/2011

North Planning Committee - 22nd February 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 218



G€022. 8EVL0:XV4 LEE9LE 8EVLO INOHIITIL
S1d3H FJOVNIATLS AvOd NOLHON 1dNOD ONITH3LS

SYINNV1d NMOL ANV SLO3LIHOYV AIUILIVHO

O0[d | |6iiv

‘ON LO3rodd
3lva <Z—I— NMYHd OomN“ —\
1102 AYVNNVI
a3X03HO 3ava ELAS]

ue|d uoneoidde Buluuelg

J1LIL ONIMYEA

Xasa|PPIN
AOOMHLYON
|00yoS s,uyor 1S

31LIL LO3rodd

pajwr BuIgIoD 1 JUSOUIA ©

(euy/0¢ BUPY'ZL) “

AdYANNO4Y TO0HOS 1

“JyBuAdoo umoId @ 22O AlBUONDIS $,Alselol JoH
oW A, D!

AING SOUDUPIO JO UOISSIULISd SU} UjiMm [OLSO! AING S

4O J8IIOHUOD U4 JO JIoysq uo
c_u_Ocoa:Uomoom_aoEm_




G€022. 8EVL0:XV4 LEE9LE 8EVLO INOHIITIL
S1d3H FJOVNIATLS AvOd NOLHON 1dNOD ONITH3LS

SYINNV1d NMOL ANV SLO3LIHOYV AIUILIVHO

L|0|C CYNAY

‘ON LO3rodd

<Z—I_ NMVHa mu(@ Oom. _‘
1102 AMVNNYT

Q3XO3IHO 3lva 3vos

3lva

(Jing se) ueld ays

J1LIL ONIMYEA

XOS9IPPIN
JOOMHLHON
[00YOS s.uyor is

31LIL LO3royd

pajwr BuIgIoD 1 JUSOUIA ©

L10T

Alonuor AeAIns ajis Bumoljoy payopdn ‘|00z JoqUISAON
0Z P8JoP 009 1/1002/ddV/S6.£01 uoissiuued Buuuoid

o} pajpjel Bumoip Buluupid parciddo uodn pasog ubjd
‘310N

pu3 sienod

9SNOH Yojey L




G€022. 8EVL0:XV4 LEE9LE 8EVLO INOHIITIL
S1d3H FJOVNIATLS AvOd NOLHON 1dNOD ONITH3LS

SYINNV1d NMOL ANV SL1O3LIHOHV AIUILAVHO

CYNAY

‘ON 1O3rodd

3lva <ZI NMYHd m<@ oo —\ F
1102 AYVNNVI
Q3XO3IHO 3lva 3vos

(3inq se) uejdjoou Buipjing

J1LIL ONIMYEA

X9S9|PPIN
JOOMHLHON
[00YOS s.uyor is

31LIL LO3royd

pajwir BuIgios @ JUsOUIA @

LLOT
AIDNUDP ASAINS 84S BUIMO|I0) PayoPdN ‘00T I8QUISAON

0Z P8JoP 009 1/1002/ddV/S6.£01 uoissiuued Buuuoid
o} pajpjel Bumoip Buluupid parciddo uodn pasog ubjd
‘310N

an

SWIOOISSOID R |0y Buiuip Bulsixy

deid-aid Buysix3 0} $$900Y

Buip|ing deid-aid Bulsixg

palo Aojd uedO

Buip|ing |0oyds
UIPW O} $$900Y

palp Aod (pazo|b) paienod

deid-a1d Bulsix3 0} $s820Y

——p>—JONVUINT

dwol

llom Buuioel

FONVIINT

[Iom Buiuioye!

Page 221

solew

€




G€022. 8EVL0:XV4 LEE9LE 8EVLO INOHIITIL
S1d3H FJOVNIATLS AvOd NOLHON 1dNOD ONITH3LS

SYINNV1d NMOL ANV SL1O3LIHOHV AIUILAVHO

CYNAY

‘ON 1O3rodd
3lva <ZI NMYHd m<© OO—\. F
1102 AYVNNVI
Q3XO3IHO 3lva 3vos

(3inqg se) uejdiooy Buipjing

J1LIL ONIMYEA

X9S3|PPIN
AOOMHLYON
|00yoS s,uyor 1S

31LIL LO3royd

pajwir BuIgios @ JUsOUIA @

L10T

Alonupp ASAINs ayis BUMO||0) payopdn ‘| 00Z JOUIBAON
0Z P8JoP 009 1/1002/ddV/S6.£01 uoissiuued Buuuoid

o} pajpjel Bumoip Buluupid parciddo uodn pasog ubjd

‘310N

7

an

7

Zz

SUIOOISSDIO g [IoY Buiuip Busix3

%

doid-a1d Buysixg 0} $s900Y

]

7

N

Buip|ing deid-aid Bulsix3

doid-a1d Buysixg 0} $s900Y

OMITITIITY_ iy

N

.
| JONWUND

dwipi

BuipiNg [00Ys
UIPW O} 8§90y

paIb Apjd uedo !

palp deid-ald Jounp

#

i

wioo! Jein®

paIo Apd (pazo|B) paler0D > W al088 ~
AN B 90O g
¥ | awu.
N o
7 _‘\ ,/_ ARG 3\
g “ odo (aV]
, S
- welol  § e usyomy ©
| | Mo o
m HERN
RN
N
7 JolI0} oIS paip AIDIN
pIo isi4
)// A
RS N
N Y N _
JONVRING DaID [oIeUSB/AIQUISSSY
T T L
1N
_ 1N [lom Buiuoe!
\\\
\\
7/
ofs
/
/
/ selew e
/ s v € z ]




G€0ZZ. 8EVL0:XV4 LEEILE 8EVLO 'INOHIITIL
S1d3H FJOVNIAILS AvOd NOLHON 1dNOD ONITH3LS

SYINNV1d NMOL ANV SLO3LIHOYV AIUILIVHO _ ; I

7 I H H H U =5

VNH < ;
31va NMYHa m”<© oo —x” r

LL0Z AYVNNVI
A3XO3HO 3lva 3OS

/

NOILVAITI HIJYON

(3inqg se) suonens|d Bulpjing

J1LIL ONIMYEA

XoS3|PPIN L L 7
QOOMHLYON ] B

|00YoS S, uyor 1S , 7,

31LIL LO3royd

pajwi] BUIGIOD B JUSOUIA @

L10T

Alonupr ASAINs ayis BUMO||0) payopdn ‘| 00T JOAUISAON
0Z PSJOP 009 1/1002/ddV/S6.£01 uoissiuued Buuuoid

o} pajojel Bumoip Buluupid parciddo uodn pasog uojd
‘310N

NOILVAITI HLINOS
Page 223

NOILVA3IT3 1SV4

NOILVAITI LSIM



Vi
4

------ . y 4
Reservoir
LY Jfl
{covered)

Shervood

mmmmm

=3
o b

v o i&' >
b, = — A
5 ok :
~ %’w ' ‘. ">¢ il ™
i 4 =] ]
q 1 Vel s, r - I‘L '
Ny - i‘,:;/ g - =i a'- = " *‘1’:: o
g & - = -3 =3
A 2 / l‘-_nni ?-\ o . _
: / Gl b ¢
v y - g
:::.:' ey T >
LG
llside . ]
nior & 3
nt School [: ST - N
=N ¥ - YoR E - “
2~ il 5 AR : ¢
i 4 :'-- ; ~\“‘~s -
p i, PP P ~I‘-:&/ - [} Wi d
:"" 7 --\‘t.',.::- .......... B f“““ ‘:'.,‘ ‘‘‘‘‘‘ @ <
i 8 Y A R AN el
F4 ¥ 2 A W
&/ ” 9 N NN AR T
o = X WO\ L7 S
" Oo . 3 SR ! i
D / N -'.--__._.. D R G Q
v S P A > o RS X
Notes Site Address LONDON BOROUGH
Site boundary St. Johns School, OF HILLINGDON
For identification purposes only. Potter Street H|", Planning, Environment
& Community Services
This copy has been made by or with Northwood B . y .
the authority of the Head of Committee Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Services pursuant to section 47 of the Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Copyright, Designs and Patents . L
Act 1988 (the Act). Planning Application Ref: Scale

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2009

10795/APP/2011/91

1:4,000

Planning Committee

NorthPage 224

Date

February 2011

T™HILLINGDON

LONDON




	Agenda
	3 To sign and receive the minutes of the previous meeting
	6 Southbourne Day Centre, 161 Elliot Avenue, Ruislip 66033/APP/2010/2523
	7 Land adjoining 12 Gladsdale Drive, 65761/APP/2010/2707
	8 56 The Drive, Ickenham 4496/APP/2009/2765
	9 19 Grove Road, Northwood 27846/APP/2010/2916
	10 Haydon School, Wiltshire Lane, Eastcote, 9556/APP/2010/2490
	11 41 Raisins Hill, Eastcote 64909/APP/2010/2668
	12 St John's School, Potter Street Hill, Northwood 10795/APP/2011/91
	13 Breakspear House, Breakspear Road North, Harefield 7610/APP/2010/2608
	Plans for North Planning Committee

